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Awards &
Recognition
RIERE

Top 500

Major awards received by the Group in the past year:
AEERNBE —FRENFERIE

Awards Organisers
#RI8 =
1 ————
. “5 Years Plus Caring Company” Logo Hong Kong Council of Social Service
HKR International 54 Plus[ B R REIIE | 25 BRMERBHE
Limited -
Eg%fgi Bronze Award for Volunteer Service Social Welfare Department
“n BXK THEEFEMR HEENS
|
Best Guest Review Awards 2013 Booking.com
Auberge The Marketing Events Awards 2013 - Best Venue Experience Silver Award  Marketing Events magazine, Singapore
B'::g‘gzgay ESDLife Bridal Awards 2013 — Best New Hotel Wedding Banquet ESDLife
. b E - ; = EES
N . B AESE B A M 2013 — A ZEIEEEE
Darizi Awards 2013 - The Most Romantic Wedding Venue Award Darizi magazine
DARIZI KX B ¥ Awards 2013 — RRBIEE151th PR
iF Communication Design Award 2014 - Hotel Casual Dining iF Design, Germany
Café bord de Mer
SEIRRE 33 Gold Key Awards for Excellence in Hospitality Design - Boutique Design magazine &
Best Restaurant Casual Dining HOTELS magazine, US
|
Top 100 World’s Best Hotels 2013 Institutional Investor magazine, US
Certificate of Excellence 2013 (Rating 4.5 of 5) TripAdvisor, US
The Sukhothai
Readers’ Choice Awards 2013 - Top 15 Hotels in Thailand Condé Nast Traveler magazine, US
Best in Travel 2013 — No.10 in Best Leisure Hotel / Resort in Asia SmartTravelAsia.com
Celadon One of the 101 Best Hotel Restaurants Around the World 2013 TheDailyMeal.com
Thailand Best Restaurant 2014 Thailand Tatler magazine
La Scala
One of the Asia’s Top 500 Finest Restaurants The Miele Guide 2013
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About

HKR International Limited
FETRAEEHEHBEEERR QT

scovery Bay

VISION

FH=

MISSION
{Ean

VALUES
BEZ—

PRI’DE

Our Vision, Mission & Values
BPWES  FaMEER

To be the pioneer of innovative living space

AEATH AEEZEM

We strive to create a healthy, stylish and distinctive living experience
through teamwork and passionate pursuit of innovation and excellence

BRE N - BlFT Rk - SHANK - BEAK - B ES LR ER

PIONEER RESPECT INNOVATION
Break new + Value the individual + Think outside

grounds and cherish our the box

HEEBER T environment EPREE
EYN:

INTEGRITY DEVOTION EXCELLENCE

Uphold high Be committed Consistency in the

ethical + and + pursuit of our

standards passionate quality standards

BTiE RO S IFREE

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014



Company
History

=] 3db =
Q}Eﬂﬁﬂsi

In 1977, the family of Dr CHA Chi Ming, the late founder and chairman of the
Group, acquired the equity interest of Hong Kong Resort Company Limited
(“Hong Kong Resort”) which is the registered owner and developer of Discovery
Bay on Lantau Island. The shares of Hong Kong Resort and the other Group
company were once listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Stock Exchange”) in 1987 and in 1988 and 1989 respectively. During the years
1988 and 1989, the Group underwent a series of reorganisation and scheme
of arrangement and formed HKR International Limited (Stock Code: 00480) in
May 1989 as its new listed holding company carrying on principally real estate
development and other related businesses.

Today, HKR International Limited has diversified interests in real estate
development and investment, property management, luxury hotels, healthcare
services and other investments in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Asia.

1977 F - AEBEEHRAIRAREEEERET CREBAER RERAE
I SENBBREGR AR ([BBEE ) 2 BARERE - kg - BEEERD

RO EAREER S —K AR - BRI 1987 £ 1988 & 1989 F AL &
BEER AR AR ([BAA]) £ - 11988 2 1989 F HifE + AREEHEST
TEBRZEARGEE 980 F5 A ERK U BB EERBEEERA
(RS : 00480) * WK AARNEE 23 EHIZEIRAR] - X BBEHREME
K H M AERE 2T o

BREXEREEARATRRERE - PENMMEMNEES T(CER
BREMEZERIRE  WEER  EAE  BEREREEEMIRERR -

EFEEEEMREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F55 03



Signature
Projects

AERARMENEREHR

Hong Kong &%

Discovery Bay

Located on Lantau Island, Discovery Bay is the Group’s
flagship residential project comprising garden houses,
low-, mid- and high-rise developments, a 27-hole golf
course, a marina, two residents clubs, a manmade
beach, two international schools, two shopping malls and
a resort hotel.

LR ARUR L o 508 2 B ER(E IR E - A TEE
E B B SEYE 27ReRKHS  EEE - WE
ETEM - AEDE - MATBERER - MEBYES R —
REBBIE

Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong
BB EBE

Opened in March 2013, Auberge Discovery Bay Hong
Kong, the deluxe resort hotel on the waterfront of Yi Pak,

comprises 325 rooms and suites and a 16-metre tall
picture-perfect seaside pavilion ideal for wedding.

MR ZAEHNREERBEESMSEB/EN 2013 F
SAR%E - ERAEERAIDEEENER I LE 16K
B ABESNEBRELEY  ERITEENRES -

Approx. Total GFA
REEERY

974,200m?

"!ﬂ:l' =

No. of Rooms

FEEZE

325

Approx. Total GFA
HEEEED

s ] 26,000m:

Mainland China F B it

Dazhongli Shanghai
RpE b=

Located in Jingan district, the Dazhongli project is a
world-class mixed-use development comprising two
super Grade-A office towers, three luxury hotels /
serviced apartments and a prime retail mall. It is
scheduled for completion in phases from 2016.

HrReAhEREREAGNEAERYE - AMER
SEFAMAE ZRIREBREE / REALXER—E
=SRBYEISAK - FBFR 2016 FEDFEBEK -

City One Jiaxing
< 4 H 3 =
BEEX -HRE =H

City One is the first-ever residential project developed by
a Hong Kong-based developer in Jiaxing City, Zhejiang
Province. Located at the centre of the international business

district, it comprises seven 18-storey blocks, one nine-storey
duplex-on-duplex apartment block and 20 garden houses.

TREX-MRERNIARET aERAEERREH
EWETHR - URBEREERP L o ZEERAE BLE
1IBERAE - —ENAESNEREEAYER20ETHFIZ
AAPK °

Approx. Total Planned GFA
REPWEAREEED

323,000m

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

Approx. Total GFA
BEEEED

33,000m:

(plus approx. 30,000m? basement
car park

)
%*ﬁ-m 30,000 75 K it E(E =




Signature Projects
‘ BEREXMUEMNERIEH

Thailand Z=E

The Sukhothai Residences Bangkok
[ = PN
=0

Located next to The Sukhothai on South Sathorn Road,

The Sukhothai Residences is a 41-storey ultra luxury

condominium tower comprising 196 residential units.
The project was completed in April 2012.

The Sukhothai Residences fiZ2 South Sathorn Road _EHY
The Sukhothai %3& * E—EES41E - HREH-196EBAL
HERFEATAEEAE - IBER 2012644 AKT -

The Sukhothai Bangkok
[ = PN
=H

The Sukhothai is a world-renowned and award-

winning hotel in Central Bangkok, highly regarded by

international travellers for its unparalleled services and
facilities.

IR EATHLE The Sukhothai R AN4% - Eigmey
HEFNRSREEEIIRFIREHES

Approx. Total GFA
BIBEEEL

31,000m:

N

§

woma . 210

Approx. Total GFA
RIBEEED

40,400m2

Horizon Place Akasaka Tokyo

R

Acquired by the Group in 2010, the 94-unit Horizon Place Akasaka is located in
Akasaka, Minato-ku of Tokyo. It is well-connected with many of Tokyo's landmarks and
boasts a panoramic view of skyscrapers.

EEN 2010 FEE A 5 94 {EB LA Horizon Place Akasaka il A RS BB 7RIN @ i@
RAZEEZHE - LEERARAGHNERAAER °

Approx. Total Floor Area
BERLD

3,500m?

EFEEEEMREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F55
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Highlights of
the Year
FEAXRERHE

Apr 2013
2013F4 A May 5 A

The Group issued HK$560 The Group issued a total of
million in seven-year unlisted HK$238 million in unlisted notes
notes, and established a US$1 under the MTN programme for a
billion medium term note (MTN) tenor of seven years.

programme with listing status on
the Stock Exchange.

EEEITOEEABTTEFHZIFL

MHRE - BRRI 1I0EETZF
SRR 8l - WA B -

SEREHHPREABIRTRR
23BEATEFHRZIFLNERE

Aug 8 A

The Group won the tender for a lot in Kau To, Sha Tin, Hong Kong together
with Nan Fung Development Limited through a 50:50 joint venture
company for residential development. DANG, the Group’s industrial project

. e s PN in Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong, was put
= Wi W R AR A FIAIB50 | SOLHIEA 2 AL ARRNBEESDE OM%mmmmmi%wimmp
AR BB A B R ETRE - o ot
TR EAS SN T EAEHEE
DANG B - THiE R A -

Oct 10 R

The Group entered into a sale and purchase The Group won a lot located on Wu On Street,
agreement for the disposal of the interest in the Tuen Mun in Hong Kong for residential and retail
freehold land and building(s) located at Sathorn Road, development. Sumitomo Forestry Co., Ltd. participated
Bangkok, Thailand and completed the disposal in in the project in 2014 with a 25% interest.

March 2014. RS TS TPIIRE 2 R TR TS
EEH SN R 4 Sathorn Road Z ik A B #E 1t R o FRMERASHE2014 28 LTER - WG
RIEFETESE S - WN2014F3 AHEE ° 25% HEa °

Dec 12 A

35 remaining units of Amalfi, Discovery Bay, Hong
Kong were relaunched for sale and received a
favourable market response.

FRMSE R EMEERILISEEN - MHRE
IRAR

06 HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014



Highlights of the Year
FEREME

Jan 2014
201451 8

The Group completed the disposal of The Sentosa Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong received the “Best
Resort & Spa in Singapore. Guest Review Awards 2013” presented by Booking.com.
S [E)52 K B T IN The Sentosa Resort & Spa 225 ° 0= 2 5% Booking.com 82 [ Best Guest Review

Awards 2013 »

The latest phase of the development on Areas N1d and N1e of Discovery Bay
was named Positano.

The Sukhothai in Bangkok, Thailand

BSENId RENIleth @G — I RIBE EXmE A [UiR] - was named one of the “Top 100 World’s
Best Hotels 2013” by Institutional
Investor magazine.

A ZEE 228 The Sukhothai /&
Institutional Investor Zs&iZ AH A —K
[ Top 100 World’s Best Hotels 2013 ] ©

EFEEEEMREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F55
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Chairman’s
Statement
FEHRSE

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson

Chairman

TEEMB L

08 HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Over the years, we have strategically and prudently
rebalanced our asset portfolio and replenished our land
bank. High-end property projects with a lifestyle focus
have remained our core strength and competence.

SR EE-EAENNELEEREEEL
BRLIEE - BEAERRNSHNEIER N
BB RE A -

| am pleased to present the Annual Report of HKR International RAMAIREZEAEEEREEFR AT
Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the financial year REWBAR([E£E])#ZE2014 F£3 A31
ended 31 March 2014 (“the year”). HIEBEE ((FE ] FERE -
ANNUAL RESULTS FEXREA

The Group’s turnover of the continuing operations for the year was EEARFERERSEBNEEES

HK$4,125.1 million, as compared with HK$5,119.4 million (restated) 412511887 - EFAIRS51.194 BT
last year. Consolidated profit attributable to shareholders for the year (FF]) o REEBREE(LLRE G A8.346

was HK$834.6 million, compared with HK$998.3 million last year. BT - =F84A9.983E 8T - TFIRAF
Earnings per share were HK61.8 cents, compared with last year’s A61.88l - =FRAE73.981l - 2014

HK73.9 cents. As of 31 March 2014, the net asset value of the Group FIHA31H  £EMNEEFEA161.95918
stood at HK$16,195.9 million (HK$12 per share), as compared with B (ZR12%87T) - EF A A154.9288

HK$15,492 million (HK$11.5 per share) (restated) last year. TT (G 11.587T) (&FS) »

The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of EEGEBRAFRIRERPKREEGR 128
HK12 cents per share for the year. In 2012/2013, a total dividend fill - R 2012/2013 A E - EERRER
of HK8 cents per share was paid to shareholders. IREN2FREA/TREBI -
MARKET OVERVIEW Gk 2

The year under review was challenging, despite gradual and BERELEEERLSHE - QEFED
steady improvement in the United States (“US”) economy. AT PEE, -

During the year, the tightening measures implemented by the EAREE  BARRBNERNET LA
Hong Kong SAR Government continued to exert pressure BB S T AYWEMEXE - FEMH
on the Hong Kong property market. The residential market It B RE @ BABRERFE
was particularly affected, with transaction volumes declining BRRERETE °

substantially though prices have remained stable.

EFEEEEMREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F55 09



Chairman’s Statement
FERE

As for Mainland China, the Central Government continued with
its prudent fiscal policies for building a resilient and growth-
oriented economy. It also implemented property sector control
initiatives for establishing a healthy and sustainable market.
Economic conditions in Asian countries such as Thailand, Japan
and Singapore during the year were mixed, and we accordingly
adjusted our development and business strategy.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group has a very established business base in Hong Kong
and is one of the few Hong Kong developers that has diversified
its investment and land bank across Asia, including Hong Kong,
Mainland China, Thailand and Japan. Over the years, we have
strategically and prudently rebalanced our asset portfolio and
replenished our land bank. High-end property projects with a

lifestyle focus have remained our core strength and competence.

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

During the year, the sales launch of the remaining units of Amalfi
of Discovery Bay received a positive and enthusiastic response.
Over 99% of the units had been sold.

The sales launch of Positano of Discovery Bay commenced in
June 2014,

The pre-sales launch of DANG in June 2013 was met with an
overwhelming market response.

In Shanghai, construction works for the Dazhongli project
are progressing well in stages. The project is scheduled for
completion in phases from 2016.

The pre-sales launch of City One in Jiaxing City, Zhejiang

Province, is expected to commence in the third quarter of 2014,
and the whole project is planned for completion in early 2016.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

REIAM T E - P REBFEERETTRIER
FIBIRER - AR BB 1 R AT 5 AEE
RHEHE - R EREMEM ISR TR
R BIUBFEMISEERNTS - &
AERE - DMNBEIZRINZRE - AR
R EBESNRKRIREB TR - KEE
T AR P 4t 8 B TR % SE T R

£35S

SEEFEEERNEHER L2
BETMLE - BREEE - PEAM
FE R ARNEEZ TR ERE kit
RENEEERAZ— - 2FR > &6
—HERRMBEMEREEHS A7
TR o BELERRN SR EIER
DREMANZOEZRENRE -

E3 2

EAERE MR PR BT BRI
B IIERERT o 1818 90% K BT
BAEEL, -

WS E IR ] R2014 456 ARE -

DANGA2013F 6 HFIRTRE » TG EIE
HIERE o

S RPEEEMBRETRRIES B
17 EEIRME - FZIE B TEET 2016 F iR
DIEERET -

LA RETHEBESE « HigEmatig
R2014FE=FEMKTEE - BEEE
SFEIR 2016 FEFET o



ACQUISITIONS & DISPOSALS

In August 2013, the Group together with Nan Fung Development
Limited through a 50:50 joint venture won the tender for a lot in
Kau To, Sha Tin for a consideration of HK$1,220 million.

In October 2013, the Group won the tender for a parcel of
government land located at Wu On Street, Tuen Mun for a
consideration of HK$551 million. Sumitomo Forestry Co., Ltd. is
participating in the project as our partner.

In April 2014, the Group, through an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, acquired a 30-floor en-bloc residential building, Block
16 of Jin Du Yuan, located in Changning District, Shanghai for a
consideration of RMB588.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$729.7 million) at an auction. The property is held for
investment purpose.

During the year, we disposed of the freehold land and building(s)
located at Sathorn Road in Bangkok as well as the land

and buildings where The Sentosa Resort & Spa is located in
Singapore. We believe that these strategic disposals have
enabled us to realise our investment with attractive returns. These
disposals of non-core assets also increased the working capital of
the Group and enhanced our cash flow.

Positano
DiEa

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

IR R L&

M20134 8 A  EEHEMEEREARAA
FEB—MEI&R50 : 50k PIERE 2B ERF] -
LA 12 2 BB TTHRERS — R H
SR o

M2013F 107 » £ELAS51EBTHNRE
A — IR AL AT PSR L B RO BT 4
FRMESNSHERLEZIER - KA
SEMEERMY -

MR2014F 4 R - &EEFER—EEEL2ER
ERMBARIAAR5.8821F T (HBER
A 7.297 BT HRE - REEE® LRE
R EEMRER - BR30EHEHE
165 EERNE - ZYERBFHIERE
FAi o

EAFE - EBHEMNR 24 Sathorn
Road A5k A BHE L RIEF + DARFTINE
The Sentosa Resort & Spafiz iz #) + i K18
F o RMRBAE  ZEXRBUELEREET

RIRS|HIEEEIHR - HEZSIFRLEE
MENMEENEEES RIEABRERE
IKFE o

EFEEEEMREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F55
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Chairman’s Statement
FRERE

OUTLOOK

Looking at 2014, we remain cautious about the global economic
outlook and expect that the world economy will record modest
growth and recover at a slow and steady rate.

As a global financial centre, Hong Kong is clearly not immune
from the challenges faced by the world’s major economies. It is
expected that the overall Hong Kong economy will register only
moderate growth and the local property market will continue to
be influenced by the Hong Kong SAR Government’s market-
stabilising measures. The Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the prospects for the Hong Kong residential market.

In Mainland China, the Central Government has implemented
reforms for land, finance and tax which are expected to promote
more sustainable growth in the medium- to long-term. Some

of the initiatives on credit tightening, price control and home
purchase restrictions are unlikely to be withdrawn in the short run.
As the market has increasing concern about the downside risk
of Mainland China’s economic growth in 2014 and beyond, we
will continue with caution to identify investment opportunities and
focus on Yangtze River Delta area where we have already had
presence.

Positano

Seaside Pavilion
BEBE it 52

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

fRE

R 2014F - EEERIE BRI =FEE
REFE - WIBHMR BB IS ESB ML K -
WIEISTE1EPE ©

ERENERPL - BERARBEB Y
REBLEGATEEROS - B
mERgEEERMNER - MAYETS
BB EEFRBTNETIREE
T SEHBEBEEMHAIREREE

FERBER - P REUTPTHETTE LM -
AR K iS5 - FREHE R RS A
A FHEREIR R o SO FATEITHIE
B2 - ERAZENEBRSSEMmEA
RIEHIREE - TIHE N 2014 F RIAR
BN AEIE R IR ER IS -
SESREZIRNSHKABENRERS
THHNETEREECERBNR=A
g o




Moving forward, we see challenges from moderate growth in
Hong Kong economy partly due to the cooling measures taken
by the policy makers, possible slowdown of Mainland China’s
economic growth and a looming stagnant economic recovery
of the US and European countries. The Group will continue to
rebalance its assets by phasing out selected non-core property
assets or businesses. We, with a view to managing risks as well
as fostering growth, will also prudently maintain a healthy financial
position and good liquidity without undermining our capital
structure to provide renewable growth for the Group and the
benefits of its shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to all members of the Board of Directors for their
leadership and guidance; our business partners for their trust; our
shareholders for their support; and our staff for their commitment,
teamwork and diligence.

Waﬂ—"“‘x

CHA Mou Sing Payson
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 June 2014

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

REARK » REBBFHEITHR TS AE
IR E - SERHABEE R BRMIE
£ IR BRI IE R A REIAR
ARBEBEREEEREE - ERAER
HEREERE - SESEEEREE -
BTHERD RO MEREERET -
BANBEZEFIRRLREER - R
ETFERENERGERET  BIRMER
RENMHBIMALEERDE - SEE
TWORFFEE R - RICRAER AN E

&
AAFEHUME - ROBHEBEED
BERIEDE| - RBBEESE - SRR
B AR B TAIBIU I - B
AEETEE S o

8 szkft

BHE
S
20144 6 A 25 HRE#
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Managing Director’s
Operations Review
EEHAKEEKOEE

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

BlrmErEsEnsEBERRK L
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Managing Director’s Operations Review

ERRAKEXBOE

Through acquisitions and disposals, we continued to
optimise our asset portfolio, prudently built up our land
bank and constantly looked for opportunities to expand

our business.

S B LLE - EEELE
 THESKEHRREKE

+ b frE

In 2013, the economies of Asia continued to gain momentum

in tandem with the gradual recovery of the global economy.
Mainland China met its GDP growth target of 7.7% and Japan
showed improved performance on the back of Abenomics, while
Hong Kong and Thailand achieved moderate growth. Although
tightening measures of the governments of Mainland China and
Hong Kong weighed down residential property market activities,
commercial property markets remained stable thanks to the
gradual improvement in business conditions and the global
economy.

In Hong Kong, the Group’s core market, cooling measures
aimed at the property market took effect in early 2013, and the
Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance went into full
operation in April 2013. Both affected market activities to a certain
extent during the year, including sales of our projects in
Discovery Bay.

The Group closely monitored market conditions, the business
environment and regulations in the various markets where we
operate. Through acquisitions and disposals, we continued to
optimise our asset portfolio, prudently built up our land bank and
constantly looked for opportunities to expand our business.

EHEE  F

B ih i 7T

BEEIRBRIC IR A E R - DNEEBER
2013 FHEMLT - REIANH A R A £ ELE
BEEFH77%EREE - B EERE
OEEY MG NE - MBEBMRRL
EAPRAE R o @BE P B AR EBBAT
HEOWEEREERIMEEWETSEE -
HEXEREFRBEREIREEZ TSNS
R AV ETISDERIET -

BERAREENZOTS - R2013FF9H
ITEHEMET AIPERFEHE - M1 L2013 4 A
2EERA—FEEWEHESIEN) - 5

HABFANMSEREN —TEHE 2

FEEERREEEHEE -

SEEZYERSERETSNTR - &
BIRIRNOED - LFBEBRERHE - #
BECEEMAS  FROHTIIORE
VHRESEREGHRES -

EFEEEEMREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F55
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Managing Director’s Operations Review
EEHKIERSOE

In April 2013, the Group took advantage of a suitable window in
the debt market by successfully issuing HK$560 million in seven-
year unlisted notes and establishing a US$1 billion medium term
note programme (“MTN programsmme”) with listing status on the
Stock Exchange. A total of HK$238 million in seven-year unlisted
notes was issued in May 2013 under the MTN programme.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT &
INVESTMENT

The core business of the Group is property development and
investment with a focus on prestigious high-end projects. During
the year, the Group added two lots to its land bank in Hong Kong
through government tenders. Besides, we continued to maintain
a balanced portfolio of investment properties, which provided the
Group with a stable stream of rental income.

HONG KONG
Discovery Bay

Discovery Bay, a pioneering resort-style residential project with
integrated community, leisure and commercial facilities, is the
Group’s flagship project in Hong Kong. Over the years, the Group
has been optimising the project’s facilities and offerings. With

Amalfi Positano
IR 132

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

R2013F 4 A - KEEETEFMISHH

BB - KINEITE.6 BT T
LR - BRI 10EETZFHE
BETEI ([P EAZIRRTE]) - WHREEARRFT £
e R2013F5 A - EEREZEFHE
Bt BT R 238 AL L FERZIEL
MR -

MEZRBRRE

SENZOERBAMERRLIRE - &
IRAERHIAR - EAFE  £EHEB
SHEBFHE - REES T EENIE
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LR EMEES  REBHEREBENE
FUA -

E8
s
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Managing Director’s Operations Review

the recent addition of a new resort hotel, Auberge Discovery Bay
Hong Kong, Discovery Bay has become an even more popular
leisure destination. The new DB North inclined lifts, with a structure
measuring about 60 metres in length and rising to the height

of a 10-storey building, is the latest landmark in Discovery Bay.
Boasting a stunning panoramic view of Yi Pak Bay, it is an enticing
addition to Discovery Bay’s resort-like lifestyle.

Amalfi & Positano, Discovery Bay

The remaining units of Amalfi of Discovery Bay were relaunched
in December 2013, according to the requirements of the
Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance, and received
a favourable response. As of 31 March 2014, 160 out of the total
164 units of Amalfi were sold. Subsequent to the year-end, three
more units were sold. This luxurious development, with its cutting
edge design and spectacular views, has achieved an average
selling price of approximately HK$10,400 per square foot gross
floor area (“GFA”).

Sales of Positano of Discovery Bay, which is named after a coastal
town in southern Italy, commenced in June 2014. Surrounded by
ample greenery, the project comprises 102 duplex units with a
total GFA of approximately 187,700 square feet.

ERRAKREXBEEEA

REEERE - MREKAEXBRE
RERSHD o FERCRY R AL RE T (18
BERL60K  AJAE10ESEEMNS
B)RBSENFIE - B R —
HEERER  UHFHAEERESER
BEKH -

=& EIR |NR%E —HEMDR2013F
12 BRI —FEEVMEHERIDETE
EHEE - MIBERERL - R2014F 3 A
318 - R [164EE M EE L 1601E -
WHFEREBE L = ([EBEA - ZxER
RIEE ZABAKGTEAESE - 5@
EEEERELNA10,400787T °

g (iR | WEARME R — @A
WA % - MEE SRGIRE - [1HR]

102 EE R KEMHERK - REEmEBEN A
187,700 FF R  ZIEB B 2014 F 6 A
FE -

Positano
s
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Managing Director’s Operations Review
EEHKIERSOE

DB Plaza, D’Deck & DB North Plaza, Discovery Bay

DB Plaza, with its wide array of shops and the alfresco dining
hotspot D’Deck, remains the social and entertainment hub of
Discovery Bay. As of 31 March 2014, DB Plaza had achieved an
occupancy rate of 97%. With intensified promotional efforts, DB
North Plaza had improved the occupancy rate to 80% as of 31
March 2014. DB Plaza and DB North Plaza continued to generate
steady income for the Group.

The Group has a 50% interest in Discovery Bay.

DANG6, Tsuen Wan

DANG is a 20-storey industrial building redeveloped by the
Group in Tsuen Wan, with a total GFA of approximately 93,600
square feet. Units of DAN6G were put on the market in June 2013
and received keen interest from both end-users and investors
alike. About 90% of the units were sold at an average price

of approximately HK$5,900 per square foot GFA. The project
received its Occupation Permit in April 2014 and is targeted to be
handed over in the third quarter of 2014.

D’Deck

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014
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Kap Pin Long, Sai Kung

The Kap Pin Long site in Sai Kung will be developed into an
idyllic garden house. Site formation works and foundation
works commenced in the third quarter of 2013 with a targeted
completion in the second half of 2016.

Kau To, Sha Tin

In August 2013, the Group acquired a lot in Kau To, Sha Tin
together with Nan Fung Development Limited through a 50:50
joint venture company for a consideration of HK$1,220 million.
The project, which is situated in a prestigious high-end residential
district, will provide luxurious houses and quality low-rise
apartment units.

Wu On Street, Tuen Mun

The Group won the bid for a residential lot on Wu On Street, Tuen
Mun in a government tender for a consideration of HK$551 million
in October 2013. The site will be developed into a residential
block providing premium quality apartment units with a retail
shop podium. Sumitomo Forestry Co., Ltd., a leading Japanese
company manufacturing wooden custom-made houses and
trading in wooden building materials, participated in the project
in 2014 with a 25% interest. Foundation works are expected to
commence in the second half of 2014.

DANG

DB North Plaza
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Other Investment Properties

The Group’s two investment properties, namely West Gate
Tower in Cheung Sha Wan and CDW Building in Tsuen Wan,
recorded average occupancy rates of 97% and 85% respectively
during the year, creating stable rental income for the Group. The
Group is looking into options for unleashing the potential of these
properties and maximising their revenue contribution.

The 11 remaining car parking spaces (out of a total of 480 car
parking spaces) at Coastal Skyline, Tung Chung were sold in April
2013. The Group has a 31% interest in Coastal Skyline.

MAINLAND CHINA
Dazhongli Project, Shanghai

The Dazhongli project currently under construction in Shanghai
will be a world-class mixed-use development comprising two
super Grade-A office towers, three luxury hotels / serviced
apartments, a high-end retail mall and ample car parking spaces
when completed in phases from 2016. The project has a planned
GFA of approximately 323,000 square metres.

Artist’s impression of the Dazhongli project
BERETHATEIER
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Strategically located on Nanjing Xi Lu at a prime location in
Shanghai’s dynamic centre for business and retail activities, the
Dazhongli project enjoys superb connectivity with key metro lines
and major transport hubs. These include metro line 2, which is in
operation connecting the two international airports, and metro lines
12 and 13, which are currently under construction. The project is
poised to become a landmark development in Shanghai and one of
the city’s most sought-after commercial and leisure properties.

Construction of the project is progressing well. The superstructure
for the 250-metre-high office tower is underway and targeted for
completion by the end of 2014. The superstructure of the low-rise
retail block abutting Nanjing Xi Lu is in progress and will top out in
mid-2014.

The Dazhongli project is jointly owned and developed by the
Group and Swire Properties Limited on a 50:50 basis.

City One, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province

City One is the first-ever project by a Hong Kong-based developer
in Jiaxing and the Group’s signature project in the Yangtze River
Delta area. Located at the centre of the international business
district and close to a 53-hectare wetland park, this residential
project received an enthusiastic response from the public when

the show flats and sales office were opened in April 2014.

Artist’s impression of City One Sales office of City One
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The pre-sales launch is expected in the third quarter of 2014.
The project comprises around 600 units in seven 18-storey
blocks, one nine-storey duplex-on-duplex apartment block

and 20 garden houses with a maximum above-ground GFA of
approximately 83,000 square metres. Foundation works were
completed, and work on the superstructure commenced in July
2013. All buildings will be topped out by July 2014, and the entire
project is planned for completion in early 2016.

The Exchange, Tianjin

The Exchange, the Group’s 15%-owned investment property in
Tianjin with a total GFA of over 152,000 square metres, continued
to generate stable rental income. During the year, the average
occupancy rates of the retail mall, two Grade-A office towers and
the 5-star hotel were 99%, 98% and 69% respectively.

Jin Du Yuan, Shanghai

Subsequent to the year-end in April 2014, the Group through

an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary acquired a 30-floor en-bloc
residential building, Block 16 of Jin Du Yuan, located in Changning
District, Shanghai for a consideration of RMB588.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$729.7 million) at an auction. The
property, comprising 120 units with a total GFA of approximately
21,700 square metres, is held for investment purpose.

VbR

-ll
The Exchange
REES

Jin Du Yuan
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THAILAND Z=

The Sukhothai Residences, Bangkok £ A The Sukhothai Residences

As of 31 March 2014, 161 units of the 196-unit ultra luxury R2014F3 A31 B » fiR S 4 Sathorn
condominium tower located at Sathorn Road in Bangkok had Road * # B 196 AEMHWBAREATR
been sold. Over 95% of the sold units have completed the FEREDEH 161 {EEAL - BB 95% K
ownership transfer. EEHBUETRERERETFE -
Sathorn Road, Bangkok £ 4 Sathorn Road

Further to the sale and purchase agreement entered in October EEMEREAIEREHEB—HEERT
20183, the Group together with its Thai partner (via a joint venture R2013F 10 AR BEE B - L2014
company) completed the disposal of the interest in the freehold 3 AT BRI £ A Sathorn RoadAJ7K

land and building(s) located at Sathorn Road, Bangkok in March ABRE T MIEF 2R - 8K(E 18.691
2014. The total consideration of THB1,869.1 million (equivalent to EEG EENL 4467 BB L) B -
approximately HK$446.7 million) was duly received.

Wireless Road, Bangkok £ & Wireless Road

Acquired in 2010, the Group’s other freehold property at Wireless E B 2010 F A —IBRIN 24 Wireless
Road, Bangkok with a site area of approximately 12,600 square Road * A2 B TEI #5479 12,600F 5 KHI5K A
metres remains part of our land bank. The master planning for the BET#WES T E®E - sZBE EE

project is progressing on schedule. | FNHERETT o
The Group holds a 49% interest in both the Sathorn Road and £ B9 BII#F A Sathorn Road & Wireless
Wireless Road projects. Road T B 49% xS ©

The Sukhothai Residences
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JAPAN

Horizon Place Akasaka (a 94-unit high-rise block in Akasaka) and
Chelsea Garden (a 17-unit low-rise apartment block in Hiroo) are
two residential properties owned by the Group in the central area
of Tokyo. As of 31 March 2014, these properties had achieved
occupancy rates of 91% and 94% respectively. Subsequent

to the year-end in June 2014, Chelsea Garden was sold to an
independent third party at a consideration of JPY3,465.6 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$259.9 million).

During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the disposal of 49% interest in the underlying

land to and reached a joint venture agreement with a reputable
Japanese developer, Nomura Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.,
to redevelop the site at Roppongi 4 Chome (formerly Homat Sun)
into a premium residential development for sale to maximise the
potential of the site. It is situated at one of Tokyo’s most sought-
after addresses and is in close proximity to the business, culture
and entertainment hubs of Roppongi Hills and Tokyo Midtown.
The project is scheduled for completion in 2017.

The Group acquired Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku, a 13-storey office
building conveniently located in the heart of Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo,
in March 2013. The property had achieved an occupancy rate of
92% as of 31 March 2014.

Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014
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The Group holds a residential plot located at Niseko, Hokkaido
near the Niseko Annupuri ski village, with a total site area of
approximately 60,700 square metres, as land bank. Master
planning is currently underway.

Except for Chelsea Garden and the Roppongi 4 Chome site, in
which the Group has a 20% and 51% interest respectively, the
other properties and projects are 100% owned by the Group.

SERVICES PROVIDED

Transport services in Discovery Bay, including ferry, land transport
and tunnel services, are operated by the Group’s subsidiaries.
Challenges to this business included manpower shortages

(an industry-wide issue) and rising labour costs due to higher
remuneration packages for retaining existing staff and attracting
suitable candidates. Our subsidiaries are taking measures

to further improve the efficiency of these operations while
maintaining a high standard of service. The Group’s property
management service companies in Discovery Bay and other
locations continued to operate well during the year.

The four clubs in Discovery Bay, namely Discovery Bay Golf Club,
Discovery Bay Marina Club, Discovery Bay Recreation Club and Club

Discovery Bay Golf Club Discovery Bay Marina Club
hREEEE WL e
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Siena, recorded a moderate increase in turnover during the year.
The clubs are undergoing various upgrades with the aim of providing
members and guests the best possible facilities and services.

The Group has a 50% interest in these service providers and clubs
in Discovery Bay.

HOSPITALITY

HONG KONG
Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong

The 325-room Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong (“Auberge
DB”) commenced operation in March 2013 and achieved an
average occupancy rate of about 57% in the first year. The
resort hotel has a strong appeal to international and domestic
leisure travellers. Events during the year included wedding
banquets, corporate meetings, residential seminars, incentive
outings and gala events, functions for airline-related businesses
and exhibitions. With a first-of-its-kind seaside pavilion and
supplementary wedding services, Auberge DB is especially
popular for wedding banquets and has become the venue of
choice for newlyweds.

Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong
E
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As a result of its outstanding services, Auberge DB achieved a
number of industry awards in its first year of operation. Among
these were the Best Guest Review Awards 2013 by Booking.com,
The Marketing Events Awards 2013 — Best Venue Experience
Silver Award by Marketing Events magazine, and ESDLife Bridal
Awards 2013 — Best New Hotel Wedding Banquet by ESDLIife.

The Group has a 50% interest in Auberge DB.

THAILAND
The Sukhothai

In Bangkok, the market has been much more competitive due
to the opening of new hotels. In addition to the increase in hotel
rooms, the political unrest since November 2013 has affected
tourist arrivals. The average occupancy rate of The Sukhothai for
the year was 58%.

The Sukhothai was selected as one of the Top 100 World’s
Best Hotels 2013 by Institutional Investor magazine. La Scala

ERRAKEXBEEEA
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restaurant was also named one of the Asia’s Top 500 Finest
Restaurants by The Miele Guide 2013.

The Sukhothai is 100% owned by the Group.

SINGAPORE
The Sentosa Resort & Spa

In August 2013, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreements to dispose of the lands and buildings where The
Sentosa Resort & Spa is located. All conditions set out in the
agreements have been fulfilled, and the disposal was completed
on 28 January 2014.

HEALTHCARE

GenRx Holdings Limited (“GenRx”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, operates a comprehensive healthcare service network
comprising diabetic and cardiovascular centres, cancer centres,
an imaging centre, dental clinics, Chinese medicine centres and
multi-specialty outpatient centres in Hong Kong, Macau and
Manila. In addition to walk-in patients, they serve a large number
of corporate clients for the healthcare needs of employees and
their families.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014
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The Healthway clinic chain in the Philippines recorded growth
in patient volume and revenue during the year. Healthway has
launched a new product, the MEDI-Access HealthWallet, which is
a prepaid, reloadable and shareable health card with privileges that
include access to and discounts at affiliated hospitals and clinics.

GenRx is also working on establishing a breakthrough presence
in Mainland China’s fast-growing healthcare market.

Except for dental clinics and diabetic and cardiovascular centres
that involve third party interests of 43% and 20% respectively,
other businesses under GenRx are 100% owned by the Group.

MANUFACTURING (Discontinued)

Further to the closure of the Mainland China plant in May 2013,
the Group completely relinquished its sanitaryware manufacturing
business by closing down the plant in the United Kingdom in
December 2013.

HANISON

Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (“Hanison”) together
with its subsidiaries is the Group’s 49%-owned subsidiary group
engaged primarily in the construction business, interior and
renovation business, supply and installation of building materials,
property investment and development, provision of property
agency and management services, and sale of health products.
Hanison’s consolidated turnover during the year was HK$1,626.5
million, 4.6% higher than HK$1,554.5 million of last year. Net
profit was HK$164 million, as compared with HK$185.2 million
last year. The gain on change in fair value of investment properties
dropped and the revenue generated from the sales of the property
development projects declined as compared with last year. In

a competitive operating environment, Hanison will continue to
strengthen its core businesses in order to sustain growth.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 March 2014, the Group had a total of 3,316 employees
in Hong Kong, Mainland China and overseas.
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The Group is committed to promoting a harmonious working
environment as well as encouraging work-life balance and a
family-caring culture. Subsequent to the year-end in May 2014,
we were honoured to be named as a Family-Friendly Employer
2013/2014 by the Family Council. During the year, we were

also one of the very few companies to receive a Certificate of
Recognition from Community Business for repeated participation
in Work-life Balance Week.

In October 2013, we completed a strategic company re-
organisation, which resulted in a new functional reporting
structure that better reflects our changing business needs. This
re-organisation exercise brought people closer together and has
strengthened the internal alignment and communication among key
stakeholders. The Group also continued to reinforce its corporate
PRI’DE values (i.e. Pioneer, Respect, Innovation, Integrity,
Devotion and Excellence) through initiatives such as the annual
PRI’DE Outstanding Employee Awards, a revamped employee
orientation programme and other staff engagement activities.

The Group continued to invest in talent development at all levels.
Selected executives participated in an executive education

programme organised by a prestigious university, while others
made use of a customised 360° feedback tool to better identify
development needs. For general and operations staff, on-going

Senior Staff Connect 2014
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programmes were held to address development needs in areas
such as customer service and supervisory skills. In addition, we
launched customised training programmes that tie in closely with
departmental business needs.

To attract talent, the Group not only ensures remuneration is
competitive against the market but also takes part in various
recruitment fairs and brand rejuvenation exercises. With its
longstanding presence on Lantau Island via the Group’s

flagship project in Discovery Bay, the Group joined the Lantau
Development Alliance in 2013 to offer employment opportunities
for residents in the area and to contribute to the local community.

The Group is also preparing for its future human resources needs
by launching an important new infrastructure development project
— the HR Information System — in phases during the year ahead.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

We continuously build on our information technology systems

to improve work efficiency and quality. To improve the quality
control process of construction projects, the Defect Tracking
System v.2.0 underwent a major upgrade with more user-friendly
functions and features added. It is now supporting the latest
Android and iOS tablet devices.
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Managing Director’s Operations Review
EEHKIERSOE

In order to improve end-user support and response times, the
eHelpdesk system was upgraded with the addition of workflows
such as request submissions, approvals, job assignments and
completion notifications.

As part of the Group’s go-green initiatives, the majority of our
servers have been migrated to the virtualisation platform, resulting
in a 21% savings in power consumption.

CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group continued its contributions to the community through a
wide range of volunteer and sponsorship initiatives during the year.

The Group’s corporate volunteer team, HKR Care & Share,
joined with the Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation, Cha Duk
Chang Children’s Cantonese Opera Association and T.W.G.Hs
Residential Child Care Services to pursue volunteer activities,
including a Cantonese Opera Workshop and a Christmas party
for underprivileged children. Staff and families were encouraged
to participate in these programmes.

C‘q s m R K0

Introduction to Cantonese Opera Workshop
EREREBTIEY

BEHAE
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Managing Director’s Operations Review

As a keen supporter of the arts and culture, the Group sponsored
the performance of Maria Joao Pires with the Scottish Chamber
Orchestra in February 2014 at the 42" Hong Kong Arts Festival.

To promote a more caring and harmonious community in
Discovery Bay, the Group continued to fund various community
events organised for residents by charitable organisations. Many
residents have become enthusiastic volunteers in serving the
Discovery Bay and its neighbouring communities.

The Group was awarded the “5 Years Plus Caring Company”
logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service, recognising
our good corporate citizenship and sincere commitment to social
responsibilities.

OUTLOOK

In the first half of 2014 the global economy continued to show
signs of improvement, particularly in the US where housing prices
were on the rise, unemployment figures were dropping, and the
stimulus programme gradually scaled back by the US Federal
Reserve. The economy in the Eurozone during this period also
recovered, although gradually.

ERRAKEXBOE

SEARLTFRENVEERE - BB E
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Community event in Discovery Bay
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The Group is cautiously prudent about the economy and
operating environment in the markets where we have a presence.
Growth is expected to level off in Mainland China but urbanisation
and infrastructure investment may sustain moderate growth. We
expect asset prices to remain stable, especially in first tier cities,
as market demand holds. In Hong Kong, the anticipation of US
tapering and increases in borrowing rates could affect market
sentiment but we do not expect a significant correction of asset
prices in the near term. Market demand will likely remain intact
with the low interest and unemployment rates.

For our core property development and investment business,
the Group will continue to build up its land bank and pursue
existing and new projects. We are confident in the property
market in our core market of Hong Kong for the medium- to long-
term, including Lantau Island whose development potential was
recognised in the 2014 Policy Address. The Group will capitalise
on our background and experience in this part of Hong Kong in
order to grasp new development opportunities there.

In our hospitality business, the Group’s hotels will continue to
enhance their services in order to attract tourists and capture
business from the rise in tourist arrivals. Auberge DB will

strengthen its position as a one-of-a-kind vacation destination

KEHREBAETIZHEENERE
REFERENMOEE - BHPERHH
KERASA PTIAR - BRERYE R BT BB Y
RENGEEREFIRTIER - RIFFAME
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Tai Pak Beach
REEDR
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in Hong Kong and further develop the wedding business with its
unique pavilion offering and supplementary services.

The Group also sees potential in the healthcare business.
Through GenRx, the Group will keep an eye on new markets while
enhancing the service quality and business performance of its
current operations.

Capitalising on our strong management team and healthy
financial position, the Group will continue to explore new ventures
cautiously to achieve long-term sustainable growth.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our Board
of Directors for their guidance, our business partners for their
unfailing support and our staff for their whole-hearted dedication
and efforts throughout the year.

=

M(h/gw\_

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson
BB E

Chairman
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Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham
EOAEE

Executive Director

HITEF

The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI
BEEEE

Non-executive Director
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Board of Directors
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Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry
TEXRERL HRAEEL

Non-executive Director Independent Non-executive Director

HHITEE BUHNTEE

Dr CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
REREL RKFRIELE

Independent Non-executive Director Independent Non-executive Director

BUIFHNTEE BUHFNTEE

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta Dr QIN Xiao
[ELEISE REEET

Independent Non-executive Director Independent Non-executive Director

BUIFHNTEE BUHNTEE
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Biographical Details
of Directors
EECREE

CHAIRMAN X /&

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson ur, pssc (Hons), aged 71, was appointed Executive Director in 1989 and
the Chairman on 15 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee and a director

of some subsidiaries of the Company. Mr CHA has over 45 years extensive experience in property
development and investment. He is the chairman and non-executive director (“NED”) of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (“Hanison”), the executive chairman of Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”),

an independent non-executive director (“INED”) of each of New World Development Company Limited
(“NWD”), Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited being manager of Champion Real Estate Investment
Trust (“CREIT”) and Hongkong International Theme Parks Limited. Hanison, NWD and CREIT are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr CHA resigned as a director of
Asia Television Limited in March 2014. He is a member of One Country Two Systems Research Institute
Limited, a governing board member of China-United States Exchange Foundation, a board member of
the Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong, the chairman of Qiu Shi Science & Technologies
Foundation, a trustee of Sang Ma Trust Fund and an honorary trustee of Oregon State University
Foundation. Mr CHA is a brother of Ms Madeline WONG, Mr Victor CHA and Mr Johnson CHA who are
also Directors. He is also a director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”) and LBJ Regents
Limited (“LBJ Regents”), both are substantial shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and together whose interests in the Company represent the
substantial interests of the Cha Family in the Company.

BN SE A U, DSSc (Hons) » 7155 R 1989 F LR E AR AT TES » WH 200745 415 AHERAT
IFE o BNAARIIREEEG VIR EETHEBARICES - EAAEYEZRELRE A ABEA4SFLEEL
5 o HAEBAIRIERARAR ([HE ) c EFERIFNTEF(IERE]) BHEEERERAT (BN 2
WITERE - T RBERERAR((HER]) EEELEEERE (BE)BRAA (ZAAABEEEET(TED
ZEBAN)REABRBRTBRLERRARZEBLIFNTES ([BE]) - s  FtARTEYREBHER S
FIEMRAR ([BRFT]) £« BERAER2014F 3 AT LEMNERERARES 2B - KA BEMHiFEF
DERARIZKE PEIGESSEESKE  FEHERRBCLE KERHES SR BEEME
SEETAURBIMMIABESCSLEITA BT ATEFEL LIS ERRAEEREHELEEZ
R MEHEKNARZESE o #1745 CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited ([ CCM Trust ) & LBJ Regents Limited ([LBJ
Regents]) 7EE * MRAAIREZSFLBHEKRHIEXNVBEEARFEERREN AR R BEERARERK
BRARRZ EEfgEn o
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DEPUTY CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOREI X EHRESHAKHE

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor Ba, MBa, aged 64, was appointed Executive Director in 1989, the
Managing Director in September 2001, the Deputy Chairman on 15 May 2007 and a member of

the remuneration committee on 2 December 2004. He is also a director of some subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr CHA is responsible for the overall and day-to-day management of the Group. He has over
35 years experience in real estate development and textile manufacturing. Mr CHA is an INED of SOHO
China Limited and an alternate INED of NWD, both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange, a NED
of Mingly and a director of United Nigerian Textiles Limited (“UNTL”) (formerly listed on the Nigerian Stock
Exchange). He is a member of the board of trustees of The Better Hong Kong Foundation (“BHKF”). Mr
CHA is a brother of Ms Madeline WONG, Mr Payson CHA and Mr Johnson CHA who are also Directors.

B S A MBA - 6455 - W1980 F R AR RRMITES - WH 2001 F9 AHEESEELE - ER
2007 F5 A 15 BHEARFIBITE RN 2004 F 12 A2 AHEHFMEEEKE - BINARAGTETHBARZ
EX -EAABHAEASECRERAEEELE BRBHERRAKGBBEEREASS FLR - BXER
SOHOHEBR ARG 2 BE « R 2 IRMHEE (ZMR A IR ™) « & 712 3E$E & United Nigerian
Textiles Limited ([UNTLD (ERAREFTESFR A LT 2ES - RABSPRETES ([BREHES ]2
EHAZREERE - EAEATEXRLLIREHBELEZBREMBREZ R  BEHAAQARIZES -

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #{T&®%=

Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham rcra, aged 68, was appointed Executive Director in 1994 and

is also a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. He has been serving in the Group since 1978
and is now the head of finance and group operations overseeing the Group’s finance, accounting, tax,
insurance, information technology and hospitality functions together with all operating units in Discovery
Bay. Mr CHUNG is a certified public accountant, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPAs”) and an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales (“ICAs”). He has over 40 years extensive experience in financial management and property
development in Hong Kong.

B HEE Fora - 685% - W19 EREFARRRNITES  MAKATNETHELATZES - 551978
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Mr TANG Moon Wah B4 (arch studies), BArch, aged 60, was appointed Executive Director in December
2004 and is also a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. He has been serving in the Group
since 1985 and is now the head of group projects responsible for project management of real estate
development in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and Asia-Pacific and for oversight
of master planning, conceptual and major designs and technical advice on acquisitions. Mr TANG has
over 35 years extensive experience in property development. He is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects and has been an Authorised Person and Registered Architect since 1982 and 1991
respectively.

B0 im T 5t A BA (4rch Studies), BArch * B0 5% + A 2004 F 12 BEZEARARIRITES - MALRRETFHEA
AlZEE - A 1985 FRENAEERY - BASEHEREATEEREE  PEARLNBR ([HE]) REX
BEEMEFRCEEEE  UREBWEEE CERE B3  TERFEEMER - MaxEnmERRER
FEEASSFEELR - FADSEEMBSERGE WA 1982 F KX 1091 FHEH BIK BB B T MEEMAR
AT R EsEam o

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS }E#{TE %=

The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI cawv, cvo, Gss, 0Bk, JP, aged 75, joined the Board in
1989 and was re-designated as Non-executive Director in June 2005. He is a senior partner of King &
Wood Mallesons. Mr ARCULLI is an INED of Hang Lung Properties Limited, a NED of Hutchison Harbour
Ring Limited, Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited, Sino Land Company Limited, Tsim Sha Tsui Properties
Limited, HK Electric Investments Manager Limited (as trustee-manager of HK Electric Investments) and
HK Electric Investments Limited. He retired as an INED of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
and SCMP Group Limited in April 2013 and June 2014 respectively and ceased to be a NED of Power
Assets Holdings Limited in January 2014. Save for HK Electric Investments Manager Limited, all the
aforesaid companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr ARCULLI is now the chairman of FWD Group
and The Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited, a vice patron and former directors committee member
of The Community Chest of Hong Kong, a member of the consultation panel and a board member of the
West Kowloon Cultural District Authority and an honorary fellow of Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute. He also holds directorships in other public and private companies in Hong Kong and overseas.

E{EIE A 6BM, ovo, GBS, OBE, JP * T55% * 1989 EMARARIEEE « WH 20054F 6 A AT AIERTE
£ HASHEMERTNEFTEBA c EEBREEAERMEARARNZBE  WANMDBEEERAR - 2
FBE (EE)BRAT  ENBEERAR  AVHEBELEMEEAR BREHNREEBABRATCEEE
NREZTA-LB)RABBENREER AR ZIERE - FHAIN2013F 4 AR 2014F 6 AREEER R
ERARATREESRERERANBE RS - N 201451 ABASHELERAREREZBS - B
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Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson B4, MBA, aged 62, joined the Board in 1989 and was re-designated as
Non-executive Director in December 2004. He is also a director of some subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr CHA is a NED of Hanison, Mingly and China International Capital Corporation Limited, an INED of
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited and a director or NED of a number of other public and private
companies in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr CHA is active in many non-profit making organisations
including serving as a council and finance committee member of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He has over 35 years extensive experience in investment management. Mr CHA is a brother of Ms
Madeline WONG, Mr Payson CHA and Mr Victor CHA who are also Directors. He is also a director of
LBJ Regents.

BB A mea - 625 - R1989EMARRREEE » WH 2004 F 12 AAEAIERTES - HIFAK
RAETHBRARZES - BRLEEER EHNTEERESMAERARZIENE « HEERERTERATZ
BERZEREANPERABEAARNGIZESNIFNE - BAABHREZZTIELNKE 2 BEBREETES
AXRERZESRUBEESKE - FRIREEEHEBEAGFLEELE EhEATEERELL BREL
ERBRKLEZS  BEHARNAFZESE - A LBJRegents v E % o

Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, aged 74, joined the Board in 1989 and was re-designated
as Non-executive Director in December 2004. She is also a director of some subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms WONG is the deputy chairman of Mingly and also a director or NED of a number of
other public and private companies in Hong Kong and overseas, including Hon Kwok Land Investment
Company, Limited and Chinney Investments, Limited, both are listed on the Stock Exchange, and UNTL.
She is a sister of Mr Payson CHA, Mr Victor CHA and Mr Johnson CHA who are also Directors. Ms
WONG is also a director of CCM Trust and LBJ Regents.

FEXELLT 745  P9SIFEMAL LR ERE - WH2004F 12 AT AFNTES - BIMALLFE
FHBRBIZES - TLLABRNZAERERZREBNMEINABRIARBZEEISEHNE  EPBIEER
BEAMRAA BEEBHEERAF (MR AFHIREEZIT L) R UNTL « BASHE L - S ITEREH
BmREZE  BEHAEARRRZES » TZLIAECCM Trust & LBJ Regents 2 E = o
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B H{TE%E

Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry GBs, BA MBA, DBA (Hons), LLD (Hons), aged 67, joined the Board in 1989
and was re-designated as Independent Non-executive Director in 1993. He is also the chairman of

the remuneration committee of the Company. Dr CHENG is the chairman and executive director of
NWD, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited, NWS Holdings Limited and International Entertainment
Corporation, the chairman and managing director of New World China Land Limited, the chairman and
NED of New World Department Store China Limited and Newton Resources Ltd, a NED of Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited and SUM Holdings Limited and an INED of Hang Seng Bank, Limited
(“HSB”), all of them are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director of a number of private
companies in Hong Kong and overseas. Dr CHENG is the chairman of the advisory council of the BHKF,
a non-official member of Commission on Poverty and a member of the Twelfth National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Palitical Consultative Conference of the PRC. He was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star
by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR Government”) in 2001.

B[ = 4118 1 GBS, BA, MBA, DBA (Hons), LLD (Hons) * 67 &%, * 1980 FMARAFIE S + W7 1993 FHT A%
NIFRITES - HIMARRRFNEZESEE - BT AR ARAEXREEEABRAR  FRIZEEER
NEIRBEFIREER NG 2 EERATES - R PBMERRARICEFRESHLE  HtREEFH
BRAREHBERAR AR ZEBRIENE  FIRBEBREEAR AR MRPIERIZRER RG] ZIEHE - N
MEERITERAG ([BA]) 2BE » LAARHRERZFET - BRNAZREBREINLARTZESE - &
BLARRAEHESEMNZESTR  KEZESHEHZERFREET_ETFRARBA A EHEEEE
L8 o R 2001 FERBERTRIEBN ([BBBUT ) EREEFEE -

Dr CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin Gas, sBs, OBE, Jr, DBA (Hons), aged 66, was appointed Independent
Non-executive Director in September 2004. He is also the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company. Dr CHEUNG is an INED of each of HSB and
HSBC Holdings plc (*HSBC”). HSB and HSBC are listed on the Stock Exchange and HSBC is also
dual listed on the London Stock Exchange. He is the chairman of each of the supervisory committee of
Tracker Fund of Hong Kong and the council of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
Dr CHEUNG is also a court member of the Open University of Hong Kong and a non-official member of
each of the Working Group on Transportation under the Economic Development Commission and the
Lantau Development Advisory Committee. He has retired as the chairman of the Airport Authority Hong
Kong with effect from 1 June 2014. Dr CHEUNG is a fellow member of both the ICAs and the HKICPAs.
He was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government in 2008.

IRIZE R 18 1 6Bs, sBS, 0BE, JP, DBA (Hons) * 663% + FA2004F9 A EZ T AARFIE I IENTES - HIAKRD
AIEREZECERENREREZESNKE - RIELAEENMELIERERAT (NELZ ) 2 BE - 84 RELH N
R EMMELAERNEEELARZH LT - FRAREECEELZESS TP AEBREG 2 X/E - K
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Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus 8ssc, Jr, aged 66, joined the Board in January 2006 and was re-
designated as an Independent Non-executive Director on 26 March 2012. He is also a member of
both of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr CHEUNG was the chief
executive of Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited (later “Cable & Wireless HKT Limited” (“Cable”))
from 1994 to 2000, the deputy chairman of PCCW Limited (following a merger with Cable) from August
2000 to February 2004 and an INED of Taikang Life Insurance Co. Ltd. from 2005 to 2011. He is an INED
of China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr CHEUNG is going to
retire as the chairman of the board of governors by the end of June 2014 but remains as the chairman
of the council of Centennial College.

SRIKFRJCHE Bssc, JP - 665% + 2006 F 1 B IMAKRA R EE SR 20124 3 A 26 BRI AB I IEaTTE

B BRANAFEZZESGRFMEEEKE » RAEN 1994 FE 2000 FHERIEBENERAA (K%
% /" Cable & Wireless HKT Limited” ([ BB 1)) 2 1THABE, - 20004 8 HE 2004 2 A B L EEA AR
ARATI(EFBENAGHE) ZBITHERN2005FEE 2011 EHEEERREASRB RN ER A BTEE 2 B o
BARRERZ AT T R RS RGEE (BB RNDERARIZEE - REEBN2014F 6 ARRTHEERR
EQIFEIBS  BNEIZSERIREEESER -

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta rciH (etireq), aged 67, was re-designated as Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 10 April 2010. Prior to her re-designation, she was appointed as

Executive Director in 1994 and re-designated as Non-executive Director on 10 April 2008 upon her
retirement of all executive roles in the Group. Ms HO is also a member of both of the audit committee and
nomination committee of the Company. She is a retired member of the Chartered Institute of Housing,
Asian Pacific Branch and has over 40 years extensive experience in property development, property
investment and management. Ms HO is a member of the supervisory board, the special committee on
elderly housing and the remuneration committee of the Hong Kong Housing Society.
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Dr QIN Xiao rnp Econ, aged 67, was appointed Independent Non-executive Director in July 2009.

Dr QIN is also a member of both of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. He is an INED of China World Trade Center Company Ltd. which is listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange and a non-executive chairman of Amex Resources Limited which is listed on Australian
Securities Exchange. Dr QIN retired as the chairman of China Merchants Group in August 2010 and
ceased as the chairman of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. (“CMB”) in September 2010. CMB is dual
listed on the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He ceased to be an INED of China
Telecom Corporation Limited (“CTC”) and AIA Group Limited with effect from 29 and 30 May 2014
respectively, both of them are listed on the Stock Exchange and CTC is also dual listed on the New York
Stock Exchange. Dr QIN was appointed as a non-official member of Financial Services Development
Council in January 2013. He has tendered his resignation and will cease to be an INED and a member of
both of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company with effect from 1 July
2014.

ZEE 1 proEcon * 67 5% * 2009 7 AEEEARATBIINTES - TELNANARFHEEER
REEZEBENE - BALEEFR M LETNTREERESHURNDERAFB ZBERNBRMNESZ ST LT
#J Amex Resources Limited 2 JEITTESE - RE LM 201058 ARTHEBHEEEE LN 201049 ARIRE
IRITIRM AR AR ([HBERIT)) FE2BIS - BERITRNRERAER EEEFR S ET o BHRIFR 2014 F
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FERARARIRLEZWEN2014F7 A1 ARERNARBERFMNEESRIBRREEEKE -
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The directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of HKR International
Limited (the “Company”) announce the audited final results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 205 to 220.

Results and Dividend

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 101.

The Directors have recommended the declaration of a final
dividend of HK12 cents per share for the year ended 31 March
2014 (2013: HK5 cents) to the shareholders whose names
appear on the registers of members of the Company on 3
September 2014. The proposed final dividend will be paid on 18
September 2014 following approval at the 2014 annual general
meeting (“AGM”) of the Company. The final dividend represents
the total dividend payable by the Company for the year ended 31
March 2014 (2013: HK8 cents).

Closure of Registers

The main and branch registers of members of the Company will
be closed from 25 to 27 August 2014 (both days inclusive) and
on 2 and 3 September 2014 for the 2014 AGM and the proposed
final dividend respectively. On those days, no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for attending the 2014 AGM
and for the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2014, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 22 August 2014 and 1 September 2014
respectively.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year ended 31 March 2014 and
at the date of this report were and are those set out on pages 36
and 37.

Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin resigned as an executive director
(“ED”) of the Company with effect from 17 July 2013. Dr QIN
Xiao has also tendered his resignation as an independent non-
executive director (“INED”) of the Company to take effect from 1
July 2014.
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In accordance with the Company’s articles of association (the
“Articles”) and the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14

to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”), Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson, Dr CHENG Kar Shun
Henry, Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus and Mr TANG Moon Wah
shall retire by rotation at the 2014 AGM. All the retiring directors,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the 2014
AGM. Other remaining directors will continue in office.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2014 AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

The non-executive directors (“NEDs”) including the INEDs of

the Company were not appointed for a specific term but their
respective terms of office are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the AGMs of the Company in accordance with
the Articles. The rotation clause sets up a mechanism to ensure
that all Directors shall retire at least once every three years and be
eligible for re-election.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation on
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all INEDs meet the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance therewith.

Assisted by heads of functional units, the EDs are under the direct
responsibilities for the business and operations of the Group and
hence the EDs are regarded as the senior management of the
Company. The biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 38 to 44.

Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2014, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and adopted
by the Company were as follows:
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The Company
Long positions in shares of HK$0.25 each

Payson CHA
it

Victor CHA
B

Johnson CHA
Eiie

Madeline WONG
TEXE

Ronald ARCULLI
B

Abraham CHUNG
B

Loretta HO
GLE=

TANG Moon Wah
HinE

Beneficial owner, interests of a
controlled corporation and
beneficiary of discretionary trusts

ERREA XBEEERR B

[ERREA

Beneficial owner and beneficiary of
discretionary trusts
ERAARBERETEREA

Beneficiary of discretionary trusts
BBERREA

Founder and/or beneficiary of
discretionary trusts

BEEREAR/AFEA

Beneficiary of a trust
BREXHA

Beneficial owner

EalBAA

Beneficial owner

1 LN

Beneficial owner
EnBEA

3,113,113

1,140,253

241,472

315,084

85,600

135,200

ENNG
REKEEO0.25 BT 2 18

16,867,074
(Note a)
(Wita)

618,895,387
(Note b)
(FtzEb)

629,498,383
(Note b)
(FzEb)

628,200,885
(Note b)
(Ftstb)

627,487,463
(Notes ¢ & d)
(e kd)
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638,875,574 47.31
630,638,636 46.70
628,200,885 46.52
627,487,463 46.47
241,472 0.02
315,084 0.02
85,600 0.01
135,200 0.01
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HECEE - EEFRIRERAR AR ([H#
B)B2013F4 51 BEAKBEAT

Associated Corporation — Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited (“Hanison”) as subsidiary since
1 April 2013

REREEC10B TR 2 HE

Long positions in shares of HK$0.10 each

48

Payson CHA Beneficial owner, interests of a 735,712 - 3574272 115,666,069 119,976,053 22,37
Y controlled corporation and (Note a) (Note b)
beneficiary of discretionary trusts (Kita) (e
EnBEA  XEEERERPER
TXEA
Victor CHA Beneficial owner and beneficiary of 179,669 - - 117,865,220 118,044,889 22.01
B discretionary trusts (Note b)
ERRARBERERREA (Mf3Eo)
Johnson CHA Beneficiary of discretionary trusts - - - 117,865,219 117,865,219 21.98
eyt B EERAA (Note b)
(MfsEDo)
Madeline WONG Founder and/or beneficiary of - - - 117,696,615 117,696,615 21.95
TEEE discretionary trusts (Notes e & f)
Bl AR/RXEA (Htite k)
Ronald ARCULL Beneficiary of a trust 58,000 - - - 58,000 0.01
B FHRZREA
Abraham CHUNG Beneficial owner 63,819 - - - 63,819 0.01
Z0/ ERAEAA
Loretta HO Beneficial owner 12,859 - - - 12,859 0.002
g EnBBA
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Notes:

a) The shares were held by Accomplished Investments Limited, a corporation
100% owned by Mr Payson CHA.

b) The shares belonged to certain but not identical discretionary trusts of
which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”) and LBJ Regents Limited
(“LBJ Regents”) were the corporate trustees and the relevant directors were
among the members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries.

c) 577,842,756 shares belonged to certain but not identical discretionary
trusts of which CCM Trust and LBJ Regents were the corporate trustees
and the director was among the members of the classes of discretionary
beneficiaries.

d) The director was, under two separate discretionary trusts of which CCM
Trust and LBJ Regents were the corporate trustees, the founder and member
of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries thereof. Such trusts were deemed
to be interested in 49,644,707 shares in aggregate.

e) 115,666,069 shares belonged to certain but not identical discretionary
trusts of which CCM Trust and LBJ Regents were the corporate trustees
and the director was among the members of the classes of discretionary
beneficiaries.

f)  The director was, under another discretionary trust of which LBJ Regents
was the corporate trustee, the founder and member of the classes of
discretionary beneficiaries thereof. Such trust was deemed to be interested in
2,030,546 shares.

Save as disclosed above and for certain directors holding non-
beneficial interests in the share capital of some of the subsidiaries
of the Company as the nominee shareholders, as at 31 March
2014, none of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
or their respective associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing
Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

During the year, the interests of the Directors in businesses which
competed or were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules were set out as follows:

1) The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI is an INED of Hang

Lung Properties Limited (“HLP”) and also a NED of Hutchison
Harbour Ring Limited (“HHR”), Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited
(“SHH”), Sino Land Company Limited (“SLC”) and Tsim Sha Tsui
Properties Limited (“TSTP”). The businesses of HLP, HHR, SHH,
SLC and TSTP involve at least some of property investment,
property development, property management and hotel
management and ownership. HLP, HHR, SHH, SLC and TSTP
are all listed on the Stock Exchange.
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2) Mr Payson CHA is the chairman and NED of Hanison and
INED of each of New World Development Company Limited
(“NWD”), Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited (“EAM”)
being manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust
(“CREIT”) and Hongkong International Theme Parks Limited
(“HITP”) being owner and operator of Hong Kong Disneyland
Resort. The businesses of Hanison, NWD, EAM, CREIT and
HITP involve at least some of property investment, property
development, property management, healthcare services and
hotel management and ownership. Hanison, NWD and CREIT are
all listed on the Stock Exchange.

3) Mr Victor CHA is an INED of SOHO China Limited (“SOHO”)
and the alternate to Mr Payson CHA, an INED of NWD. The
businesses of SOHO and NWD involve at least some of property
investment, property development, property management and
hotel management and ownership. SOHO and NWD are both
listed on the Stock Exchange.

4) Mr Johnson CHA is a NED of Hanison whose group’s
businesses consist of property investment, property
development, property management and healthcare services.
Hanison is listed on the Stock Exchange.

5) Ms Madeline WONG is a NED of Hon Kwok Land Investment
Company, Limited (“HKLI") and Chinney Investments, Limited
(“Chinney”) whose groups’ businesses consist of property
development, property investment, property management and
hotel management and ownership. HKLI and Chinney are both
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Save for the INEDs and save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors was interested in any business apart from the Group’s
businesses which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the
year.

Directors’ Right to acquire Shares or
Debentures

The Company

The existing share option scheme of the Company was adopted
on 8 September 2011 (2011 HKRI Scheme”) and the listing
status of shares to be granted under the 2011 HKRI Scheme was
granted by the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange on 9
September 2011. Under the 2011 HKRI Scheme, options may be
granted, inter alia, to the Directors.
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Hanison

Hanison currently has a share option scheme adopted on 21
September 2011 (2011 Hanison Scheme”) and the listing status
of shares to be granted under the 2011 Hanison Scheme was
also granted by the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
on 21 September 2011. Under the 2011 Hanison Scheme,
options may be granted, inter alia, to the directors of Hanison, its
subsidiaries and associates.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2014, the following persons (other than a director
or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO:

Long positions in the Company’s shares of HK$0.25
each
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CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited

Corporate trustee
EEXFEA

LBJ Regents Limited Corporate trustee

EEEFEA

Invesco Hong Kong Limited
FIEREBERERAT

Investment manager/
advisor of various accounts

RERE/ ZERP 2B

560,153,905 41.48
(Note a)

(FzEa)

91,894,801 6.81
(Note b)
(M3EDb)

108,396,725 8.03

(Note c)
(fifzEc)
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Notes:

a) 560,153,905 shares were held by CCM Trust as corporate trustee of
certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which members of the classes of
discretionary beneficiaries comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming’s issue.

b) 91,894,801 shares were held by LBJ Regents as corporate trustee of
certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which members of the classes of
discretionary beneficiaries comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming’s issue.

c) 108,396,725 shares were held by Invesco Hong Kong Limited (“Invesco”)
as investment manager and/or advisor of various accounts as at 15 April 2014
as disclosed to the Stock Exchange. Invesco Asset Management Limited
disclosed to the Stock Exchange that it held 108,828,725 shares as at 9 June
2014 as investment manager and/or advisor of various accounts and Invesco
also notified the Stock Exchange that it ceased to hold any share on the same
date.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, no other interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Schemes

The Company

Particulars of the 2011 HKRI Scheme as required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules are set out below:

1 Summary of the 2011 HKRI Scheme
a) Purpose

The purpose is to provide the participants who have been granted
options under the 2011 HKRI Scheme to subscribe for ordinary
shares in the Company with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company and to encourage the participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

b) Participants

All directors (including any EDs and NEDs), full-time employees
and any consultants (employed on a contract basis) of the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or its associated companies are
eligible to participate in the 2011 HKRI Scheme.

c) Maximum number of shares available for issue

A maximum number of 135,027,436 shares of the Company may
be issued upon exercise of all options granted or to be granted
under the 2011 HKRI Scheme.
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d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each participant (including both exercised and unexercised
options) under the 2011 HKRI Scheme or any other share option
scheme (if any) adopted by the Company in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company.

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
INED of the Company, or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules), would result in the shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of the grant:

i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue; and

i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets

issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant in excess of
HK$5.0 million,

such grant of options shall be subject to prior approval of the
shareholders of the Company who are not connected persons of
the Company as defined in the Listing Rules.

e) Period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board (or the
relevant committee thereof) may specify at the time of grant.

f)  Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board (or the relevant
committee thereof) must specify the minimum period(s), if any, for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

g) Period open for acceptance of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

The offer of the grant of an option (of which the date of grant must
be a business day of the Stock Exchange) must be accepted
within 14 days from the date on which the offer letter is delivered
to the participant and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid
upon acceptance.
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h) Basis of determining the subscription price of an option

The subscription price of an option shall be no less than the higher
of:

i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant;

i) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days of the Stock Exchange
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

i) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
grant.

i) Remaining life
The 2011 HKRI Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 7

September 2021 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with
the terms of the 2011 HKRI Scheme.

2 Details of options granted and available for grant

No option was granted under the 2011 HKRI Scheme since its
adoption. The total number of shares in the Company available
for grant of options under the 2011 HKRI Scheme is 135,027,436
shares which represents 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of this annual report (i.e. 25 June 2014).

Hanison

Particulars of the 2011 Hanison Scheme as required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules are set out below:

1 Summary of the 2011 Hanison Scheme
a) Purpose

The purpose is to provide the participants who have been
granted options under the 2011 Hanison Scheme to subscribe
for ordinary shares in Hanison with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in Hanison and to encourage the participants
to work towards enhancing the value of Hanison and its shares for
the benefit of Hanison and its shareholders as a whole.

b) Participants

All directors (including INEDs), full-time employees and
consultants (employed on a contract basis) of Hanison, its
subsidiaries and/or its associates are eligible to participate in the
2011 Hanison Scheme.

¢) Maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of 48,755,967 shares of Hanison may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted or to be granted under
the 2011 Hanison Scheme.
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d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of Hanison issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
participant (including both exercised and unexercised options)
under the 2011 Hanison Scheme or any other share option
scheme (if any) adopted by Hanison in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares of Hanison in issue unless otherwise
approved by shareholders of Hanison.

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
INED of Hanison, or any of their respective associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules), would result in the shares of Hanison issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and
1o be granted to such person in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the grant:

i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of Hanison
in issue; and

i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of Hanison as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant in excess of HK$5.0
million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior approval of the
shareholders of Hanison who are not connected persons of
Hanison as defined in the Listing Rules.

e) Period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the board of directors
of Hanison (or the relevant committee thereof) may specify at time
of grant.

f)  Minimum period and requirement, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised

At the time of the grant of an option, the board of directors

of Hanison (or the relevant committee thereof) must specify

the minimum period(s), if any, and the minimum performance
target(s), if any, that must be reached before it can be exercised
in whole or in part.

g) Period open for acceptance of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

The offer of the grant of an option (of which the date of grant must
be a business day of the Stock Exchange) must be accepted
within 14 days after the date of grant and a consideration of
HK$1.0 must be paid upon acceptance.
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h) Basis of determining the subscription price of an option

The subscription price of an option shall be no less than the higher
of:

i) the closing price of the shares of Hanison as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant;

i) the average closing price of the shares of Hanison as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days of the Stock Exchange immediately preceding
the date of grant; and

i) the nominal value of the shares of Hanison on the date of
grant.

i) Remaining life
The 2011 Hanison Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on

20 September 2021 unless otherwise terminated in accordance
with the terms of the 2011 Hanison Scheme.

2 Details of options granted and available for grant

No option was granted under the 2011 Hanison Scheme since
its adoption. The total number of shares in Hanison available for
grant of options under the 2011 Hanison Scheme is 48,755,967
shares which represents 10% of the issued share capital of
Hanison as at the date on which the 2011 Hanison Scheme was
adopted and represents 9.09% of the issued share capital of
Hanison as at the date of this annual report (i.e. 25 June 2014).

Debt Securities

As at 31 March 2014, the Company has issued a total of
HK$798.0 million in aggregate principal amount of unlisted notes
due 2020. Details of the debt securities are disclosed in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements on page 188.

Connected Transaction

On 18 June 2014, Pearl Development Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with Ms Madeline WONG for
the disposal of a 2-storey terraced house located at Discovery
Bay to Ms WONG for a consideration of HK$40.5 million (the
“Consideration”). Ms WONG is a NED of the Company and hence
a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules. The Consideration is based on the valuation of the property
done by an independent valuer.

HK$4.05 million being 10% of the Consideration was paid upon
the signing of the SPA as deposit and part payment of the
Consideration and HK$36.45 million being the balance of the
Consideration is to be paid upon completion of the disposal on or
before 30 July 2014.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group entered into the
following transactions which constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

1 Construction and Renovation Services
Framework Agreement

The Company and Hanison entered into the Construction

and Renovation Services Framework Agreement dated 20
December 2012 (the “C&R Agreement”) which governs the
outline terms upon which members of the Group and Hanison
and its subsidiaries (“Hanison Group”) proposed to be engaged
in various construction projects (the “Construction Transactions”)
and various interior and renovation projects (the “Renovation
Transactions”) during the three financial years ending 31 March
2016 with total values to be subject to the following annual caps
respectively.

Annual caps

The total values of the Construction Transactions in terms of
certified amount of work done shall not exceed the following
amounts respectively:

1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014 HK$320.0 million

1 April 2014 - 31 March 2015 HK$430.0 million

1 April 2015 - 31 March 2016 HK$610.0 million

The total values of the Renovation Transactions in terms of
certified or agreed amount of work done shall not exceed the
following amounts respectively:

1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014 HK$50.0 million
1 April 2014 - 31 March 2015 HK$50.0 million
1 April 2015 - 31 March 2016 HK$50.0 million

The C&R Agreement, the terms thereof, the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the annual caps on the total
values of the Construction Transactions and the Renovation
Transactions (as set out above) were approved by an ordinary
resolution passed by the independent shareholders of the
Company at an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) held on 4
February 2013.
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In the event that the total value of the Construction Transactions
or the Renovation Transactions exceeds the relevant annual cap
amount set out above for any respective years, such transactions
and their total value will be subject to review and re-approval by

the independent shareholders of the Company at the next AGM

or at an EGM convened for this specific purpose.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate transaction
value in respect of each of the Construction Transactions and the
Renovation Transactions under the C&R Agreement amounted
to HK$127.0 million (2013: HK$141.8 million) and HK$1.2 million
(2013: HK$0.9 million) respectively.

2 Services provided to Haining Group

As a result of the decision of the Board to treat Hanison as a
subsidiary of the Company since 1 April 2013 in accordance with
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 10, any transaction
(including continuing connected transaction) entered into by
Hanison Group are treated as transaction of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group (excluding
Hanison Group) and Hanison Group have respectively provided
project management services and other services to Haining
Group™®©? in relation to Haining Project™*"”. Haining Group is
owned as to not less than 30% by CCM Trust, a substantial
shareholder of Hanison and the Company with direct and indirect
shareholding interests of approximately 68.3% and 41.48%
respectively. Accordingly, each member of Haining Group is a
connected person of Hanison and the Company, the provision of
the services to Haining Group constituted continuing connected
transactions of Hanison and the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, Hanison Group and the
Group entered into the following transactions with Haining Group
respectively which constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

A Services provided by Hanison

On 2 April 2012, Hanison Project Management Limited (‘HPML”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanison and Haining Project
Companies™*® have entered into the Cross-border Project
Management Service Agreements, the Non-PRC Project
Management Service Agreements and the Site Supervision
Agreements pursuant to which HPML will provide project
management services in both Hong Kong and Mainland China
and site supervision services in Mainland China to Haining Project
Companies (the “Project Management Services” and the “Site
Supervision Services”). On 31 July 2013, HPML and Haining
Project Companies further entered into the New Site Supervision
Agreements to supersede the Site Supervision Agreements for
the revision of the annual caps for the Site Supervision Services
(the Cross-border Project Management Service Agreements, the
Non-PRC Project Management Service Agreements and the New
Site Supervision Agreements collectively the “PM Agreements”).
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On 30 June 2011, Hanison has completed the acquisition to
acquire 49% interest in 5 % 52 & 5 #h 2 /A R A &) (Translation:
Haining Jiafeng Real Estate Development Limited) (“Haining
Jiafeng”) and it becomes joint venture of Hanison and Haining
Group. Although the joint venture is not regarded as a connected
person in accordance with the Listing Rules and only the provision
of the Project Management Services and the Site Supervision
Services 10/ % 5 5% 5B 17 B PR A 7] (Translation: Haining
Fusheng Real Estate Development Limited) (“Haining Fusheng”)
constitutes continuing connected transactions of Hanison for the
purpose of the Listing Rules, the board of directors of Hanison
decided to consider all the transactions with Haining Project
Companies (including the annual caps) all together given the
nature of the works and the fact that Haining Fusheng and Haining
Jiafeng are also indirectly owned as to not less than 30% by CCM
Trust.

The transactions for the provision of the Project Management
Services and the Site Supervision Services to Haining Project
Companies are only subject to announcement and reporting
requirements and no independent shareholders’ approval of
Hanison is required under the Listing Rules. The PM Agreements,
its terms, the transactions contemplated thereunder and the
annual caps (including the revised annual caps for the Site
Supervision Services) on the total value of the continuing
connected transactions with Haining Project Companies during
the three financial years ending 31 March 2015 were approved by
the board of directors of Hanison and announcements in relation
thereto was made on 2 April 2012 and 31 July 2013 respectively.
The annual caps for the provision of the Project Management
Services and the Site Supervision Services by HPML to Haining
Project Companies under the PM Agreements are as follows:

Project Management Services

1 April 2012 -
31 March 2013

RMB3.99 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$4.91 million)

1 April 2013 -
31 March 2014

RMB3.99 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$4.91 million)

RMB3.99 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$4.91 million)

1 April 2014 -
31 March 2015

Site Supervision Services

1 April 2012 -
31 March 2013

RMB3.36 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$4.14 million)

1 April 2013 -
31 March 2014

RMB5.61 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$7.01 million)

1 April 2014 -
31 March 2015

RMB6.36 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$7.95 million)
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In the event that the total value of the Project Management
Services or the Site Supervision Services exceeds the relevant
annual cap amount set out above for any respective years,
such transactions and the cap(s) will be subject to review,

as necessary, re-appraised in the context of the ongoing
requirements of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate transaction
value in respect of each of the Project Management Services
and the Site Supervision Services under the PM Agreements
amounted to HK$3.8 million (2013: HK$3.8 million) and HK$5.5
million (2013: HK$2.8 million) respectively.

B Services provided by the Group (excluding
Hanison Group)

Although the provision of services by the Group (excluding
Hanison Group) to Haining Group constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules, those transactions shall constitute a de minimis
transaction of the Company pursuant to rule 14A.31(2)(a)

of the Listing Rules which is exempted from reporting and
announcement requirements. Nevertheless, since Hanison was
treated as a subsidiary of the Company from 1 April 2013, the
provisions of all the services by the Group (including Hanison
Group) to Haining Group will constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under rule 14A.34(1) of the Listing
Rules which are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but are exempted from independent shareholders’
approval.

Accordingly, the Company and Clear Shine International Limited
(“Clear Shine”) entered into a Framework Agreement dated 13
December 2013 (the “Haining Agreement”) which governs the
outline terms for the provision of the services by members of the
Group (exclude Hanison Group) to Haining Group in relation to
Haining Project. Clear Shine is indirectly owned as to not less
than 30% by CCM Trust. Accordingly, Clear Shine is a connected
person of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules. The annual
caps for the provision of the services by the Group (excluding
Hanison Group) to Haining Group during the three financial years
ending 31 March 2016 pursuant to the Haining Agreement are as
follows:

1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014 HK$2.8 million
1 April 2014 - 31 March 2015 HK$5.6 million
1 April 2015 - 31 March 2016 HK$3.5 million

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

8 B BB R S SR IR 2 IR
XFREAEREE LR 4 - AIREZHR
H ERABIERE - RSB LR
1B AR E T -

M2014F3A31 AIEFER - THB BERE Mt
BEERGTEHEEEERHENSAZRIHRE
DRIAS8HBEBITL(20134F : 3.8 FHEBIIT) &
55H8BT(2013F : 28HEET) °

B F&E[E (T EEEERE)ERIRE

HARER (TRIEEBER) FEEEREY
fRT - B EMRAIME - BA AR 2 FHERE
X5 W ETARRIE 14A312Q)@) 1§ - ZER
SERARR 2 HERRKFERS - WA &R
RREAEZIRE - AM - AR ERE 20134F
AF1BREAARRZHBRAR  FiEAE
E(REREER) SEEEREZRBRE L
TRAIEE 14A.34(1) BN AN A B 2 FHHERIER
5 BB EHRANZ AERBRBE - WA E
MRETHBY R EZ BT

At + A2 7] K Clear Shine International Limited
([Clear Shine]) 722013 12 A 13 BT —1H
ERWZ(BERR])  UWREAEEKE AR
(TREEFEE) SUEEIEE MIESEREM
AR7E 2 KGR » Clear Shine B CCM Trust [z
BB LRI0% s - Bt - IRIELETAEA -
Clear Shine 2N AR ZBEAL - NEE (R
FEEBEE)BREZE 201643 A31 A - ={@5f
BEREARBSEHZEREESEIRERE 2F
EERAT

2013F4A1HE 28BEBETT
201493 A31H

20144 A1 HE 56 BEBTT
201543 A31H

20154 A1 HE 35BEET

20163 A 31 H



The Haining Agreement, its terms, the transactions contemplated
thereunder and the annual caps (as set out above) on the total
value of the continuing connected transactions with Haining
Group during the three financial years ending 31 March 2016
were approved by the Board and announcements in relation
thereto was made on 13 December 2013. The Directors are of the
opinion that the Haining Agreement represents business that is in
the ordinary and usual course of the Group and reflects normal
commercial terms that are on arm’s length basis and fair and
reasonable so far as its shareholders are concerned and are in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate transaction
value in respect of the services provided by the Group (excluding
Hanison Group) under the Haining Agreement amounted to
HK$2.2 million.

Pursuant to the Haining Agreement, in the event that the value
of the services provided by the Group (including Hanison Group)
to Haining Group exceeds the amount of the total annual cap
under the PM Agreements and the Haining Agreement for any
year, such transactions and the cap(s) will be subject to review, in
conjunction with Hanison, and, as necessary, re-appraised in the
context of the ongoing requirements of the Listing Rules.

Notes:

a) Clear Shine™*? and its subsidiaries from time to time, including but not
limited to Haining Fusheng and its 51% joint venture, namely Haining Jiafeng.

b) alarge-scale integrated development project comprising residential, office,
retails and hotel developments in Haining City Zhejiang Province, the PRC.

c) Haining Fusheng and Haining Jiafeng.

d) anindirectly owned as to not less than 30% by CCM Trust.

In accordance with rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the Directors
have duly approved, and the INEDs of the Company have
reviewed the internal auditor’s report, the confirmation from
management of Hanison, and also considered the independent
auditor’s report pursuant to rule 14A.38 and confirmed that the
above continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
March 2014 (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) were
carried out in accordance with the following principles:
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a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

b) on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions for judging whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

c) in all material aspects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the Continuing Connected Transactions
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Board has engaged the independent auditor of the Company
to report on the Continuing Connected Transactions pursuant to
rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. The independent auditor of the
Company has provided a letter to the Board confirming that:

a) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the Continuing Connected Transactions have not
been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

b) for the transaction involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

c) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and

d) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
Continuing Connected Transactions set out above, nothing

has come to their attention that causes them to believe that

the Continuing Connected Transactions have exceeded the
maximum aggregate annual values disclosed in the previous
announcements dated 2 April 2012 and 31 July 2013 made by
Hanison and 20 December 2012 and 13 December 2013 made
by the Company in respect of each of the Continuing Connected
Transactions.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Continuing Disclosure Requirements
under rule 13.21 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules

In accordance with the continuing obligation set out in rule

13.21 of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, the following are the
details of the loan agreement with covenants relating to specific
performance on the controlling shareholders of the Company as
at 31 March 2014 pursuant to rule 13.18 thereof. There existed no
reporting obligation by the Company under rules 13.17 and 13.19
of the Listing Rules.

The Company is the borrower of a loan agreement entered into on
4 September 2012 (the “Loan Agreement”) for a transferable term
loan and revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$5.0 billion with final maturity date falling three years from
the date of the Loan Agreement.

Under the Loan Agreement, among others, an event of default

is triggered when the existing individual shareholder of the
Company (together with his associate(s)) holding the single largest
shareholding (direct or indirect) in the Company on the date of
the Loan Agreement ceases to be the Company’s single largest
individual beneficial shareholder at any time during the term of the
Loan Agreement.

As at the date of the Loan Agreement, Mr Payson CHA, the
chairman of the Company, who personally and together with
his associates including a controlled corporation and certain
companies acting as corporate trustees of certain discretionary
family trusts of which Mr Payson CHA (to his knowledge) was
among the discretionary beneficiaries, held direct and indirect
an aggregate interest in 638,875,574 shares in the Company,
representing approximately 47.31% of the issued share capital
of the Company and he was treated the then individual beneficial
shareholder holding the single largest shareholding in the
Company under the Loan Agreement.

As at the date of this report, the shareholding in the Company
held by Mr Payson CHA remains unchanged and he is still treated
as the single largest individual beneficial shareholder of the
Company.
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Continuing Disclosure Requirements
under rule 13.22 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules

In accordance with the requirements of rule 13.22 of Chapter

13 of the Listing Rules, the following were the details of financial

assistances and guarantees given for facilities granted to affiliated
companies of the Company as at 31 March 2014 pursuant to rule
18.16 thereof.

1) As at 31 March 2014, the Group advanced to Tung Chung
Station Development Company Limited (“TCSDCL”) an aggregate
amount of HK$613.2 million.

TCSDCL is engaged in the development of Tung Chung Station
Package Il Project in Lantau Island, Hong Kong in which the
Group has a 31% interest. The last phase of the development
was completed in 2009 and all properties were sold out in
2013. The advances were provided by the Group in the form

of shareholder’s loans in proportion to its shareholding interest
in TCSDCL, for the purpose of funding the working capital
requirements of TCSDCL. The advances are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

2) As at 31 March 2014, the Group advanced to Dazhongli
Properties Limited and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli Group”) an
aggregate amount of HK$4,577.5 million.

Dazhongli Group is engaged in the development of certain
properties in Jingan district, Shanghai, the PRC in which the
Group has a 50% interest. The advances were provided by

the Group in the form of equity and loans in proportion to its
shareholding interest therein, for the purpose of financing the
development expenditure of Dazhongli Group. The advances
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

3) As at 31 March 2014, the Group also advanced to several
affiliated companies an aggregate amount of HK$975.6 million.
The Group has interests ranging from 13% to 49% in these
affiliated companies.

As at 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount of advances
provided to and guarantees given for these affiliated companies
by the Group amounted to HK$6,166.3 million representing
38.1% of the consolidated net tangible assets of the Group of
HK$16,195.9 million as at 31 March 2014.

The financial information of these affiliated companies as at 31

March 2014 are set out in notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 171 to 175.
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Management Contract

No contract for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the total value of the Group’s
turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the total value of the Group’s
purchases.

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$1.2 million (2013: approximately
HK$3.6 million).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
although there is no restriction against such rights under the laws
of the Cayman Islands.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to information available to the Company, the
percentage of the Company’s shares which are in the hands of
the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of issued
shares.
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Review of the Annual Report by Audit
Committee

The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2014 has
been reviewed by the audit committee established in compliance
with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the relevant provisions of
the CG Code.

Independent Auditor

A resolution will be proposed at the 2014 AGM of the Company to
re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, being eligible and offering
themselves for re-appointment as the independent auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
REESE

CHA Mou Sing Payson
Chairman

EHE

E

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
20146 A25 HREE
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The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of the
Company presents its corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company acknowledges the importance of good corporate
governance practices as a core element towards the success of
its business operation and it has been the Company’s policy to
manage the affairs of the Group in accordance with appropriate
regulatory standards and practices on good corporate
governance.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) during the year ended 31 March 2014, except for
certain deviations from the code provisions A.4.1 (non-executive
directors (“NEDs”) should be appointed for a specific term), A.6.7
(NEDs including independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”)
should regularly attend and actively participate in board meetings
(including committee meetings) and attend general meetings),
C.1.2 (management should provide all members of the board
with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail) and E.1.2 (chairman of the board
should attend annual general meeting). Details of the deviations
with the considered reasons relating to the aforesaid code
provisions are duly set out below in the table.

Summarised below in the table are the corporate governance
principles and the code provisions containing in the CG Code
with which the Company is obliged to comply, and if not, with
considered reasons given.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERME
A. Directors =
A1 The board EE3
Principle RA
The board should assume responsibilty for EZRRAEHERERETANENL UEEEREREREEFTAEH
leadership and control of the issuer and is collectively LUREETAT)

responsible for promoting its success by directing
and supervising its affairs.

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”) Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions #F(cl/ (including any deviations and considered reasons)
FRIRX (el ERRAZLEERER (ERENFRERZREER)
A.1.1 Regular board meetings should be held at c Regular Board meetings are held on a quarterly basis and ad hoc Board meetings
least four times a year involving active participation, are held as required. For the year ended 31 March 2014, four Board meetings
either in person or through other electronic means of were held.
communication, of a majority of directors. A regular THETeeRGEAM N IRERERBHERESEEH - HE2014
meeting does not include obtaining board consent FIASIAILZEERN HBRTRRESEEH -
through circulating written resolutions.
THEZeeRESFERAEEINN - BEEARD Electronic means of communication are available for all Directors to attend every
DERLEEENESRA L IERETRAS Board meeting.
EERLE  EReTHER U A ORENENER PEEEURASTEAIALRSEZREE -

REFADNGEF S
Attendance records of the Board meetings held during the year are set out in the
section below headed “Attendances of General Meetings, Board and Committee

Meetings”.
2EEFEERIHREHRIATINTXIREAS  EFEREEQER LR
8-
A.1.2 Al directors are given an opportunity to C All Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any matters in the
include matters in the agenda for regular board agenda before the agenda for each regular Board meeting is issued.
meetings. RETHERSERARENN  2RESVELASTEEMBERRETIA
PEEERARERIENEEI EEe el BIEA
E i
A.1.3 Notice of at least 14 days should be given c Dates of regular Board meetings in a particular year, usually held in March, June,
of a regular board meeting. For all other board September and November, are scheduled towards the end of the immediately
meetings, reasonable notice should be given. preceding year to give all Directors adequate time to plan their schedules to
BHREZeTHERRELEV14RABN  ZRE attend the meetings.
FEMMEESSSH  BELAERM - SFRARzCHESE e —MN3A 68 9 AR1I AT WERFI—F

FEEIAHETRY  RMEEEERNBRARIHEEE o

At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each regular Board meeting.
Reasonable advance notice would be given for other Board meetings.
RERBREHESSEAANZ D 4RBLEAAS - EhETe R Iel
HABCSEEE -

According to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”), a Director
may waive notice of any meeting and any such waiver may be prospective or
retrospective.

REXADAGERMAA ([ERE0]]) ESTHREENGERE - TR
RAURBAANAEREEL -
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TEERME

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”) Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions #@x(fcl)/ (including any deviations and considered reasons)
SRR @ (E) FRARAZEEERER (BRENRERZRER)
A.1.4 Minutes of board meetings and board C Minutes of Board meetings, the audit committee meetings, nomination committee
committees meetings should be kept by a duly meetings and other Board committees meetings are kept by the company
appointed secretary of the meeting and should secretary.
be open for inspection at any reasonable time on HE9 ENZEE RELZEQREMEZEREQ/ QAR ATH
reasonable notice by any director. ERF .
BEAZANSENERBTESERETZEY
MEHLE  BEANESEHAREN  ERR Minutes of the remuneration committee meetings are kept by the head of the
FReRESRATENSENRRERN - human resources department who is the secretary of the committee.
FNEE SRR RBEARZEENELANERBLERT -
Copies of all executed minutes and/or written resolutions are distributed to the
Directors as from time to time and are available for inspection by Directors/Board
committees’ members as required.
EREZQREEN/FIEDRB ARG NRERTES  VANERERH
ER/EFGRERNELH -
A1.5 Minutes of board meetings and board C Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings record contain
committees meetings should record in sufficient sufficient details of matters considered and decisions reached including concerns
detail the matters considered and decisions reached raised or dissenting views expressed by the Directors.
including concerns raised or dissenting views EEeRES R BN R RO NERRIANMEE SR 2 FBERAEN
expressed by directors. RE AP BREERENTNREIRENRHER -
ERERHETZR NGRS RYSE LA
ZEBELERNATIER W A - e Draft versions of minutes of Board meetings are sent to the chairman before
ZERESRINIMNREIRENRYES - circulated to other Board members for comments prior to each next Board
meeting.
ERRERRNERO ARG EREHRIN T —REFERSMERT
HBEEKEHEM -
Draft minutes of Board committees meetings are sent to all Board committees
members for their comments within a reasonable time after meetings are held.
EFCRE QR EHER  NASEARENAEREN  BXT2ERE
FeZESKEEH -
Final versions and signed minutes of Board/Board committees meetings are sent
to all Directors for record between the interval of two Board meetings.
B/ B0 R R R R BARAERBZ S REHINMAESTEL
MR 2P RESIFCH -
A.1.6 There should be a procedure agreed by c The Board has adopted written terms of reference of the Board and/or Board

the board to enable directors, upon reasonable

request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the issuer’s expense.
EXCRIAETEF ZEFRARER  ULE
BNBATSIBUERER  BRBETALN -

The board should resolve to provide separate
independent professional advice to directors to assist
them perform their duties to the issuer.
EZRRSADIRESRIBUEEER  UH
B MBI TEHBITANEL -

committees for Directors to seek independent professional advice on need basis
upon request, at the Company’s expense, 1o assist them to discharge their
duties.

ERSCRMNESEN/AEF LR/ ENRREEE IEEFEINEE
BEGIBUEXER - WRBRSETRY  ERERHALTAE -
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CERERRE

Code Provisions
SRR

A.1.7 If a substantial shareholder or a director has
a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the board which the board has determined to
be material, the matter should be dealt with by

a physical board meeting rather than a written
resolution.
ERARRAESHESR K TERNZHELES
EZRREANFRER  EHFHENETE
el (MIEEEAR) ARE

INEDs who and whose associates, have no material
interest in the transaction should be present at that

board meeting.

ERSPAG REBENDREEANGNBER

HLREANESEER -

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E’)
#@x(clh/

(el

c

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRAZEXERER (ERAAREREZRRER)

Material transactions with connected persons, in general, would be considered
at physical Board meeting whereat the Directors, including INEDs, may consider,
if appropriate, granting approval in principle for the proposed transactions and
authorising the final forms thereof be further reviewed and approved by way of
circulation of resolutions to all Directors or by an independent Board committee
set up for that purpose.

—REAT BEEATETZEARGENESREEERE £ (0HEE
B)RNeR LZERNEEBRTRA AR SRS URENTBESIE
BAER AR SEUR U BV ES R B —SEURBARER S
BEHETA -

The Articles provide for voting and quorum requirements conforming to this code
provision whereby interested Directors are required to abstain from voting and
shall not be counted in the quorum.

EREBFTRFAATARIZ RAREEABRT Bt - AR ES
BRERZRFGT NEEABA

A.1.8 Anissuer should arrange appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action against its
directors.
BIAERAES RS EHMERITIERE N
BiR%HE -

A.2 Chairman and chief executive officer

Principle

There should be a clear division of responsibilities
to ensure a balance of power and authority, so that
power is not concentrated in any one individual.

Code Provisions
SRR

A.2.1 The roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.
TREATHEENACEERS - UM EE—AR
AT -

The division of responsibilities between chairman and
chief executive should be clearly established and set
out in writing.
FRETHAR HRENS TRERATINE
e

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E’)
#@x(clh/

(el

c
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A directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance policy has been taken out by the
Company with coverage in respect of legal action against directors of the Group.
Annual review on the coverage and the insured amount will be conducted in
accordance with the Directors’ risk exposure arising out of corporate activities.
ARRERFEEESAHEHNERTHARERRESFRBRABEER
B TEFRLRNEDMALSIRESRENER - HRBREREIRREE
EITIRA

TERITBER

FA
BURERES  UEREIIRES T THEEEFRER—A -

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRARAZCEERER BREARERERER)

The roles of chairman, deputy chairman and managing director of the Company
have been taken up by two different individuals who are brothers. Mr Payson
CHA is the chairman and Mr Victor CHA is the deputy chairman and managing
director of the Company. Their respective roles and responsibilities were set out
in writing. The chairman is mainly responsible for setting the Company’s direction
in consultation with the Board and for the marco oversight of management.
While the managing director, with the support of executive directors (‘EDs”), is
responsible for strategic planning of different business functions and day-to-day
management and operation of the Group.

AREERE  BIERRESOER 2 BAAREHERR LS NAALESE -
ERBEERARACER  ERNEELFRIFRERESLLE RES
BRNRBREE  NERH  IRTBABENFAEEGE - SIEARF
fm UHRABEEEEERENIE  MEFELRAERTES (4
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERME

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”) Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions #@x(fcl)/ (including any deviations and considered reasons)
AR @ (E) ARRZEEBRER (BRENRERZRER)
A.2.2 The chairman should ensure that all directors C With the assistance of the EDs, the management and the company secretary, the
are properly briefed on the issues arising at board chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
meetings. at Board meetings and receive adequate documents and information about the

IREERESCEE (MEEFHEE MREA
MEE-

Group in a timely manner.
EHE EEERDANENGET  IREIBREIBESIREAHNE
SERIREEH  URKAAERNERAEEN X RES -

A.2.3 The chairman should be responsible for
ensuring that directors receive, in a timely manner,
adequate information which must be accurate, clear,
complete and reliable.
FIREEERREZRRIIRANEN  MEH
BRI EER B R T A % o

The chairman monitors and requests the management to provide a bi-monthly
management update report to all Directors to update them on the business of
the Company and to provide other adequate information and emphasises on the
need of such information be accurate, clear, complete and reliable.
FRERVEREEESMEATHN 2 BESA2ERENREURERR
AEB EORINER  ARREAGRANER - BRABBEAVEERE
i R et g o

A.2.4 The chairman is to provide leadership for the
board and ensure that the board works effectively
and performs its responsibilities with all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely
manner.
IRERBESERRRESCAMENR A
TEERE  URKHRAEEENEE SHEETH

A
A ©

The chairman of the Board provides leadership and governance of the Board
S0 as to create the conditions for the Board to work effectively and perform its
responsibilities.

BERRIREENEREES  REFORUBNERNGY - WETHERE -

The chairman leads meetings and ensures that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
FRIFEERBREGHMAEEREE SIHETHR

All Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any matters in the
agenda. The chairman of the Board designates the company secretary to draw
up the agenda by taking into account the matters, if any, proposed by the other
Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The chairman of the Board finally reviews
and approves the agenda before the agenda for each Board meeting is issued.
PREFOELNSTAANFEREIIAZEN - EXQIRIERAANE
RrBEeeaa RN ERITESRANFE (WE)IINZREN - BREFE
CRNARAGEFS T ERRENNHER A FIUEE -

A.2.5 The chairman should take primary
responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are
established.

IREEFERL  BROGMERHOCEER
BRRER

The chairman of the Board, with the support of the company secretary, takes
primary responsibility to establish good corporate governance practices and
procedures of the Company.
%%@Iﬁ&@ﬂ%%%%%?ﬁEEQ$@EE%@%§%¥&&E%ZE

A.2.6 The chairman should encourage directors
with different views to voice their concerns, allow
sufficient time for discussion of issues and ensure
that board decisions fairly reflect board consensus.
TRESESTAERNESIREHAFHIN
5E ATELZEAREHETR  URBRES
SERREHRERMEZTSH LS

Directors are encouraged to express their viewpoints to the Board’s affairs and
voice their concerns, if any.

ESOREBNETENEHREABARMINEE (NE) -

Directors are provided sufficient time for discussion on issues in the meetings
and the chairman directs discussions in reaching a consensus and consolidates
discussions with conclusions, if any, so that all Directors understand what has
been agreed.

ReE L ESREAMROEHEIRER - TREERERASRERLE (I
) RREEZRRMRAENEH
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A.2.7 The chairman should at least annually hold
meetings with the NEDs (including INEDs) without the
EDs present.

FREEEVEFRIENE (REBE) BT RRE
HEHFENEHE -
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Explain (‘E’)
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FARAZCEERER BEEARERERER)

Directors, including INEDs, are invited to communicate directly with the chairman
of the Board whenever required. In addition to regular Board meetings, the
chairman met with NEDs (including INEDs) without the EDs present in March
2014 and 6 out of 8 NEDs (including INEDs) attended the meeting.

B (pREEE) UEEENEREREREER S IRNE - KT HEFee
EO 0 ERR20146 3 AEIFNE (RIEEE) 87T —NABHELRENE
& BLIHE (REREE)PNOALRETNES -

A.2.8 The chairman should ensure that appropriate
steps are taken to provide effective communication
with shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the board as a whole.
FRERRFEUE S SR OMRES ELIR R 0B T

2 NRBRRRRERTEENEEESE -
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The chairman of the Board is accountable to shareholders and ensures that
there is an effective communication with the shareholders and their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole.
EERIRMRREERBRERSEWER  FHMOERIEEZREE
e

A shareholder communication policy was established by the Board in late March
2012 which sets out the Company’s policy for maintaining an on-going dialogue
with shareholders and investment community. The policy is subject to regular
review by the Board to ensure its effectiveness.
AREARFERREREERFN - EFGN2012F 3 A TAHNERTER
PR - WA HABRIETE Siad AR AR -

Shareholders are invited at any time to send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary whose contact details are as
follows:

BREATREARRERALIRENESSREMERER - EBEENT
T

By Email By Mall By Telephone/Fax
B B TH/EE
cs@hkri.com The Company Secretary (852) 2238 1188/

HKR International Limited

23/F, China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

NS
BREEEEEEERAR
BT RiEF 168-2005%
EEHOEERAE231E

(852) 2521 0705

The company secretary is responsible for forwarding communications

relating to matters within the Board'’s direct responsibilities to the Board and
communications relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions,
inquiries and customer complaints, to the relevant executive officers of the
Company under the direction of the chairman of the Board and/or managing
director.
ARNERELANRES e ER AR EENERASEETES S RES
SIRR/AEFELR ETLERAREBEENERALS - MEE &N
MEPRH - BETARARABNTHAS -



Code Provisions

AKX

A.2.9 The chairman should promote a culture of
openness and debate by facilitating the effective
contribution of NEDs in particular and ensuring
constructive relations between EDs and NEDs.
FRERERR - BERAL - (REER (R
RIJE)HESQELANER  TRRIEE
HEZ HERERIENER -

A.3 Board composition

Principle

The board should have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the issuer’s business and should
include a balanced composition of EDs and NEDs
(including INEDs) so that independent judgment can
be effectively exercised.

Code Provisions

FABKX

A.3.1 The INEDs should be identified in all
corporate communications that disclose the names
of directors.

EMBEHAESHANNRAEAY  BEHAEE
Hip e

A.3.2 Anissuer should maintain on its website and
on the Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of
its directors identifying their role and function and
whether they are INEDs.

BT AIETE ELAS0E R B S PRt | 3 AR T
MEFSKELE  VIIREABMELE - UKk
HERTEE -
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRRAZEEERER BEEARERERER)

The chairman of the Board has discharged this responsibility properly.
EXSIRCEEMBETERE

FE3-£iD

FA
EERRRBEZTARBMAGELEFFRL  BRRZENEHLELE - B
EHEIHNE (BEBE) AR EARITOE LGB (EL BB o

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRRZERERER (ERANRERZERR)

On 17 July 2013, Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin resigned as an ED of the
Company. On 13 June 2014, Dr QIN Xiao has also tendered his resignation as
an INED of the Company with effect from 1 July 2014. After the resignation of Dr
QIN, the Board comprises eleven directors, four are EDs and seven are NEDs

of whom four and hence, with more than one-third of the Board, are INEDs.
Four members of the Board comprising two EDs and two NEDs belong to the
same family of brothers and sister. It constitutes a balanced Board with strong
independent element. Each Director possesses skills and experience appropriate
to the business of the Group and their particulars are duly set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” in this annual report.

201357 A17H - BRFFEFHERRAINE 2B - 2014564130 -
FEBLTMREREARABEZ RS - EREHR201457A1R - RELE
e EFEhT—HEFEN  BRENERERCAENE  MIFNETA
MEUBER=p —NESERE) REE - NEEFERE (BEREHE
RREHEHE) DBR-FIRTPH LSBT - EFSRRFIGRE  LARBS
FEIKT - RBEIEBEAASEER 2 R REH S REFEH
SIRARFRE [EZ2RE] —8RA -

Composition of the Board, by name and category of Directors is disclosed in all
corporate communications.

BEZg/MR  EEHARENCATAARBAARE -

As from time to time, an updated list of the Company’s Directors identifying their
role and function and whether they are INEDs is maintained on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

ARRTNBRETRESACHBE URARTEENESHELERE
IARR BRI e -
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A.4 Appointments, re-election and removal

Principle

There should be a formal, considered and
transparent procedure for the appointment of new
directors and plans in place for orderly succession for
appointments. All directors should be subject to re-
election at regular intervals.

Code Provisions

TR

A.4.1 NEDs should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election.
FNENZAERBETEME  WRAEXEMES -

A.4.2 Al directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at

the first general meeting after appointment. Every
director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

A RERESERMEEENESEERRERE
BREARREAG LEXRRESR - GLEF(RE
BETIHNES) ERTET EPE=F—R-

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E’)
#F(Cch/
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E

2t EBNES

B
HEENZHEFEIS CFEZEVEENR FERCHRFHEEE
1Eit8] - FEEELBEIGE THENEHESR o

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRRREXERER (BREARBRERER)

The Articles have provisions for rotation and re-election of all Directors. As
required by the Articles, at each annual general meeting (‘“AGM”), one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any Director appointed by the Directors shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the Company (in the
case of filing a casual vacancy) or until the next following AGM (in the case of an
addition to the Board) and be eligible to offer for re-election.

ERANEE L RETAREREREEET L EX - SRAAIRT - NEE
BRRBEEAG((RRFE)) L EREMES A~ (FEEZHA U
SHERE ARKEIETIR=D 2 —2ES)ERERT  KBAEFIA
BEBERERI R MEEFZRECEMNESEREZTALATRRE
AeRIL(MBERRNZR)  FEE TERRFERL (WEESSIMEN
8) TAARAEEEE -

AllNEDs and INEDs of the Company were not appointed with specific term, but
are subject to the aforesaid rotation clause in the Articles.
AATRBHHERBEYENTREME  WELTERARIN Ll HER
EZHTE

A.4.3 Serving more than 9 years could be relevant
to the determination of a NED'’s independence.

If an INED serves more than 9 years, his further
appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders.

The papers to shareholders accompanying that
resolution should include the reasons why the board
believes he is still independent and should be re-
elected.

TETHRENBIE [EIESHAIF R
WER—EERAR - EBELEDBBIF K
REBEAENELAH RV A BRESARAE -
BMZAER - ARRRRN X - EHEES
SRMRRZAATNEEIA LT REEZENR
o

A.5 Nomination committee

Principle

In carrying out its responsibilities, the nomination
committee should give adequate consideration to the
principles under A.3 and A.4.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

Re-election of each eligible Director is subject to separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders in the AGM of the Company.
ERBAAERNESAEALAREFEUBIAREN A BREER

Each INED who was eligible for re-election at the AGM had made a confirmation
of independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company had
expressed the view in its circular that each INED who was eligible for re-election
had met the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and was independent in accordance with the opinion of the Board. In respect
of an INED, including those has served more than 9 years, if any, the Company
had expressed its view in the circular for 2013 AGM as regards such Director’s
independence for the consideration of shareholders.

BRABARRNRRES FEERENEEIRE FTIRAE S KRREEY
1 o RRFTRBETIAR S ERERREOFEINE LHRAE 31315
ETAREIENES  TREEEENERRREBELAL - BRAEEN
BE (ORERERRIFHNEE(NE))  ARFAER2013RRESELT
PERAZSETABUATHERURREZE -

REZEE

B
REZRBRITREN ARHZEASIRA4E THIEFA



Code Provisions

AKX

A.5.1 Issuers should establish a nomination
committee which is chaired by the chairman of the
pboard or an INED and comprises a majority of INEDs.
EOAERUIREZES  hEFSTRNEER
EEE  KEENBEERLY

A.5.2 The nomination committee should be
established with specific written terms of reference
which deal with its authority and duties. It should
perform at least the prescribed specific duties.
REZEENKUGEEEAARNBESE
BRAAERENET - REZEQRELREIM
AIRNSERE

A.5.3 The nomination committee should make
available its terms of reference explaining its role and
the authority delegated to it by the board by including
them on the Stock Exchange'’s website and issuer’s
website.
RAZEQEEM TN REIT AR EAFRE
BESE  RREACRESQERTAMNEN -
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRRAZEEERER BEEARERERER)

The nomination committee of the Company was established on 26 March 2012
and is regulated by the terms of reference which follow closely the requirements of
the CG Code and are modified and approved by the Board from time to time. The
terms of reference of the nomination committee require, inter alia, the nomination
committee comprises not less than three members with a majority of INEDs and
the chairman must be either an INED or the chairman of the Board. After the
resignation of Dr QIN as a member of the nomination committee with effect from
1 July 2014, the nomination committee comprises three members, namely Mr
Payson CHA, the chairman of the Board, Dr Marvin CHEUNG and Ms Loretta HO
with Mr Payson CHA takes a lead role as the chairman thereof.
AARREEEEN 201253 A26 AR - THBRAEE ATEATMHA
BT RSEZe A MREEMAE - REZE2REBERE (AHe
) REZEEMAOR-ABFEN B AHSKEVERBERTRAR
B—E2RESESLIRER - BRETR2014E7 A1 HEHEREZEEHNE
% REZEGHE-EKENTIAEZRIREHBLLE  RERETRMA
MEXT ERERBRERREZEGTR £ETLAG-

The full text of the terms of reference of the nomination committee is available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

REZEGBEEEE IR R MR ANBLHE -

The principal role and function of the nomination committee is to identify and
recommend to the Board suitably qualified persons to become members of the
Board, to review the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular
basis and when required as well as to maintain a policy concerning diversity

of Board members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and consider the measurable
objectives, if required, for implementing the policy for recommending to the Board
for adoption.
RAZESTERBRBE AT LNESSRBABLHERATETESH
AL ZEETAERHIARTERBTETSNEE - ABRAMNU R E
FEEERES TR ([EESSLILIR ) TN AT ERZ R BR
NRESERABREREEN

During the year, the nomination committee held a meeting in March 2014 to

(a) review the structure, size and composition of the Board during the year of
2013/2014, (b) review the retirement schedule of Directors and recommend to the
Board on re-election of Mr Johnson CHA, Dr Henry CHENG, Mr Linus CHEUNG
and Mr TANG Moon Wah at the forthcoming AGM, (c) review and assess the
independency of all INEDs, and (d) review and assess the adequacy of the Board
Diversity Policy and consider reasonable objective, if any, for enhancing the
diversity of the Board for the year 2014/2015 given the existing structure, size and
composition of the Board. The attendance record of the nomination committee
meeting held during the year is set out in the below section headed “Attendances
of General Meetings, Board and Committee Meetings”.

WER - REZEGE2014F3ARTERIN (@) 171 20132014 FEEZEH
B ABRAER ) RHESRANRRRESESENEERRFELE
EERERE  BREET  AREERBRELERES - (ORI THE
FEBENBUY - ROBITIEESEL U BR L ARERNEEES
SHRE - ABRAK EZEEL 20142015 FEESEXEZTLNAEE
B(E) - 2EREZEGEAZHBESEINTXREAE - EFERE

BEEHLER] K-
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SRR

A.5.4 Issuers should provide the nomination
committee sufficient resources to perform its duties.
Where necessary, the nomination committee should
seek independent professional advice, at the issuer’s
expense, to perform its responsibilities.
BIAERREZEEREARERIETLR
B REZESEIBENNARE  EESIBL
BEXER  BAABTAXM -
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FARAZCEERER BEEARERERER)

The nomination committee is entitlied to seek independent professional advice, at
the Company’s expenses, if it considers necessary in order to perform its duties.
REZEGEREZARRFBIRENS  BIBUZEER - BRBALH
HEE

A.5.5 Where the board proposes a resolution to
elect an individual as an INED at the general meeting,
it should set out in the circular to shareholders and/
or explanatory statement accompanying the notice
of the relevant general meeting why they believe he
should be elected and the reasons why they consider
him to be independent.

FEFERNRRAE LREFEREARALR
BE  BREREASBEMEN A SRR® R R/
AL EAAEFERAEECZAAL
MmN R FRAZEATBBLATHRE -

Please refer to A.4.3 above for details.
FEFSHENEALZE -

A.5.6 The nomination committee (or the board)
should have a policy concerning diversity of board
members, and should disclose the policy or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance
report.
REZEG(FEEQ)EIASRETENEST
ERBER - TROEE R RENREL IR ABE
BE-

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board on 27 March 2013

for setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The policy is
maintained by the nomination committee which will discuss and agree annually
all measurable objectives in accordance with the structure, size and composition
of the Board for achieving diversity on the Board and recommend them, if any,
to the Board for adoption and monitor the progress and its implementation for
annual reporting in the corporate governance report. Selection of candidates will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of services. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
policy will be reviewed by the nomination committee on annual basis and when
required to ensure the effectiveness. During the year, the nomination committee
has discussed and considered that the existing structure, size and composition,
the current diversity of the Board is appropriate and it was not required to set out
any measurable objective for enhancing the diversity for the year of 2014/2015.
EZE ST BECR2013F 3 A27 RRMIAGIEEBES MBS TN
M- REZECABANANE  UHEFSNRE  ABAKBFETR
AEERESeREL NI B (E)  UREESERM
BEBHERRBITURCEERBRENEFRER - (REAMEREN-F
ST ER - BEETEAMER  F6 - UCRHEES Bk EEE
B RE DRRRBEY - TERMENREASTAESEMTRNTE
REEMIERERTE © REZEBGHEER TR LI ARRELBRIL -
RER - REZEGEHNRERRBETGNRE - ABRAN - TRAR
REZEMEZSTILAGE  BREHTERL2014/2015EEEFEKEST
{LERTBIGT B R -



A.6 Responsibilities of directors

Principle

Every director must always know his responsibilities
as a director of the issuer and its conduct, business
activities and development.

Corporate Governance Report
TEERME

EEEL

B8

BLEERBIERRFARTAEENBE W RBTAGEETR « £5
EBRER -

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E") Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions #F(cl)/ (including any deviations and considered reasons)
TR @ (el FARAZEEERER (BRENRERZRER)
A.6.1 Every newly appointed director should C The Board is responsible for the management of the Company, which includes
receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored formulating business strategies, directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
induction on appointment, and subsequently EDs are in charge of different businesses and functional divisions in accordance
he should receive any briefing and professional with their respective areas of expertise.
development necessary to ensure that he has a EECHRANECER  REMTLERE  BEREEANACEE -9
proper understanding of the issuer’s operations and EREZANELEEGE RPN EB R -
business and is fully aware of his responsibilities
under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, Upon appointment, every Director is given comprehensive documentation of
legal and other regulatory requirements and the the business operation of the Group and regulatory and statutory requirements
issuer’s business and governance policies. as director together with brief meetings with senior executives and department
BENZANESIREZZANES2E - EX heads of the Group.
FRRHAMBROREEN - ARTEEGHAFON BEEENEZARSRERAREEREEZ2ENY - RIFRESIEH
AREEER - UBEROMAEEITANEERES ZEBIRERATE  WEARESRITHAB RSB AEEGERE
HEBENER  ART2 BRI EEARLT R
e ETRA EEREMEERTURETARN Directors are provided with continuous updates on latest changes or material
ABRERBR THEBE - development in the statutes, the Listing Rules, corporate govemance practices
relating to the duties and responsibilities of directors and are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development seminars to update their
knowledge for discharging directors’ responsibilities.
ESTRREMESRARBBNER - LTR CEERERANSHER
RERRREGENEY ARRSTREB2ESEZLERMAE  NE
HRERITESREN S -
A.6.2 The functions of NEDs should include the c The written terms of reference of NEDs have incorporated the functions of NEDs
prescribed specific duties. as prescribed.
FRENBERDEMTANETRE - FRE ERRRESED REHEMIRNETRA -
A.6.3 Every director should ensure that he can give c Directors continue to give appropriate time and attention to the affairs of the
sufficient time and attention to the issuer’s affairs and Company.
should not accept the appointment if he cannot do EERERARAER A TEERHRET -
S0.
BRESEBRALN LSRR KBS IR T
ARES BATEEXZE -
A.6.4 The board should establish written guidelines C The Company has adopted the Model Code (including amendments as effected

no less exacting than the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)
for relevant employees in respect of their dealings in
the issuer’s securities.
ERERGEMERERRTARAEERTEER
183l 153 NAEZ L LW RIS 10 FTEmIE
Hp Al ([FREFR ) =5 -

from time to time) as its own code of conduct to regulate securities transactions
by Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 (both days inclusive).
The Model Code has been extended to and has become equally applicable to
dealings in the securities of the Company by members of senior management and
relevant employees who are likely in possession of unpublished inside information
in relation to the Company.

AR ETH (BB IRER B ERREARAIEZHTESRR
SEATRTE  EADAELABENE  ARAZEESIDER  BER
201354 A1HZ2014453A31 A2 F(REEEMA) —EETRETHAH
Sz REE - RETARBEREAGEAREEEBASRAEAMEERA
AIRBRHHNEEEZ BHES -
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Code Provisions

SRR

A.6.5 Alldirectors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the board remains informed
and relevant. The issuer should be responsible for
arranging and funding suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director.
FIEEZR2EBEILLR  BRUFNENH
LB ARREEEEABZREARIAHNE
WEATHESSELRR - BTARBERHS
ENEINREEELE - A EDEE LTAR
ESZNAR  BEREL-

Directors should provide a record of the training they
received to the issuer.

BERAFTAREAMEREINLE -
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRAZEXERER (ERAAREREZRRER)

During the year, the Directors have participated in the following various
continuous professional development activities in order to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills:

RER  EEHE2ETUTRANEESEEREFUBRIEMEALRE

a6 -
Be -

(1) Reading materials/articles on directors’ general duties and responsibilities,
updates on the statutory and regulatory requirements in relation to listed and
Hong Kong companies and developments on business, economic and political
environments.

(HEEREZ—RBBRER - LIREBLREESFOED RAT 2 E3
HE%  BERBSRRERNEN/XE -

(2) Attending forums/conferences/seminars on directors’ general duties and
responsibilities, updates on the statutory and regulatory requirements in relation
to listed and Hong Kong companies and developments on business, economic
and political environments.

QILEEREZ-REBREL - LT REBLRAETHED KRR B3
HE%  KERBSREERNEAS/ €5/ Mg o

(3) Writing/speaking topic(s) on directors’ general duties and responsibilities,
updates on the statutory and regulatory requirements in relation to listed
companies and developments on business, economic and political environments.
QREHEEZ-—RBBRER  LTAREETHEG LRI FHNEE -
BENDERAERSEEMAEXE/HETEE -

Each Director has provided his/her training record to the Company with
particulars set out as follows:
REFCMARARHEEINES  FREFINT

Training received

Members of the Board EZEns BEFHE

(1) 2 ®)
Executive Directors HTES
Payson CHA L v
Victor CHA BB v
Abraham CHUNG B0H v v
TANG Moon Wah Yz v
Non-executive Directors ~ E#/TESE
Ronald ARCULLI BER v v v
Johnson CHA BiE v
Madeline WONG TEEE v
Independent BUKBTES

Non-executive Directors

Henry CHENG gx4 v v
Marvin CHEUNG RER v v
Linus CHEUNG FAR v
Loretta HO g v
QIN Xiao 7B v v

The Company will continue to arrange and/or fund trainings for Directors as a
continuous professional training programme.
ARABEEREERIEIIR/ IR AR B R EIIRRRALE -



Code Provisions

AKX

A.6.6 Each director should disclose to the issuer at
the time of his appointment, and in a timely manner
for any change, the number and nature of offices
held in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments. The identity of the public
companies or organisations and an indication of
the time involved should also be disclosed. The
board should determine for itself how frequently this
disclosure should be made.
BRESEANEZZARARTAREEARARA
AIRAREEBANEE RIEE U KA E R
1’ RREEEMEHERERE - WMIERE
S RE AR R RSB E R RBEREELE
MBS RNER - EFRERETATIERZA
TR — R -
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FRRAZEEERER BEEARERERER)

Each Director has informed the Company in a timely manner for any change, the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments.

EZETERBERAARARTABIETRUNIE HEREOEORIE, &
B REBBMART o

The Company will disclose the changes, if any, in accordance with regulatory and
statutory requirements.

EAAB DA RESE (0F) -

A.6.7 INEDs and other NEDs, as equal board E Most of the NEDs including INEDs have regularly attended and participated in the
members, should give the board and any Board and Board committee meetings.

committees on which they serve the benefit of REHIEDE(REEE) IETHLRE RS2 HESERESTSRE98H -
their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and

qualifications through regular attendance and active Attendance records of Board and Board committee meetings as well as general
participation. They should also attend general meetings during the year are set out in the below section headed “Attendances of
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of General Meetings, Board and Committee Meetings”.

the views of shareholders. RER  EFEeE EFEZELeE RREAG ZEERHEHIIN TR
BEREMIREFREANEEREE RSN RAE EZGREEGEALEER] —R-

ERepE  ETHLRESERARGILERE

gRENZEENERTEE2EEY  NARK

o BRABRAERNBRLERELEH - 1

TREBREAR  HAARRNERELENT

-

A.6.8 INEDs and other NEDs should make a C All the NEDs including INEDs, have been actively participating in the discussion

positive contribution to the development of the
issuer’s strategy and policies through independent,
constructive and informed comments.
BERAMENERFBRIEY  ZRRMNE
RENERHETASERBRICGREL ERER o

and giving constructive comments on the business strategy, directions and
operations at the Board meetings.

FAENE (BRBE) ONESL SR TRIBN2 8BS  YHARRZEE
KE - FAREERHERRAMUNER
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A.7 Supply of and access to information ERRMRER

Principle A

Directors should be provided in a timely manner BHERIEHEEMEEEN Bt REEBEE BT EEE LR
with appropriate information in the form and quality BT TEL AT WHETREBEREF -

to enable them to make an informed decision and

perform their duties and responsibilities.

80

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E’) Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions #F(cl)/ (including any deviations and considered reasons)
AR e (El) AR EERER (BEAMRERERERE)
A.7.1  For regular board meetings, and as far c Board papers are sent to all Directors/Board committee members at least 3 days
as practicable in all other cases, an agenda and (or such other period as agreed) before the relevant meetings.
accompanying board papers should be sent, in full BTN ERSRRTHE R (BEMGTHR) 2228EE/E22
to all directors. These should be sent in a timely SREEKE -
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date
of a board or board committee meeting (or other
agreed period).
ERxgrHeRnAR RS R X EL B RE
ER2EES UERPEHEBTESSIHAET
ZEEEEBHNIRA (BTN ELMERERN)Z
o EZQHEMMAASRAENEATAER T IME
TRARLA £ 228k -
A.7.2  Management should supply the board and c The Company continues to supply the Board and the Board committees with

its committees with adequate information, in a timely
manner, to enable it to make informed decision.
ERERMNESEREETZERMERRMOEN
B UREFHHEZREEENOER MED

RTE °

The board and each director should have separate
and independent access to the issuer’s senior
management to enable him to make further enquiries
for information other than that was provided where
necessary.
EReRBUEFRFETERETAGRERA
E MBS E R E R BRI FTER R ERAIN
{EE—FEH -

adequate information in a timely manner.
ARAFETHNEEE REZC R GERRUTRNER -

There are formal and informal contacts between the Board and the senior
management from time to time at Board meetings or other events.
EZERAEEBARTHREZERIHMGAFERARIFERMNIIN

A.7.3 Alldirectors are entitled to have access to
board papers and related materials to enable the
board to make informed decisions on matters placed
before it. Queries raised by directors should receive a
prompt and full response, if possible.
FAEERLEREHET X MIEHEHINEE
RN REET AT RELAEEREMNR
E o SRNEFRENME - WESFRELLER
ZEMEE -
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Board papers, minutes of meetings and related corporate documentation are
made available for inspection by all Directors.
EEONM  SRLEEEN AR AR REREH -

All Directors are entitled to have access to the senior management who will
respond to queries raised by the Directors promptly.
PEEENIHEREETEAS  URBMLREEESHOREM



Corporate Governance Report
TEERWME

B. Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management and Board Evaluation

ESNAREEAENFHRESS TR

B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration

and disclosure FR IR BT RAK
Principle A

BINEREREEMZHRRAMBFIEENEE - RZEILHRMAEY
BHER  URGTEEHENT R 2 REEFHFENRE

The issuer should disclose its directors’ remuneration
policy and other remuneration related matters with
formal and transparent procedure for setting policy
on EDs’ remuneration and all directors’ remuneration

packages.
Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E") Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions #@x(ch)/ (including any deviations and considered reasons)
AR @ (E) ARRZEEBRER (BRENRERZRER)

B.1.1 The remuneration committee should C The remuneration committee of the Company was established on 2 December
consult the chairman and/or chief executive about 2004 and is regulated by the terms of reference, which follow closely the
their remuneration proposals for other EDs and requirements of the CG Code and are modified and approved by the Board from
have access to independent professional advice if time to time. The full text of the terms of reference of the remuneration committee
necessary. is available for viewing on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
FMEEeEMEMRENTMEEAALRER/H ARAIZEMEE SR 2004 F12 A2 AR @ WA BEAEERTARTH A
THEH - RIBFE  EUSBUEXER - BT REESR N ANRESEMRE - FHZEeRESE 2 2 XIRA

AR RE R AT -
B.1.2 The remuneration committee’s terms C
of reference should include, as a minimum, the The terms of reference of the remuneration committee require, inter alias, the
prescribed specific duties. remuneration committee comprises not less than three members with a majority
FHZEerBEEEEE ) REMTH TR of INEDs. After the resignation of Dr QIN as a member of the remuneration
) committee with effect from 1 July 2014, the remuneration committee comprises

three members, namely Dr Henry CHENG, Mr Linus CHEUNG and Mr Victor CHA
B.1.3 The remuneration committee should make C with Dr Henry CHENG takes a lead role as the chairman thereof.
available its terms of reference, explaining its roles FUZEeREEERTE (HHeE) THEEeEmT R Z2EFAN -
and the authority delegated to it by the board by HhRBARENBEEE - BRBLRN2014F7 A1 ABHIHFNRE &/
including them on the Stock Exchange’s website and Bi% FMEEEHE=EKE  DHIREBRMEL - RARTERSHMKE
the issuer’s website. ¥ ERERBTATHEE TR  £ETEAG -
HNE B R R R PT R BIT AR DR E
HE BELABRKETQERTENES - The principal role and function of the remuneration committee is to exercise

the powers of the Board to review and determine the remuneration packages
B.1.4 The remuneration committee should be C of individual EDs and senior management, if any, including salaries, bonuses,

provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties.
FHEESEERETRERABITARE -

benefits in kind, share options and other plans. Such factors as remuneration
paid for comparable positions, time commitment and responsibilities of the EDs
and senior management as well as the Company’s remuneration policy will be
considered.

LB  TERBRBEATREFSREN  UNEERRIENAERS
EBERAS(INE) 2 HMEE - BFFe  H4 - EflE - ROBERLH
HE - GMEEGKERENERREERA S EL BTG T2 5 M -
P 2 A RRE - URALR 2 HFMBESRE -

During the year under review, one remuneration committee meeting was held and
there were also three rounds of electronic communication among the committee
members to review and approve proposals in respect of (a) 2013/2014 salary
increase and ex-gratia payment proposal for the EDs and senior management,
(b) 3-year employment contract for Mr TANG Moon Wah upon reaching 60 years
old, (c) 2013/2014 bonus proposal for the Company, and (d) 2013/2014 bonus
proposal for the EDs. The attendance record of the meeting held and the records
of circulated electronic communication of the remuneration committee during
the year are duly set out in the below section headed “Attendances of General
Meetings, Board and Committee Meetings”.

REEEER  FHEESSTT —ReANETT ZRETRAEN e
BBEQUNERREEEAE 220132014 FE 2 NF REERFES - )R8
WEEAEFIEC0RE L ZFREAH (O ARF 20182014 58 2 AL -
R(REZ 20132014 FE 2 EALRE - RERNFHZE @ @R EREHRE
FEABM BEIIINTXRRAS EEgREEgEa X R -

EFEEEEMREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F55
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E’)
Code Provisions #x(cl)/
FAME e (E))
B.1.5 Issuers should disclose details of any c

remuneration payable to members of senior
management by band in their annual reports.
BTABREEERNREFNSRBRBERRERAR
HOBNE 55 -
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FARAZCEERER BEEARERERER)

Directors’ remuneration (save for directors’ fees which are subject to
shareholders’ approval at general meeting) is determined with reference to
prevailing market situation, their respective duties and responsibilities in the
Group and the Group’s remuneration policy. Under the terms of reference

of the remuneration committee, the remuneration committee should make
recommendation to the Board on the policy and it has the delegated
responsibilities to determine the specific remuneration package of the EDs and
the senior management. The EDs are entitled to salary and discretionary bonus
which are subject to individual and the Company’s performance and contribution
to retirement scheme under each of their respective employment contracts as
an executive of the Company. The NEDs are entitled to a director’s fee for their
service which was determined by the Board, pursuant to the authority given by
the shareholders at general meeting from time to time, with reference to their
duties and responsibilities in the Company and the prevailing market situation.
Currently, a sum of HK$100,000 per annum being the basic fee for acting as a
NED and additional fees of HK$100,000 per annum will be paid to each member,
who is NED, of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company. An additional fee of HK$50,000 will also
be paid to each INED having a seat in any independent board committee which
is required to be set up from time to time under the Listing Rules. The above pay
scale has been reviewed by a committee of the Board set up in June 2013 as
appropriate and commensurate to the market practice.

EEMWE (RESHSERRERG LREN) H2ETN  RESENFEE
BBRBE  ARAEEHEHHENEE - REFHES S BERE -
FHEESEREANESSRLEE  TEREETHERRRERARR
STEME - HERESBUEALIATHAEMEZENES S ORI R
REAEARARRMER BB RERGEIET - FAETUR ES
HehEZEREADARRIERREAE LKL BN » YBERAER
AZBBREAARBROTTAMET - RITXNTHAE . EANEREE
100,00087C - MIFNEEARALAELEEE  FTHEEERREEEEE
B7RNFENS (RERZESH) AEF 100,000/ ° Bh - TN TEE
ERR EMRABE TH AR UMNBYEREZEQZE 2 BIMIS (REE
ZEE5) RO0,000/BT « A LHBRHCE—ER 201356 AN EES
2888 RRaERFETHEN -

In general, the managing director, who is a member of the remuneration
committee, is involved in recommending proposals on the remuneration of
other EDs for due consideration and approval by the remuneration committee.
However, he abstains from voting when his remuneration is considered by the
remuneration committee. His remuneration is recommended by the chairman
and reviewed and determined by the remuneration committee. No Director

will participate in the discussion and review of his own remuneration. The
remuneration committee can access to professional advice if considered
necessary. Remuneration details of the Directors (on individual name basis) and
senior management for the year ended 31 March 2014 are disclosed in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 160 and 161.

—RimE  EFELR(RAKATMEEERE) @R AMINE 2 FH2ER
i - Al REHZEEZRAMEE - RAEKERR - E2H4B2
WemtEEs ThFNESeBHRET - RERT2EN R RENR
EXEZHH - FMERSRNERREFTEREREEER - BE 201453
ANBIEE ES (RAANEGR I EE) RERERAEMEFHERE 1608
RE 161 B2 EAUBREMT13ARE -



C. Accountability and Audit

Corporate Governance Report
TEERWME

GEVEA

C.1 Financial reporting

Principle

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s
performance, position and prospects.

Code Provisions

AKX

C.1.1  Management should provide sufficient
explanation and information to the board to enable
it to make an informed assessment of financial and
other information put before it for approval.
EERRNEZRRETINBERER  REZ
SRRt I EN S B REMER - (Eih
BIRIEIFTE -

MER

B
BERETE B REEMTELTNFES  EIRAR -

Comply (‘C")/

Explain (‘E”) Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
#F(cl)/ (including any deviations and considered reasons)
@ (E) ARRZEEBTRER (ERENRERZRER)

C Directors are provided with sufficient explanation and Company’s business and
financial information to support them in decision making.

ESORRURHBERBBAARAER LM BNERUBBEEFELRTE o

C.1.2 Management should provide all members of
the board with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the issuer’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient
detail to enable the board as a whole and each
director to discharge their duties under rule 3.08 and
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
EEERSANEESNERETHER  #IIF
BETANRE - BB RO RERSRE
EERHE - RARAREERET LHRAIES.08 1%
REBEMRELBE -

E Given that all EDs are participating in daily operation of the Group and the
management has provided and will provide to all NEDs (including INEDs), in a
timely manner, updates on any material changes to the position and prospects of
the Company with sufficient background and explanatory information for matters
to be laid before the Board, Directors are provided with bi-monthly, instead of
monthly, management update report which is considered to be sufficient to
provide general updates of the Company’s performance, position and prospects
to NEDs (including INEDs) and allow them to give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the same to serve the purpose required by this code provision.
ENFMARENA2EAKENAREE  MERETCLUSERRIHE
(ERBE) REBENALAMBRARAREAEBNEEL - UREE
REEFGRBFENATERNIHA  HUETEMA (MIEGH) BRE
ERENGE  EEERRAZMEDRENE (RERE) REEHEALRNK
B BBRARIISN—RIEER - 4R ABRSEL RERSRERET
AR ERTFRAIEINESL «

EFEEEEREBFRAR 2013/2014 F5§
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CERERRE

Code Provisions
SRR

C.1.3 The directors should acknowledge in the CG
Report their responsibility for preparing the accounts,
and there should be a statement by the auditors
about their reporting responsibilities in the auditors’
report on the financial statements.
ESRACEKERRETARMNEENRENE
£ BB EE R KRR LB RS T 3t
t P8 R E (ML

Unless it is inappropriate to assume that the
company will continue in business, the directors
should prepare the accounts on a going concern
basis, with supporting assumptions or qualifications
as necessary.
RIERSRAABEHELEEHLME - TA
ESRMENRARNARBELERER B2
B EEHARERREER o

Where the directors are aware of material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the issuer’s ability to
continue as a going concern, they should be clearly
and prominently disclosed and discussed at length in
the CG Report.
FERNEREATARSEHIBERINEREY
DREOARBELENE)  ESRECEERESE
ERBERE Rl mU E T RPRRE -

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E’)
#@x(clh/

(el

c

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRARAZGEERER BEEARERERER)

Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts for financial
year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended.
ERRRESEACHEANRFERIEEI A THRRALAIRASES
BHRARAEEBZLAILFENFERRENE 2 RE -

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2014, the Directors have (a) selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, (b) made judgments and estimations that are prudent and
reasonable, and (c) prepared accounts on a going concern basis. The Directors
are not aware of material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
as referred to in this code provision C.1.3. The statement of the Company’s
independent auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 is
contained in the independent auditor’s report on pages 99 and 100.
ERFI2014F3 A1 ALFEGEHBRAN  E2E(QETAENE IR
WEHER - O)FLFEREENAEBNGEE - RO WFEEENEERTHIR
B o ARG CASERME - EFTREREMEATRAZHRBLA
REREVERNANFELER)  AARMBIREMBALREZE 2014
F3A31 BIEFERANKHR RRAAERHNE 9 ERE 100 EHE T
BEARER -

C.1.4 The directors should include in the separate c Separate statement containing a discussion and analysis of the Group’s
statement containing a discussion and analysis performance, an explanation of the basis on which the Company generates

of the group’s performance in the annual report, or preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the

an explanation of the basis on which the issuer Company’s objectives is set out in the Managing Director’s Report of this annual
generates or preserves value over the longer term report.

(the business model) and the strategy for delivering BETFATFAUATE - RAFRESLEERETENLEAEBRAN
the issuer’s objectives. RRAN  HARBREESNRBBEEN  HERERAAR BEMARE
ERREERNFTREOTEERRAB vl

A BRABTAHREESJREBENER (X5

B RERETAMY B MR -

C.1.5 The board should present a balanced, C The Board endeavors to present a balanced, clear and understandable

clear and understandable assessment in annual

and interim reports and other financial disclosures
required by the Listing Rules. It should also do so for
reports to regulators and information disclosed under
statutory requirements.
EHEZSRAFERERTHRE MRE A
AT ATRBENEMABENR - HARRRE
TG MRS SRS o 1IN - HER
MEEERRNBEERBRERTRENEH
e RRHERL -
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assessment of the Group’s position in all corporate communications.

EZQYNMARRRATEAEEAREL TE - B R SRR o



C.2 Internal controls

Principle

The board should ensure that the issuer maintains
sound and effective internal controls to safequard
shareholders’ investment and the issuer's assets.

Code Provisions

AKX

C.2.1 The directors should at least annually
conduct a review of the effectiveness of the issuers’
and its subsidiaries’ internal control systems and
report to shareholders that they have done so in
the CG report. The review should cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and

compliance controls and risk management functions.

BEERRIEERY —RBETARENBARNA
PERZORTAN  LALEERREPRER
ERCETHKARER - ARRAEREMFER
METE - BREMBEE  BEERRARER
AREREEEE -

Comply (‘C")/

Explain (‘E")
#x(ch/
@ (el

c

Corporate Governance Report
TEERWME

AEREE

FA
EEERERZTANANERFARREEMAFH  SRERTHRER
BIINNEE -

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRARAZEFERER BEEARERERER)

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective system of internal
controls, which includes financial, operational and compliance controls and

risk management functions. The Company has an internal audit department
which is responsible for performing independent reviews on the effectiveness of
the Group’s system of internal controls and reports audit findings to the audit
committee and the Board regularly.

EXCRERRBRBRANCANERRS  AEHE  2ERTEEERER
BRI - ARAREADEGHPT - BEB IR ARENDEZRE N
& WEBREBRRASERNERZEeREEGER -

During the year, the internal audit department carried out reviews on (a)

the operation of Discovery Bay Transit Services Limited, (b) Discovery Bay
Transportation Services Limited and Discovery Bay Enterprises Limited, (c)

the information technology department of the Company, (d) operation of the
Discovery Bay Golf Club, (g) Discovery Bay vehicles control, (f) operation of the
project department of the Company, and (g) other business units with audit
follow-up. With the implementation of follow-up measures after the reviews,

the effectiveness in areas with irregularities gradually improves. Findings on the
reviews and the relevant recommendations had been presented to and accepted
by the audit committee in November 2013 and June 2014. The Company

has adopted an internal audit charter in 2008 to formulate the processes and
procedures of internal audit function for strengthening of the control framework.
RER, REEZHFE R RS ERBRBERDRNEE - ORMSEMER
%A A7 KDiscovery Bay Enterprises Limited * ()RR B & ARHRE » (A2
ERRANENEE  (@BSENTEEH - (ARFEEEESNEER ()
Hit B HPIMEREETIRG  RERIBETNRERE - TEoHZE
B R YE RO - AR R ABREERN2013F 11 AR2014F6 ANERE
EE2MUBEHATER - AABN 2008 FERMNSEFNEE - UHIFTAH
BRI B REF RIGEEARE o

The Board, through the work of the audit committee and the internal audit
department has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries and considers that the
Group’s internal control system for the year ended 31 March 2014 was effective
and adequate.

ESZRRBERE G RNTEZSFINIE RN ARAME L AINHE
S AR EERE  EFERATEEAZ2014F3 A1 HILFE
LAHERZGBEMRTR «

EFEEEEMREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F55
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CERERRE

Code Provisions
SRR

C.2.2 The board’s annual review should in
particular, consider the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the issuer’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

EXRERTHNR  BERAIZERIIALE:
LU BEREEAANER ETERRER - MU
REIFEXNEIREREHRERT RS -

C.3 Audit committee

Principle

The board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements to consider how it will apply financial
reporting and internal control principles and maintain
an appropriate relationship with the issuer's auditors.
The audit committee established under the Listing
Rules should have clear terms of reference.

Code Provisions
AR

C.3.1 Full minutes of audit committee meetings
should be kept by a duly appointed secretary of
the meeting. Draft and final versions of minutes of
meetings should be sent to all committee members
for their comment and records, within a reasonable
time after the meeting.
EREZEGNTRERLRRALAZENG SN
ERT - eREENRRERERETSHEE—
BRABREANLRELZEERRKE - DRMEK
BRERER  SEERELLHECA -

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E’)
#@x(clh/

(el

c

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E’)
#@x(clh/

(el

c

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRARAZGEERER BEEARERERER)

The Board, through the audit committee, discusses the internal control system
with management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to have
an effective internal control system. This discussion includes the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.
EZCFRAERZEQHERENRNNERER IRRERERRITHR
UABEARERZRNEE « AR OREARRNGH REBEREA S EN
B BIARNESR NREIMESMEIREREERE RS -

BNEES

EA

EERERNEFYFERRNAEFERERUNT RS BETACEEEE
HEFIEH FRRAFHREILH - R LA FEERERREE
HaBEEE -

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRRAZEEFERER BREARERERER)

Minutes of the audit committee meetings are kept by the company secretary as
secretary of the audit committee.
BRE B R R BBAIFAEREZRENE L ARAINERTT «

Draft and final versions of minutes of the audit committee meetings are sent to all
committee members for their comment and records within a reasonable time.
ERZERSARB IR RBEERERERERE L AERBANERTE
BZEenEEHLFE -

C.3.2 Aformer partner of the issuer’s existing
auditing firm should be prohibited from acting as a
member of its audit committee for a period of one
year from the date of his ceasing (whichever is the
later):
RRaEEETARENZELTNMESEA
EUT RS ERREE AR B —ER - T
EEETABREEGNNKE -

(@) to be a partner of the firm; or

() BRLKRZATABANEE : &k

(b) to have any financial interest in the firm.

(o) ABEEZARMBEMEOAL -

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

The audit committee comprises three members, namely Dr Marvin CHEUNG,
Mr Linus CHEUNG and Ms Loretta HO with Dr CHEUNG as the chairman of the
committee.

BEREEERAREZENE  ARIARERREL  FAREERAMELT
HpRETREEEER -

None of the above audit committee members is a former partner of the external
auditor.
TREERE BN BN EINEREMZAEARA -
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E") Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions #@x(cl)/ (including any deviations and considered reasons)
AR e (E) ARRZEEBRER (BRENRERZRER)
C.3.3 The audit committee’s terms of reference c The audit committee of the Company was established on 17 July 1998 and is
should include at least the prescribed specific duties. regulated by the terms of reference, which follow closely the requirements of the
BRZES/ BREEBE D BEITH SERE CG Code and are modified and approved by the Board from time to time. The full
text of the terms of reference of the audit committee is available for viewing on the
C.3.4 The audit committee should make available C websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
its terms of reference, explaining its role and the ARAERZEEN1998F 7 A17BKY « W RBEAEE A TRHE RIEE
authority delegated to it by the board by including FEIHETRIENRESENRE - EREEeBESE 22 XRAR
them on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Al RBE R FAR AR E
issuer’s website.
ERZE SRR RBET AL EARA
BREEE BEHACKEFCERTHNEN -
C.3.5 Where the board disagrees with the audit C The audit committee has recommended to the Board to re-appoint Deloitte
committee’s view on the selection, appointment, Touche Tohmatsu as the external auditor of the Company subject to
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors, shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM. The Board endorsed the audit
the issuer should include in the CG report a committee’s recommendation on the re-appointment of the external auditor.
statement from the audit committee explaining its ERZECRAEFOEERY « UERFSHMTARATINEZHR -
recommendation and also the reason(s) why the BRERALARENEERRFEIE - EXCERUERZEQEEINE
board has taken a different view. ZEM B -
NEFETRSEREESHEE £  BEX
RRINEREMEENER  #IAREREER
BERIHERZEQMAERENER  URE
ZERTRERNRA -
C.3.6 The audit committee should be provided with C The audit committee is entitled to seek independent professional advice, at the
sufficient resources to perform its duties. Company’s expenses, if it considers necessary in order to perform its duties.
EREEQRERGARERIBITHRE - ERZECEREARANBTHAMSARBUSEEER - BRBAARA
C.3.7 The terms of reference of the audit C The principal role and function of the audit committee is to assist the Board in

committee should also require it:
EVZBSNRESENARSE

(@) toreview arrangements employees of the issuer
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The audit committee should
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair
and independent investigation of these matters and
for appropriate follow-up action; and

(8) BABITARTEHOUTLH - BITAEE
PR BER - AR E A E AR A
AEETRELEL - EREECREREEER
B BETAHGEFEEL QT BN HE IR
AR R

(b) toact as the key representative body for
overseeing the issuer’s relations with the external
auditor.

b) BEEBTAENEZEM ANEEREK A
BERCEZANBR-

meeting its responsibilities for ensuring an effective system of internal controls and
compliance, and in meeting its external financial reporting objectives.

ENEZES VI ERB IR ARNESERITARRE N AHEERTE
HEZBE  RERHHIMRERK BN -

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings together with the

senior management and the independent auditor and had (a) considered the
independent auditor’s projected audit and non-audit services fees, (b) their
independence and the nature and scope of the audit, and (c) reviewed and
discussed the continuing connected transactions and internal controls, the
interim and final financial statements together with the management’s findings
and responses and the independent auditor’s reviews and reports before
submission to the Board for approval. The attendance records of the audit
committee meetings held during the year are set out in the below section headed
“Attendances of General Meetings, Board and Committee Meetings”.

RER  BREZEELRRRERAERBULEMBTMAEE  h@Z
EEZHM B RFERRE B ER O ASh Bt REREER
BE - ROPRERESEIARN  BHRTHRBETERS RATEE - hH
REERHHE - WREBR 2 ERROERNE RS ERRRE - RF
N BREECEEHREHIN TYIRRAE EFeREECEE N
BE|—F-
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CERERRE

D. Delegation by the board

D.1 Management functions

Principle

The issuer should have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved to the board and those to the
management.

Code Provisions

PRI

D.1.1 When the board delegates aspects of

its management and administration functions to
management, it must, at the same time, give clear
directions as to the management’s powers, in
particular, where management should report back
and obtain prior board approval before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on the
issuer’s behalf.
BEFRRATERITEDE A ANENERTE
BER - WARNHERENES  LTEMNR
3 BRIREERERRNESSERURERRE
TR EMRAERE AN EES
WAESEENE -

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E’)

gs(cl)/
#mr(E)

c

EzeRNER

BB

V1)
BIINBE—BIRANEETE  JEWLEEREHEEEN ERPLTHE
BEFHAE -

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRARAZCEERER BEEARERERER)

The Board has set out level of authority and express terms of reference of the
relevant Board committees and reserves the rights to oversee and decide all
other non-delegated matters, in particular, major acquisitions or disposals, and
connected transactions.
EZeURRRESZ R 24T RN AR RARRESE  YRAENEER
REFMBAMARE FBLERFENRIHERBERS -

The Board also delegates certain management and administration functions to
the management as it considers appropriate from time to time, with directions as
to the powers of management including circumstances where management shall
report to and obtain prior approval from the Board.

ERg SR TERRARAGEC A TERRITHMEA  SEREZED
RftES AREREEANESCRERRNGESSEAMAELBN -

D.1.2 Theissuer should formalise the functions c The Board may revisit such delegations as from time to time to ensure clear
reserved to the board and those delegated to directions and powers are given and proper reporting procedures are followed.
management and review those arrangements EEe R REMMEEBRE - ERG TEMIESIRESN - WETHEE
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate to iR
the issuer’s need.
BIAEEBLRE TESSENBAERPLERT
BB BITET TR - RIEE HBfElRat ARE
REBZHFEETANTE -
D.1.3 Theissuer should disclose the respective c Written terms of references of the Board, Board committees and key offices have
responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of been duly adopted by the Company and are subject to the Board’s review from
the board and management. time to time. Apart from the terms of reference of audit committee, remuneration
FTAERBESQREREEENME A58 committee and nomination committee which are disclosed on the Company’s
MBI ABERIELERS website, the Company will consider to disclose other terms of reference on
website as when appropriate.
E2g EFEZEORIERMVERNRESERCHALARATIHESZS
THERE - RERRRREN FRENEZZES  FHZEERIREZES
MEESE  ADAKERNEZERNER AR EhARRSE -
D.1.4 Directors should clearly understand c Once a NED consents to act as Director, a formal appointment letter will be

delegation arrangements in place. Issuers should
have formal letters of appointment for directors
setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointments.
EREFRERATNRENBRRE - #TARE
FRANEZZAE  TREBERANEZRTRE
ffe
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issued to the relevant Director setting out the key terms and conditions of the
appointment.

BHNERELAESN HEWEEHELAR S T EZERTRIGHAE
REAE -

Directors clearly understand delegation arrangements through (a) the written
terms of reference of the Board and various executive committees and (b) the
clearly documented role and responsibilities of chairman, deputy chairman and
managing director, EDs and NEDs including INEDs.
EZEBEEFERIITZEENEERESER IR  BIEERESA
g2 jﬂﬁ&#iﬂﬁ(@}%ﬁ)E@Eﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁzﬂﬂﬁé‘m&? MR R
2R -



D.2 Board committees

Principle

Board committees should be formed with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with the
committees’ authority and duties.

Code Provisions

AKX

D.2.1 Where board committees are established

to deal with matters, the board should give them
sufficiently clear terms of reference to enable them to
perform their functions properly.
%gﬁiééﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ'§$@ﬁﬁﬁ@§%ﬁ
REFRDFROBERE  REREENETRE

D.2.2 The terms of reference of board committees
should require them to report back to the board on
their decisions or recommendations, unless there are
legal or regulatory restrictions on their ability to do so
(such as restriction on disclosure due to regulatory
requirements).
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

AR ERERER (BRANRERZERER)

The Board has set up the remuneration committee, audit committee, nomination
committee and other committees, namely finance committee, investment/
divestment committee and repurchase/reissue of shares committee and all of
them have duly adopted respective written terms of reference. The Board will
from time to time review the terms of reference of such committees and reform
and renovate some of them to align with better corporate governance standard.
The composition of each Board committee will also be reviewed and updated
upon changes of personnel. Each of the Board committees is entitled to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expenses, if it considers
necessary in order to pen‘orm its duties.
EXCDRUNMES S ERZES REZSGRANZEEHTIANK
ZEg &S/méiﬂa&hP%@/ﬁﬁﬂigﬁ EEEREEARNE
ERREEE S TRENZZZE e RESRR  URSRETETE
T FeHREECEERED - EEFRRE SV ERMERATE
MR REN - EFCREZ RS ARRARRMBITREMBAIBLEE
BER  BRAARAEE -

During the year, the Board has also set up an inside information committee
comprising the members of the executive committee as from time to time to
oversee the identification and consideration of the inside information of the
Company in accordance with the provisions set out in the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571) and the preparation and release of any regulatory
announcement when required. The role and responsibilities of the inside
information committee are duly set out in the disclosure of inside information
policy which was adopted by the Board in October 2013.
FEW EREMRUT —Hh TS THEE N BARNNEEEZE
BEERATRERBEE A RIEKRE(F571 E) TR ARANEHR
B REEEERREHERAL - NELSEEE Y ARRBEEINE
SR 20135F 10 AMRMZ NEHEBEIERA «

The Board will from time to time on need basis pass resolutions to set up
special committees with clear terms of reference to deal with the business of the
Company. During the year, the Board has set up a special committee comprising
three EDs to consider and review the remuneration packages offered to the
NEDs, in particular, INEDs for the forthcoming year. A special board committee
comprising three INEDs, namely Mr Linus CHEUNG, Ms Loretta HO and Dr QIN
Xiao was also set up pursuant to the board resolution dated 30 May 2014 for the
purpose to review, consider and approve a connected transaction between the
Company and Ms Madeline WONG, a NED of the Company.
EReRREETRRARREN UM AARRESER  SAZES - IEE
AREZER - RER EFERUTHEh=2HZAR FZEg &
EZEREMFNELERBEREHMES - itIh —HR=2FE0E
R ﬂﬁéﬁt&% S AR EHIZ S @ MEE2014F5 A30H
ZEZGRERMB - AREN  ERRBE-ERRAFHETERELR
TEARRZ M HERS
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CERERRE

D.3 Corporate Governance Functions

Code Provisions

TR

D.3.1 The terms of reference of the board (or a
committee or committees performing this function)
should include at least prescribed specific duties.
EXg (FETUBENZES)NBREEREE )
IR BTERE -

EERBY
Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E’) Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
#F(fcl)/ (including any deviations and considered reasons)
(el EARAZEEERER (BREMREREZERR)

c The corporate governance functions are assumed by the Board and the specific
duties prescribed by this code provision are included in the written terms of
reference of the Board.

CEERBEMEFRE  HTUREENABRECAERESTENE
HRESER -

D.3.2 The board should be responsible for
performing the corporate governance duties set out
in the terms of reference in D.3.1 or it may delegate
the responsibility to a committee or committees.
ESZQRABRETDIVGBERERRHENCEER
BE DUgRAEET—HEXZEZEE -

C The Board, with the support of the company secretary, is performing the
corporate governance duties as set out in the code provision D.3.1 and safe-
qguard the relevant policies and practices which are being enforced properly.
EZERARWENGY T - EETTARXDIIFENCEEEE Uk
FIRBOBERNERESH]IT -

E. Communication with Shareholders SRRNER

E.1 Effective communication

Principle
The board should be responsible for maintaining an
on-going dialogue with shareholders.

Code Provisions

TR

E.1.1 Issuers should avoid “bundling” resolutions
unless they are interdependent and linked forming
one significant proposal.
BTABER L] RER  REBMRER M
HEGRFREE  aRRAK—BERRS

BYEE
FA
EFDEERARRIERIFEE -
Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E") Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
#s(fcl)/ (including any deviations and considered reasons)
@E(El) ARFAZECEERER (BRAMFERRZEERE)

Cc A separate resolution has been and will continue to be proposed on each
substantially separate matter at a general meeting.
RRAEREBERNRRACHSEERE v SRMEFIRZAZE -

E.1.2 The chairmen of the board and board
committees shall attend the AGM to be available

to answer questions thereat. The chairman of the
independent board committee (if any) should also be
available to answer questions at any general meeting
to approve a connected transaction or any other
transaction that requires independent shareholders’
approval.

EZRIRREZRE TNZERTRELRRE
FEUERRFE LEERRN - E2R B
ZEE(0F) HERTNEEEMIEU TRFEK
ARG LEEME - AEER SR EMEMALE
VRRIENR S o

Management should ensure the external auditor
attend the AGM to answer questions.

ERERERINERHML BRRFSNOERRE -

E At the AGM of the Company held on 28 August 2013, Mr Payson CHA, who is
the chairmen of the Board and nomination committee and Dr Henry CHENG, who
is the chairman of remuneration committee, were unable to attend. However, Mr
Victor CHA, the deputy chairman and managing director of the Company, took
the chair of that meeting and two members of the nomination committee and one
member of the remuneration committee were present thereat to be available to
answer any question.
ARRESETRAREREQIREMELE RARRHNEE @ RER
BT REERAARN2013F8 A28 BRI RREE - A - FAFE

SEIRRESRLEBINELEEZREEG TR MREEEEE
MEKERFWER@E—EHEILNE - BIEE[RMA -

The external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, attended the AGM of the
Company held on 28 August 2013 to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies
and auditor’s independence.

INEGEIENEE) « HER A BHAMTEHRARTN2013F8 A28 BT 2R
REGHUORBENET LIE  REGHARERAAT - HIENREH
EE M ROIRR
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Code Provisions

AKX

E.1.3 The issuer should arrange for the notice to
shareholders to be sent for AGM at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and to be sent

at least 10 clear business days for all other general
meetings.

PRREEME  BITARZHEAGRITAED
R2OMEZFEARKRREXEBN  MAMEELMRER
REME  AEERERTNEI R 10EEXAE
A -
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRRAZEEERER BEEARERERER)

The Company’s notice for the 2013 AGM convened on 28 August 2013 was
sent to the shareholders on 26 July 2013, more than 20 clear business days in
advance.

AAREHN 201368 A28 BETZ 2013 FREFERN 201357 A26 A%
BE - ERRTNER0EEERRERT -

E.1.4 The board should establish a shareholders’
communication policy and review it on a regular basis
to ensure its effectiveness.
EESEHITREBMECE - 1F BRI ARRE
PRI ©

E.2 Voting by poll

Principle

The issuer should ensure that shareholders are
familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a
poll.

Code Provisions

SRARX

E.2.1 The chairman of a meeting should ensure
that an explanation is provided of the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll and answer any
questions from shareholders on voting by poll.
AEFERBRIESE LARRBEURES A
TRRNFARTF  LEERREEUARESIAK
REVERIRR -

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E")
#x(ch/
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c

A shareholders’ communication policy was adopted by the Board in March 2012.
The policy is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
201263 8 - EEGERMREBABE « ZECRETEBEL R - UBRE
ER

RREARRR
FA
BTN ERRRRATL R A TR FAES °

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRRAZEFERER BREARERERER)

Procedures for conducting a poll were properly explained to all shareholders at
the AGM held on 28 August 2013.

2013458 A28 BEMTNRRFE FERMARRREMBRRIREAARR
R
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TEERME
F. Company Secretary ARUE
Principle A
The company secretary is to support the board by RN EEFZREESUBREFOHKE ZHEN TR UREBHEEE
ensuring good information flow within the board and DHERIESF  ARBEBEEBERER/ BTREHAEESIEHEFETE
that board policy and procedures are followed and ER UZHEFHNABEIIRELER

is responsible for advising the board through the
chairman and/or the chief executive on governance
matters and should also facilitate induction and
professional development of directors.

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”") Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions BF(cl)/ (including any deviations and considered reasons)
FRIRX (el ERRAZEEERER (ERENFRRREZEEE)
F.1.1  The company secretary should be an C The company secretary is Ms MAK Sau Ching, who is an employee of the
employee of the issuer and have day-to-day Company and has day to day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. During the
knowledge of issuer’s affairs. Where an issuer year ended 31 March 2014, she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
engages an external service provider as its company professional training in accordance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and will
secretary, it should disclose the identity of a person continue to comply with such requirement for the year ending 31 March 2015 and
with sufficient seniority at the issuer whom the report regularly.
external provider can contact. AANEAADAEEEA LT  FHARAMBESHEMRE - 12014
RAMEERRBITANES  HETANBEEH E3ABNBILEER - BERE ETRAE320GNME - 2EADIENE
BFTRE o BITABINERBEEETARNE RIS RS MR 201563 A 31 BILRFEHEETERMNRE REH
[EREH NS — B RN RBR B AN RS PR -
BAIATE S o
F.1.2 The board should approve the selection, C The selection, appointment or dismissal of the company secretary is approved by
appointment or dismissal of the company secretary. the Board.
RAMENRE ZEIREERCHESIM - REAMENRE ZERBEOMESERE -
F.1.3 The company secretary should report to the C The company secretary reports to the chairman on Board or Board committee
board chairman and/or the chief executive. matters and to the deputy chairman and managing director on administrative
ARNERMEFEERR/FITRBHER - matters of the Company.
AANERNTEEREHE S E S8R SHRNEITRFESAL
BEREBARABETHER
F.1.4 Al directors should have access to the c Directors have direct access to the advice and services of the company secretary
advice and services of the company secretary to for on-going discharge of their duties and responsibilities.
ensure that board procedures, and all applicable law, ESARBERTEBRAERES YERBZLANE  URGEERRRE

rules and regulations, are followed.
FAESEINERAANENERNZRMOR
% NRRESSRFRAEEREE  RBIRA
Bl REGE T o
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Attendances of General Meetings, Board BREAS - EESRETEESTEZ

and Committee Meetings H fE =
Directors’ attendances in the general meetings and the meetings REBEFER  WRASELAEFE FZEE
of the Board, audit committee, remuneration committee and @ FHNEEeNRERLEeE SR EELE
nomination committee held during the year under review are set KEHHWOT -
out below:
Remuneration
Committee AGM
Audit Meeting/ Nomination (held on 28 August
Committee Circulated Committee 2013)
Board Meeting  Communications Meeting R2013E8 A
Meeting ENzEe §MzEe RtzEE BAET
Name of Director gzgea 82  E3/BNER ] ZRREE
Payson CHA? THBLLe 44 - - 1 X
Victor CHA* T 414 - 4 - v
Benjamin CHA® BRdsEL 11 - - - -
Abraham CHUNG BOEEE 44 - - - v
TANG Moon Wah BRErs 3/4 - - - v
Ronald ARCULLI BERRE 34 - - - X
Johngon CHA BhErE 44 - - - X
Madeline WONG IEZELTL 44 - - - X
Henry CHENG? PRuEL 34 - 44 - X
Linus CHEUNG* RAmRE" 44 22 4 - X
Marvin CHEUNG'® REREL 24 112 - 11 v
Loretta HO™® fiasaRL"e 44 202 - 1 v
QIN Xiao®® SRRt 34 - s 11 X
* members of audit committee * EBRZEZEEKEA
* members of remuneration committee " OHMEEEKE
?  members of nomination committee ° HHMEZEERE
~  comprising three rounds of circulated communications and one meeting ~  BEDREMBEAER-REE
\gas :]e‘asl;jgned as a director with effect from 17 July 2013 S R2013F7 A17 BRI EE 2B
Auditor’'s Remuneration 3Gl
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is the independent auditor of the =E) o FEMRASAIITARNARZ B IZE
Company. The remuneration for audit services provided by Bl o REIBFEREE o BEM T SFTETTIRME
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu to the Group for the year under FAREE 2 EBZRIEZMELAE10.3BEBTT -
review amounted to approximately HK$10.3 million. In addition MEZEBRIN  AATINMNREEEELSTEE
to the audit fee, the Company had appointed Deloitte Touche FAEMR S @t TiIR it B S R H M IEE
Tohmatsu for the interim results review and the other non- R - LIER G RER - AR 10.0EETTL
audit services particularly for tax compliance, special services FHZERAEIRTER S ZERIRG - e A
rendered in relation to the established of US$1 billion medium ASBBATT -

term note programme and major transaction which amounted to
approximately HK$4.5 million for the year under review.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to article 72 of the Articles, apart from being convened
by the Directors, extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the written requisition of any two shareholders of
the Company representing not less than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the time of requisition. Shareholders
wishing to do so must serve a duly executed written requisition to
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 23/F,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong (the “Principal Place of Business”)
specifying the objects of the meeting. If the Directors do not
within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene the meeting, those shareholders themselves
may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by

the Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred by those
shareholders as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

In addition, any shareholder acting on his own or together with
other persons whose shareholding interests in the Company

in aggregate represent not less than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company (other than the person to be proposed)
may nominate a person to stand for election as a director at
general meeting in accordance with article 120 of the Articles.
Any shareholder wishing to do so must serve (i) a written notice
of intention to propose such person for election as a director; (i)
a notice executed by that person of his willingness to be elected;
and (iii) the information of that person as required to be disclosed
under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules to the Principal Place of
Business between the period commencing from the date after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end on (and exclude) the date that is 7 days prior to
the date of such general meeting. The Company shall issue an
announcement and/or a supplementary circular, if applicable, to
inform the shareholders the biographical details of the candidate
proposed if a valid notice to propose a person to stand for election
as a director is received.

Investor Relations

A printed copy of the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company has been published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2014.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014
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Financial Highlights

77
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Turnover of continuing operations

Profit attributable to owners of
the Company

Dividends paid

Earnings per share (HK cents)

EN/NSIEZ 2PNl

EIRAE

FheaF Gl

4,125.1 5,119.4
834.6 998.3
67.5 148.5
61.8 73.9

Total assets BEMRE 28,415.1 26,686.6
Total liabilities BfERRE 9,828.1 9,011.1
Equity attributable to owners NAREER AEGREE
of the Company 16,195.9 15,492.0
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFECET) 12.0 11.5
Net Asset Value Per Share (HK$S)
BREEFE(GET)
14
12.0
12 - 11.5
10.0 '
10 8.7
8
6
4
2
0
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
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Financial Review

§1 %% [B1 BR

Shareholders’ Funds

As at 31 March 2014, the shareholders’ funds of the Group
increased by HK$703.9 million to HK$16,195.9 million (2013:
HK$15,492.0 million (restated)). The increase was mainly due to
an upward fair value revaluation of investment properties, disposal
of certain properties and profit contribution from operating unit.
The gross profit margin of continuing operations for the Group
was 22.3% (2013: 26.0% (restated)).

Major Investing Activities

During the year, the Group received HK$373.7 million repayment
of shareholders’ loan from the Dazhongli project in Shanghai.
The Dazhongli project engaged in development of investment
properties and hotel properties located at Jingan district,
Shanghai, the PRC in which the Group holds 50% equity interest.

In addition, the Tung Chung project, in which the Group has 31%
interest has repaid HK$226.9 million shareholders’ loan to the
Group upon the completion of sales of commercial centre and
residential car parking spaces.

The Group completed the acquisition of the investment interests
in an office building located in Tokyo and a balance payment of
HK$200.2 million, out of the total consideration of HK$284.8
million was made in April 2013.

The disposal of The Sentosa Resort & Spa in Singapore was
completed in January 2014 and contributed HK$1,283.6 million
cash to the Group. In Thailand, a development site which the
Group has 49% interest was disposed of and proceeds of
HK$180.7 million was received up to 31 March 2014.

The Group also disposed of certain industrial investment
properties located in Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong in which deposits of
HK$95.5 million were received during the year.

In August 2013, the Group through a 50:50 joint venture company
won the tender for a land lot in Kau To, Sha Tin at a consideration
of HK$1,220.0 million (the Group’s share: HK$610.0 million). In
October 2013, the Group won the tender for another land lot at
Wu On Street, Tuen Mun at a consideration of HK$551.0 million.
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Financial Liquidity

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had total cash and securities
investment of HK$5,708.9 million (2013: HK$3,407.8 million

(restated)) whilst total bank borrowings, bonds and other loans
were HK$6,028.7 million (2013: HK$5,271.4 million (restated)).

The Group successfully issued HK$560.0 million 7-year unlisted
notes in early April 2013. Subsequently the Group established

a US$1.0 billion medium term note programme (“MTN
Programme”) with listing status on the Stock Exchange. A total of
HK$238.0 million 7-year unlisted notes had been issued under the
MTN Programme in May 2013.

Gearing

The Group’s gearing ratio maintained at a low level of 4.1% (2013:
14.0% (restated)) as calculated by the Group’s consolidated net
borrowings to the shareholders’ funds as at 31 March 2014.

Banking Facilities and Other Loans

The Group closely monitors its liquidity requirements and
arranges financing for its development projects and operations
as and when appropriate. As at 31 March 2014, the unutilised
credit facilities were approximately HK$4,697.9 million (2013:
HK$4,200.9 million (restated)) which increased by HK$497.0
million.

The maturity profile of bank borrowings, bond and other loans
were 38.5% (2013: 34.2% (restated)) falling within one year,
43.3% (2013: 13.7% (restated)) falling between one and two
year(s), 5.0% (2013: 52.1% (restated)) falling between two and
five years and 13.2% (2013: Nil) falling more than five years as at
31 March 2014.

Treasury Policy

The Group has centralised treasury functions and adopted a
conservative approach for its treasury management. With majority
of assets and liabilities denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
US dollars, the Group has limited exposure to foreign currencies.
To manage foreign currency exposure in certain investments
overseas, the Group maintains naturally hedged positions and
shall make any swap/future arrangements as appropriate. The
Group’s banking facilities are principally on floating rate basis and
interest rate swaps will be employed to manage interest rate risk
for its short to medium term borrowings when appropriate and
necessary.

It is the policy of the Group to restrict the use of financial
derivatives for speculative purpose.
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2014, certain subsidiaries of the Company had
pledged bank deposits of HK$51.8 million (2013: HK$27.2 million
(restated)) to secure banking facilities being granted. As at 31
March 2013, a subsidiary of the Company had subordinated its
inter-company debt of HK$40.4 million (2014: Nil) and a fixed
and floating charge was created over the assets and undertaking
of one of the Company’s subsidiaries (total asset value as at

31 March 2013: HK$66.2 million (2014: Nil)) to secure banking
facilities being granted.

In addition, as at 31 March 2014, certain bank loans of the Group
were secured by certain investment properties, leasehold land
and buildings and properties held for/under development for sale,
at the carrying value of HK$1,153.6 million (2013: HK$1,168.2
million).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had contingent liabilities relating to a corporate
guarantee on the Group’s proportionate share to the extent of
HK$158.2 million as at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$168.8 million)
given to a bank in respect of the banking facilities granted to

an investee company. The Group’s interest in such investee
company is classified under other non-current assets.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have other
contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2014.
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Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ERAXFEREBREGRARE
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of

HKR International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 101

to0 225, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms

of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

Independent Auditor’s Report
18 3% BRI
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 1% B

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,

the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
EE) o BEMA T
Certified Public Accountants
HESFAD

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
20146 A25 HREH
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

ARARmK

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

2014 2013

NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
Ptz HEAR HEAT
(restated)
(E71)
Continuing operations BEREEY
Turnover BEH 5 4,125.1 5,119.4
Cost of sales SHERAR (3,205.0) (3,786.0)
Gross profit EH 920.1 1,333.4
Other income HipA 6 171.2 112.7
Administrative expenses ABAX (543.0) (544.9)
Other gains and losses Hith iz g8 7 5096.2 219
Change in fair value of RENENTEZS
investment properties
Realised gains on disposals HERZBERNE 11,16 4.0 55.3
Unrealised gains RER 2 W 11,16 444.0 459.9
Finance costs B 8 (172.6) (121.8)
Share of results of associates “15 AN E 19 0.3 92.0
Share of results of joint ventures AR (R =XA/NCI e 20 (103.7) 282.3
Profit before taxation BR3¢ AT A 9 1,316.5 1,691.4
Taxation B 10 (130.9) (166.5)
Profit for the year from continuing operations #5848 & £ A E R H 1,185.6 1,624.9
Discontinued operations BRIEREER
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 4% 1F 454 £ A F E 1R 12 (129.6) (186.8)
Profit for the year AEE RN 1,056.0 1,338.1
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the AARBE AEEEEE
owners of the Company Sw (&)
For continuing operations REBELCEER 5 964.2 1,185.1
For discontinued operations RE DRI E SR (129.6) (186.8)
Profit for the year attributable to the N/NSE 2PN A
owners of the Company AEERF 11 834.6 998.3
Profit for the year attributable to IR R RS
non-controlling interests AEERF
For continuing operations RERER LR 221.4 339.8
For discontinued operations REBRELEE = -
Profit for the year attributable to MR R
non-controlling interests AEERR 221.4 339.8
For continuing and discontinued BEELERCALRE
operations ¥¥ms
Eamnings per share FREF 15
Basic (HK cents) BRI 61.8 73.9
For continuing operations REECEERTS
Eamings per share TRER 15
Basic (HK cents) EARGEAL) 71.4 87.8

FREXBEBEEBERAR 201
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FmeaBmkEM ISR
For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEBT
(restated)
(7))
Profit for the year AERHN 1,056.0 1,338.1
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hihzm (FsZ) W -
Items that may be subsequently Bl e s 7 EZ 57
reclassified to profit or loss ZHEE
Exchange differences arising from BREFINEBES CERZE
translation of foreign operations (134.9) 116.6
Share of exchange reserve of an associate DIEEE N R BN 0.7 0.8
Share of exchange reserve of joint ventures DEEE R ELHE 111.9 254
Release of exchange reserve upon N EVNSIE eGSR
deregistration of foreign subsidiaries R BRIE 3 (40.2) -
Available-for-sale financial assets: AR ESREE -
Fair value changes during the year FANTEZES) 0.7 11.5
Reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal PEREN T EEER (1.9) 0.9
Deferred tax arising from fair value changes NEEEHEL ZRLEHIE 0.4 0.4
Other comprehensive (expense) income AEFEHEME2E (FX) WS
for the year (net of tax) (B HHIE% ) (63.3) 163.0
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEHANRGEE 992.7 1,491.1
Total comprehensive income attributable to: To G2 MmN SR
Owners of the Company KATHHEEA A 771.4 1,150.2
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R 221.3 340.9
992.7 1,491.1
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 March 2014 FA2014 53 A31 H

2014 2013 2012
NOTES HK$’M HK$'M HK$'M
BisE HEBT BEBT BEAT
(restated) (restated)
(&71) (&%)
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Investment properties REWME 16 7,437.8 6,934.1 6,651.1
Property, plant and equipment %% Bl 17 2,350.8 3,087.4 2,719.3
Prepaid lease payments BNEEMNK 18 7.6 25.9 36.5
Interests in associates it /NI 2y 19 35.1 37.0 49.9
Interests in joint ventures BENA B 20 7,456.4 7,409.0 6,984.6
Held-to-maturity investments F EE‘J,HE&A 21 197.7 144.2 83.9
Available-for-sale financial assets At EeREE 21 83.8 80.5 53.1
Other assets Hip & E 22 140.7 210.6 125.6
Pledged bank deposits BRI 29, 40 49.8 24.4 -
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 31 441 7.1 6.3
Amount due from an associate JRE B o R B KR - - 122.5
17,763.8 17,960.2 16,732.8
Current assets MBEE
Inventories TE 23 69.0 126.2 177.3
Properties held for sale FHELEME 1,762.9 1,155.3 882.4
Properties held for/under BIELECER/
development for sale BRAYE 24 2,478.5 2,383.7 3,172.5
Trade receivables FEWE 585 25 211.2 995.4 241.9
Amounts receivable on contract work  [EMA ?*’JIF FUE 26 78.8 122.0 169.1
Progress payments receivable JRE Uy e 1S 3R 27 63.2 68.3 67.2
Retention money receivable J“‘E“W%Ii 28 97.5 815 85.4
Deposits, prepayments and Ze - BATER
other financial assets Hig mﬂé% 29 315.4 282.9 234.1
Amounts due from associates JRE Bt o A B FR0E 19, 29 45.5 272.2 61.3
Amounts due from joint ventures W& & A BFIR 29 140.6 747 58.2
Taxation recoverable AR EIFHIE 11.1 55 15.2
Held-to-maturity investments BEIHEE 21 63.8 74.3 158.8
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITER 29, 40 2.0 2.8 3.1
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 29, 39 5,311.8 3,081.6 2,813.7
10,651.3 8,726.4 8,140.2
Current liabilities REBE
Trade payables, provision and &I B ST
accrued charges BERETER 30 1,545.1 1,465.0 1,109.5
Amounts payable on contract work &% TR 26 208.7 68.6 77.6
Deposits received and other EH&UE@&EWE
financial liabilities TR 34 303.0 367.8 624.3
Taxation payable FERI IR 82.1 137.9 62.0
Bank and other loans due —FREHZHRIT
within one year REMETR 32 2,321.0 1,801.4 4,439.2
Other liabilities due within one year —FREBzEMEE 33 14.0 11.8 14.9
4,473.9 3,852.5 6,327.5
Net current assets MENBEFE 6,177.4 4,873.9 1,812.7
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 23,941.2 22,834.1 18,545.5
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A AR &R

At 31 March 2014 FA2014 53 A31 H

2014 2013 2012
NOTES HK$’M HK$'M HK$'M
(i3 BEAT BEBT BEBT
(restated) (restated)
(&271) (E7)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bank and other loans —F12B|H 2 R1T
due after one year REMEFR 32 3,707.7 3,470.0 707.9
Other liabilities due after one year —FERIBM HMEE 33 1,406.4 1,490.7 1,329.9
Deferred tax liabilities REFIABE 31 240.1 197.9 162.8
5,354.2 5,158.6 2,200.6
18,587.0 17,675.5 16,344.9
Capital and reserves BERR
Share capital L& 35 337.5 337.5 3375
Reserves i 15,858.4 15,154.5 14,152.4
Equity attributable to owners RARHEE NEL#ER
of the Company 16,195.9 15,492.0 14,489.9
Non-controlling interests R R 2,391.1 2,183.5 1,855.0
18,587.0 17,675.5 16,344.9

The consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 225 were F101 BEEF 225 BfHG A BRI ELEE

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on BH20146 H25 A#LAE RIRETIEE - R T
25 June 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: BEREREE:
CHA Mou Zing Victor CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director
B, /0
Bl F [EFE F AT HiTEF

104  HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAEREHRE
For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

vestment

: Captel
Accumugled  reval evalatio Bxchange  redemption Non-controling
Sharg captel profts & Share premium | 6B 1esene nerests

B | . RhuE : s B

HOW  HOW HOW HOM HOM HOM HOM HOM  HOM  HOM  HM
BEEn  AEET  ABAT  AEAT BB BER REA RERT EBA REAT AEMR

notea) (ot b)
(Hika) i)
At 1 Apr 2012 (audied) I00EL AR (EER) RAE) 87469 26038 15379 28 22 12416 Al 144%.8 13206 168164
Adustments L - b9 - - - - - - b9 54 585
AT Apr 2012 restate] R0eE4R1R(ET) 375 87410 26038 15319 28 22 12016 31 144899 1850 163449
Proftfor the year TER - 9.3 - - - - - - 963 308 13381
Bchane dfeencssarsigfom~ BEREREE
anslon of oregnopeators R EE - - - - - - 1135 - 1135 11 1166
Sher of exchange resere HEBRDGEL
of an asociae G - - - - - - 08 - 08 - 08
Shere of exchange resene HEARDEEL
ofointventues ots ) B - - - - - - %4 - %4 - %4
Fandieckngsnavalatle:  TETESEEEY
fo-sale il asses LTERE - - - - - 15 - - 115 - 15

Recassfedtoproft orloss pon— ETENESE

dispose of avalabledor-sde EERENAREES

financial assels - - - - - 09 - - 09 - 09
Defred o asing fom fa THEESHEELTR

vl changes on avaleble- BaffE BE

for-sal fnancial assets - - - - - 04 - - 04 - 04
Tota comprehenshe ncoe TERAENALE
forthe year - 9%.3 - - - 102 1 - 11502 309 14911

Tnseromestment popery — ERKERATER
revluaon resenerelng fo b
Umelised et e valie gan kAl

dlring the year (Note 11() - (6679) 678 - - - - - - - -
Tinser fom ivesiment poperty - EAEEBATE

revalaton esene relang o Fheggege

net i vl ganreled NEERER(H)

during the year (Note 11) - %9 289 - - - - - - - -
Roiston of aoralteest.~ SREMERTIER

nasbiday - 04 - - - - - - 0 13 09
Dhidends pad BiRE - (1485) - - - - - - (1485) - (1485
Diidends pedtoroncontoling — EFFERER RS

Shareholoers - - - - - - - - - (12 (12
At 81 March 2013 restated) ARERE R e 375 8923 32427 15319 28 34 13633 31 154920 21835 176755
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GARSEDHRE
For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ROER AR

Investment
property Asset  Investment Capital Non-

Accumulated  revaluation Share  revaluation revaluation  Exchange  redemption controlling

Share capital profits resene  premium reserve reserve reserve resenve Total interests
bt ‘ ’ !

BifEH  EERE  RMEE : i FERES

HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
FEEn  EEET  PEAn BB FEET  RERT EEET  FEEm REET EEm EEER

(notea) (note )

(Wita) liE)
At 1 Aorl 2013 restated) RE4A1A(ET) 315 89523 32401 15319 28 24 13633 3 15,4920 21835 17,6755
Prot for the e TEERH - 8348 - - - - - - 846 w4 10560
Bchange dfeences aingfom 3B ERREE
fensaionof oregnopeations~~ ZEXEE - - - - - - (1348) - (1348) 04 (1349
Shareof exchange resene AEBENTES
ofen associte G - - - - - - 07 - 07 - 07
Shareof exchange resene HERRDEES
ofjnventues ote B - - - - - - 1119 - 1119 o 1119
Relase of exchange esenepon— SSNHB L FRTEsHAR
Geegstton offoregn subsidies  FRER e - - = g S 3 (2 ° (02 o (02)
Favale hnges naveeble: ~ THESREEY
fo-sale il assfs LTERE - - - - - 07 - - 07 - 07
Recessfed opuftorbssupon HETREESHERR
disposal of avalabe-or-sde g
financil asses - - - - - (19 - - (19 - (19
Defre ot aing fom fa i N
vek changes n avle- FHfEL B
for-sele nanciel assels - = - - - 04 - - 04 - 04
Tola comprehensive income TERAEVEEE
forthe year - 8346 - - - (0 (624) - m4 23 9927
Tansertomestmentpopery — ERAEEATERIR
revlution esenve e fo BARER
unveglised net far value gain
during the year (Notg 11() - (219 M9 - - - - - - - -
Tenslefominestmentpopety ~ EREEBATE
revaluaon resenerelang o L
et falr vl ganreled NEERRE(RIN)
dung the year (Note 11) - 106.7 (106.7) - - - - - - - -
Dicnds paid Bife - (675) - - - - - - (675 - 675
Duidendspaidtononcontoling ~~ 2FGEARRRE e
sharefolders - - - - - - - - - (187 (131)
At 31 March 2014 ROM4ERS A 115 96142 379 15319 28 36 13209 34 16,1959 23011 16,587.0
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARRBEHRE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Notes:

(@) Investment property revaluation reserve represents the Group’s
accumulated post-tax unrealised net fair value gain on the investment
properties of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates recognised in profit
or loss, and then transferred from accumulated profits to investment property
revaluation reserve. Upon the relevant investment property has been disposed
of and the fair value gain has become realised, the relevant unrealised net fair
value gain will be transferred to accumulated profits.

(b) Capital redemption reserve is the amount equivalent to the nominal value
of the shares cancelled upon repurchase of the Company’s shares which
was transferred from accumulated profits. The reserve may be applied by
the Company in paying up its unissued shares to be allotted to members of
the Company as fully paid bonus shares in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

(c) Share of exchange reserve of joint ventures during the year included an
amount of HK$32.7 million (2013: HK$8.6 million) exchange gain arising from
translation of interests in joint ventures and an amount of HK$79.2 million
(2013: HK$16.8 million) exchange gain arising from loans that form part of net
investment in foreign operations.

it

@ BENEEGEREAEEEIMEAT  ARATREE
AR 2 RANEEARID L D Bl RERATEFUS
g REDEFIBBE R AN LB - RUEBRRAY
ERATEKSERS  AMRRRATEFIC RREL
St -

b) BAREEFEEAERBEOAXTRMNEEHE ROEE
©F - FHESEERAREN - ARR R REEAMEIZA
ARFSESRREDMAEHE  UBRERETRN - X
TERBRAFRMACE FARTMR -

© FR G DMEEERRIZELGERERLESEATIZE
wmEAEZERNE32.7BEBIT(20134F - 8.6 BEBIT) KA
BEEINERINREFE EREEZERRFET928EH
JL(20134F : 16.8 EH&EBIT) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mMEeReEREXR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

2014 2013

NOTE HK$'M HK$'M
BaE HEAR BEAT
(restated)
(&31)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXRY
Profit for the year REEHF 1,056.0 1,338.1
Adjusting items, net AEIER SRR (@) (541.3) (438.0)
Operating cash flows before KA ANLEESEEFI
movements in working capital rEReNRE 514.7 900.1
Decrease in inventories FERD 55.8 8.4
Decrease in properties held for sale HIELEMERD 654.8 1,286.1
Increase in properties held for/under FIEHEZER/ZRR
development for sale N (1,163.6) (736.7)
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables U E 5 8RR (35 0) 786.9 (772.4)
Decrease in amounts receivable W& A TREFIER D
on contract work 46.7 52.6
(Increase) decrease in progress JEUHE 5008 (36 hn) R
payments receivable (0.4) 17.1
(Increase) decrease in retention FEWRE & (3§ 0) B>
money receivable (11.2) 4.8
Increase in deposits, prepayments Ze - BAFEREM
and other financial assets SRVEELLN (82.9) (68.2)
Increase in amounts due from joint ventures JEUA & A BB AN (44.5) (16.3)
(Increase) decrease in mortgage [t eiapanaiilg N
instalment receivables (Em) R (14.6) 2.7
Increase in trade payables, B SIRM - BE R
provision and accrued charges JEEHE B m 34.3 346.8
Increase (decrease) in amounts R &4 Ti2F08
payable on contract work EmORD) 140.1 (9.0
Decrease in deposits received Blize kEA
and other financial liabilities LRIBERD (61.9) (259.1)
Cash generated from operations LEMERS 854.2 756.9
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BRBEBNER (102.6) (44.4)
Overseas tax paid BN (6.5) (16.0)
NET CASH GENERATED EEXBERE TR
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 745.1 696.5
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
f T\ Eﬁ =+ //IL E %

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M
HEBT BEAT
(restated)
(&%)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXH
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BEK
plant and equipment and prepaid REERENEENRK
lease payments ZFSIE 1,287.4 1421
Repayment of loans by joint ventures EENTERER 582.4 -
Repayment of loans by associates s? *é NRERER 229.9 8.1
Redemption of held-to-maturity investments & @145 £ | Eii% & 80.0 159.4
Interest received [RELERSE 75.3 47.4
Proceeds from disposal of available- HETHTECRHEE
for-sale financial assets ZFBRIA 16.0 1.6
Proceeds from disposal of HEREWEZ
investment properties FTiSRE 11.2 392.8
Dividends received from joint ventures =% /.:.\%’& AR S 5.8 -
Capital distributions from joint ventures BERNADIKER - 10.0
Deposit received for disposal of HEREME L
investment properties Blizs - 1.3
Increase in other assets HipEEEM - 2.7)
Deposits paid for acquisition of investment U EEHREW% v GRS
interests in an investment property ZBENES - (84.6)
Capital (contributions to) redemption (HET)ERERE
from an associate YN (0.3) 9.1
Additions of available-for-sale financial assets /R & 7] it H & £ G & & (9.4) (16.8)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI FIL (24.6) (24.1)
Additions of held-to-maturity investments B H Z 2IHIRE (124.9) (134.9)
Additions of property, plant and equipment  REYE - BiE Mk (126.4) (419.7)
Additions of investment properties NEREME (312.4) (541.5)
Loans to joint ventures ERTEERH (648.8) (125.5)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REXEBE (FA)
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES BeBE 1,041.2 (578.0)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EeERemRER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

2014 2013

NOTE HK$'M HK$'M
BaE HEET BEBT
(restated)
(&31)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEK
New bank and other loans raised FIZRTTREMER 1,957.9 5,635.7
Acquisition of additional interest EEHB AR
in a subsidiary - 0.8
Repayment of obligations under EEpRERERE
finance leases (0.8) 0.4
Club debentures redeemed EOlgrES (1.6) (2.5
Dividends paid to non-controlling RIEEE G E VRN
shareholders (13.7) (11.2)
Dividends paid Ry (67.5) (148.5)
(Repayment to) advance from (BRT) BB IHERBE
non-controlling shareholders (82.4) 1451
Interest paid BERFE (145.1) (105.0)
Repayment of bank and other loans ERRITREMER (1,107.4) (6,406.0)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM MELKIERETFE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 539.4 107.4
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BeRBELEEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS ZIEIFEE 2,325.7 225.9
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT  F¥>R&REB L% EER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 3,081.6 2,813.7
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ExgE 28
RATE CHANGES (95.5) 42.0
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRzESRHALEMEER
AT END OF THE YEAR 39 5,311.8 3,081.6
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEReERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

NOTES HK$’M HK$'M
k=S HEBT BEBIT
(restated)
(E51)
Note: FfzE -
(a) Analysis of adjusting items, net (a) FABEBEEFEZIMT
Taxation | 10,12 130.9 177.8
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BMELREBEZTE
and equipment 9,12 176.5 156.6
Finance costs MisE A 8,12 173.0 122.5
Share of results of joint ventures DMEALRREE 103.7 (282.8)
Impairment loss recognised BHERMERE 7,12 24.2 121.8
Net allowance for doubtful debts REEE TR 7,12 4.9 17.1
Release of prepaid lease payments FERHEENRE R 9,12 0.6 0.9
Share of results of associates DEBE AR EE (0.3) (92.0)
Realised gains on disposal of HEREMEL
investment properties OB U 11,16 (4.0) (65.3)
Net gains from financial assets EVEEWRFE 7 (12.7) (0.6)
Interest income MEUWA (75.3) (47.4)
Unrealised gains on fair value of WEMELNTFEZ
investment properties REB U 11,16 (444.0) (459.9)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEDE BELRER
equipment and prepaid lease payments ERRENFRZ kS 7,12 (618.8) (97.2)
(541.3) (438.0)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE B SRR BT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

1. General

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the development, management and
provision of essential and recreational services for residential
housing and leisure projects in Discovery Bay, Lantau Island,
other property development, property investment, hotel
operations and provision of healthcare services. The Group

was also engaged in manufacturing operations which was
discontinued in the current year.

The Group’s associates and joint ventures are principally engaged
in property development and property investment.

2. Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has applied the following new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first
time in the current year.
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 cycle
Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and
disclosure of interests in other
entities: Transition guidance

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKAS 28 Investments in associates and

(as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1

joint ventures
Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs and HKASs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
financial statements”, HKFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”, HKFRS
12 “Disclosure of interests in other entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011) “Separate financial statements” and HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2011) “Investments in associates and joint ventures”, together
with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
regarding transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it
deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) Interpretation (“HK(SIC)-Int”) 12
“Consolidation — Special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10 changes
the definition of control such that an investor has control over

an investee when: (a) it has power over the investee; (b) it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and (c) has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns. All three of these criteria must be met for an investor
to have control over an investee. Previously, control was defined
as the power to govern the financial and operating policies of

an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional
guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an
investor has control over an investee. Some guidance included in
HKFRS 10 that deals with whether or not an investor that owns
less than 50% of the voting rights in an investee has control over
the investee is relevant to the Group.

The Company has 49% ownership interest in Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (“Hanison”), which is listed

on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Company’s
49% ownership interest in Hanison gives the Company the
same percentage of the voting rights in Hanison. Hanison was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 September 2001 and
Hanison and its subsidiaries (“Hanison Group”) were formerly
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. Pursuant to the
completion of corporate reorganisation for listing of shares

of Hanison on the Stock Exchange in 2002, the Company
distributed certain of the shares of Hanison to the then
Company’s shareholders (the “spin-off exercise”). There has been
no change in the Company’s 49% ownership interest in Hanison
since the spin-off exercise.

BRGE S8R BELARKEZ
A R ARMERT A
AEERAFRERER—EAMBRSG 82X
B BEAR MNEZ DRER - REREMH
WELERF 105 [HFAMBRK] - FEWHR
SERAE R [EERH] - AV REER
F125; [REAMERRER  RE]  HEgE
A5 27 5% (2011 FEER) [ BU M B | k&
B EFTERIZE 2858 (2011 FEET) [ REEE A R
REERRZWE]  BRABUHHRELLF
105% - BARMBHRELAFE 1R LB BHHR
EERIFE 1258 (BRI AN) < BRBEES -

ERAGTHERFE 275 (2011 FL1EE]) B BER IR
BN HIEMRE - M ERANAER -

FERMRERAZZEHINWT -

EREBMBRELZAE10R 2E
ERVBRELENFE10RMAREEGALRE
27 5% [ #7B RIBY MK | BRARIESA /M
BREEL (FHRERES)REF 125 [
B-RRENER] Z&D - BEMBEREER
F0RELRIEI TR - EREE (@ EW
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RGN - BT EHIRER S AERTER
M REERRANERBTEEH S - Y
BREENE 1052 AWATIMES| - AR
BENREARRET ZEHE - BOMATE
MsEmEERIE 105k 2155 - REERNES
REREIRE THE PIRE0% R EEGEHIRE
TREEIE - BAKEBRE -

R RN ERS R AR A7) ([ EEs - 75

REER 1) BB 40% A ERER - ARFR
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FREIRZERE o« B 2001F9 A20 R EH SR E
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The directors of the Company have reassessed as to whether
or not the Company has control over Hanison in accordance
with the new definition of control and the related guidance set
out in HKFRS 10 upon its initial application. The directors of

the Company concluded that it has had control over Hanison
notwithstanding the spin-off exercise completed in 2002 on the
basis of the Group’s absolute size of shareholding with voting
rights in Hanison and the relative size and dispersion of the
shareholdings owned by the other shareholders. Hence, Hanison
is treated as a subsidiary of the Company in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 10. In previous consolidated financial
statements of the Group, Hanison was treated as an associate
of the Company and accounted for using the equity method

of accounting. Comparative amounts for 31 March 2013 and
the related amounts as at 1 April 2012 have been restated in
accordance with the relevant transitional provisions set out in
HKFRS 10 (see the tables below for details).

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”, and
the guidance contained in a related interpretation, HK(SIC)-Int
183 “Jointly controlled entities — Non-monetary contributions by
venturers”, has been incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011). HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified and
accounted for. Under HKFRS 11, there are only two types

of joint arrangements-joint operations and joint ventures.

The classification of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 is
determined based on the rights and obligations of parties to

the joint arrangements by considering the structure, the legal
form of the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the
parties to the arrangement, and, when relevant, other facts and
circumstances. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint
operators) have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31 contemplated three types
of joint arrangements-jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
operations and jointly controlled assets. The classification of joint
arrangements under HKAS 31 was primarily determined based on
the legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that
was established through a separate entity was accounted for as
a jointly controlled entity).
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The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and

joint operations is different. Investments in joint ventures

are accounted for using the equity method (proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments in joint operations
are accounted for such that each joint operator recognises its
assets (including its share of any assets jointly held), its liabilities
(including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly), its revenue
(including its share of revenue from the sale of the output by

the joint operation) and its expenses (including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the
assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, relating to
its interest in the joint operation in accordance with the applicable
standards.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
classification of the Group’s investments in joint arrangements in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 11. The directors
of the Company have determined that the Group’s current
investments which were previously classified as jointly controlled
entities under HKAS 31 are classified as joint ventures under
HKFRS 11 and continue to apply the equity method.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general,
the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements with
respective to the Group’s interests in associates, joint ventures
and subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (see Notes
19, 20 and 45 for details).

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for,

and disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement requirements

of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to

fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the
purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for impairment
assessment purposes).
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HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability,
in the case of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at
the measurement date under current market conditions. Fair
value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance

with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has

not made any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for 2013
comparative period (see Notes 16, 21 and 38 for the 31 March
2014 disclosures). Other than the additional disclosures, the
application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1. Upon the
adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group’s “statement
of comprehensive income” is renamed as the “statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income” and the “income
statement” is renamed as the “statement of profit or loss”. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in either a single statement

or in two separate but consecutive statements. Furthermore,

the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive income section such that items
of other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items

of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on
the same basis-the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before tax or
net of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the application of the
amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.
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Summary of the effects of the above changes in

accounting policies

I_r

BETHREB 2 CEUE

The effects of the changes in accounting policies described above L ARSREGBREESEIZIER 2V 2 AFE
on the results for the current and prior years by line items are as MBAFEEREZENT -

follows:

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Impact on profit or loss of the application of HKFRS 10

fRABER

25
=

B BB HEERE 1054118 2%

For the year ended 31 March

BE3AZMALEE

2014 2013
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Continuing operations BEREE
Increase in turnover & ERRIT AN 1,498.3 1,411.8
Increase in cost of sales SHEE R ZNIE N (1,281.0) (1,190.5)
Increase in other income HABYAIZ N 3.4 2.6
Increase in administrative expenses T E (120.4) (119.0)
Increase (decrease) in other gains and losses  E-Ath U %5 & E5 181 00 CRl4>) 24.8 0.5)
Increase in change in fair value of WE YN TEZ LN
investment properties
Realised gains on disposal HER 2 B8 e 4.0 31.2
Unrealised gains RER W 55.7 73.3
Increase in finance costs 51 7% & 12 o0 (7.7) (5.7)
Decrease in share of results of associates DIRERE RN B EE R D (76.6) (91.3)
Increase (decrease) in share of results of DIEEERAIFEEA
joint ventures #hnCrid) 3.5 (0.5)
Increase in taxation FIE1E 0 (15.3) (16.7)
Net increase in profit for the year from BB EBAF IR
continuing operations 2 N FEE 88.7 94.7
Net impact on loss for the year from BRI EEBARFEEE
discontinued operations ZERE - -
88.7 94.7
Increase in profit for the year attributable to: 51| (R ZRE E 3 FIE AN -
Owners of the Company KAREB A
For continuing operations BB LEEBTE = -
For discontinued operations MELIEEEB IS - -
Non-controlling interests IR R
For continuing operations MRBECEEBM S 88.7 94.7
For discontinued operations PERIEEEEME - -
88.7 94.7
88.7 94.7
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

Impact on profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the application of HKFRS 10

fRaEmEMEmRER

JER BRI T2 e BRI E 10 81 1B R A
2 E a2 E

For the year ended 31 March
HZ3H31ALFE

2014 2013
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEABT BEAT
(Decrease) increase in exchange differences  EIBINER EE 2 [E K =58
arising from translation of foreign operations ~ (J&4>) &1 (0.1) 1.8
Increase (decrease) in share of exchange DGEEE QB2 A R
reserve of an associate #hnCrid) 0.2 (0.9)
Decrease in share of exchange reserve of DA B AR ZE R EE
joint ventures A (0.2) -
Net (decrease) increase in other REEEMEERE
comprehensive income for the year OR) 1 hn5sa (0.1) 0.9
Net increase in total comprehensive income ~ AFE 2 HENE/EEE
for the year AN FEE 88.6 95.6
Increase in total comprehensive income for Ty FE(EAREE 2 E IS
the year attributable to: BEEE N
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ SN - -
Non-controlling interests FEE R R 88.6 95.6
88.6 95.6

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Consolidated statement of financial position 1FE AR R
Impact on assets, liabilities and equity as at 1 April 2012 of JEH & B 2ERIZE 10 55410 2012 F
the application of HKFRS 10 4A1HZEE - BlERBmZE
As at 1 April
2012 as As at 1 April
previously 2012 as
reported Adjustments restated
2012 F ®2012 F
4H1H =
AT 23R =7
HKS$'M HK$'M HK$'M
EX-:n BEBT BEATT
Non-current assets IEMBEE
Investment properties "EME 6,135.2 415.9 6,551.1
Property, plant and equipment W - BE &R 2,642.3 77.0 2,719.3
Prepaid lease payments FENEENR 29.7 6.8 36.5
Interests in associates IS/ o 535.7 (485.8) 49.9
Interests in joint ventures BENR S 6,845.9 138.7 6,984.6
Held-to-maturity investments FERERE 83.9 - 83.9
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ECRIEE 53.1 - 53.1
Other assets Hfh&EE 125.6 - 125.6
Deferred tax assets RERIEEE 5.5 0.8 6.3
Amount due from an associate JRE Wi B 28R B IR 122.5 - 122.5
16,579.4 1563.4 16,732.8
Current assets MENEE
Inventories BE 145.8 315 177.3
Properties held for sale FHEL &= 717.8 164.6 882.4
Properties held for/under FHEHE ZER/
development for sale BRPYE 2,546.0 626.5 3,172.5
Trade receivables JEWE 5 8RR 82.1 159.8 241.9
Amounts receivable on contract work FEU & #) T2 7118 - 169.1 169.1
Progress payments receivable P S FRIE - 67.2 67.2
Retention money receivable FEWRES - 85.4 85.4
Deposits, prepayments and e BRFRIER
other financial assets Hih S R&EE 186.9 47.2 234.1
Amounts due from associates A NCIE S 59.0 2.3 61.3
Amounts due from joint ventures R A &R EIIE 58.0 0.2 58.2
Taxation recoverable AR EFIA 14.8 0.4 15.2
Held-to-maturity investments BEIEEE 158.8 - 158.8
Pledged bank deposits R ITIER 3.1 - 3.1
Bank balances and cash IRITEHREIRE 2,628.8 184.9 2,813.7
6,601.1 1,5639.1 8,140.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE RS FRR BT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

As at 1 April
2012 as As at 1 Apiril
previously 2012 as
reported Adjustments restated
R2012 4 R 20124
4H1H 4 A1H
TR 23R ks =7
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
AEBT BEATT BEBIT
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade payables, provision and ERNE SRR - B
accrued charges NIEETE R 777.4 332.1 1,109.5
Amounts payable on contract work ~ JE[H & 4 T2 FIE - 77.6 77.6
Deposits received and other Bz REHM
financial liabilities TRIBE 609.2 15.1 624.3
Amount due to an associate )i ﬁﬂé‘%%’& A)FK 23.0 (23.0) -
Taxation payable FESBIIR 54.6 7.4 62.0
Bank and other loans due —FRNEHZ R1T
within one year FMEMER 3,704.9 734.3 4,439.2
Other liabilities due within one year — RIS A 14.9 - 14.9
5,184.0 1,143.5 6,327.5
Non-current liabilities EmEBBIE
Bank and other loans due —F&EIH 2 R1T
after one year R EAEK 707.9 - 707.9
Other liabilities due after one year —FRFIB s EhatE 1,315.7 14.2 1,329.9
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEAE 156.5 6.3 162.8
2,180.1 20.5 2,200.6
Total effects on net assets HEEFHE L EBRE 15,816.4 528.5 16,344.9
Equity s
Share capital %N 337.5 - 3375
Reserves (=] 14,158.3 (5.9) 14,152.4
Non-controlling interests FEEAR 1,320.6 534.4 1,855.0
Total effects on equity HiEm o BB 15,816.4 528.5 16,344.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

JEHZ BRI TR 2ERIZE 105541 2013 9F
SHE1AZEE  BIERER FE

Impact on assets, liabilities and equity as at 31 March 2013
of the application of HKFRS 10

As at 31
March 2013 As at 31
as previously March 2013
reported Adjustments as restated
2013 4F 20134
3H31H 3H31H
V= 57
HK$'M HK$'M HKS$'M
BEAT BEAT BEBT
Non-current assets BN EE
Investment properties EME 6,178.5 755.6 6,934.1
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB LR 2,984.0 103.4 3,087.4
Prepaid lease payments FERAERR 18.9 7.0 25.9
Interests in associates VNS W 604.4 (567.4) 37.0
Interests in joint ventures BB NE 7,279.4 129.6 7,409.0
Held-to-maturity investments BEIEEE 144.2 - 144.2
Available-for-sale financial assets AfHESREE 80.5 - 80.5
Other assets HmEE 210.6 - 210.6
Pledged bank deposits EHEARIRITTR - 24.4 24.4
Deferred tax assets RIEHIHEE 6.3 0.8 7.1
17,506.8 453.4 17,960.2
Current assets MENEEE
Inventories " 94.7 31.5 126.2
Properties held for sale BIELEME 1,124.4 30.9 1,155.3
Properties held for/under BIERE 2R/
development for sale BERPYIE 1,568.1 815.6 2,383.7
Trade receivables JEWE F R 975.8 190.6 995.4
Amounts receivable on contract work FEUN A #) T2 7118 - 122.0 122.0
Progress payments receivable FEWGE S 5B - 68.3 68.3
Retention money receivable FEWIRE & - 81.5 81.5
Deposits, prepayments and e BNFIER
other financial assets Hih S pEE 259.3 23.6 282.9
Amounts due from associates FEM B R R FRIE 270.3 1.9 272.2
Amounts due from joint ventures A ERFIRIE 74.3 0.4 74.7
Taxation recoverable AR EFIR 3.7 1.8 5.5
Held-to-maturity investments BEIEEE 74.3 - 74.3
Pledged bank deposits EHIRIRI TR 2.8 - 2.8
Bank balances and cash IRITABRKLIRE 2,788.3 293.3 3,081.6
7,236.0 1,490.4 8,726.4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS IR KRBT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

As at 31
March 2013 As at 31
as previously March 2013
reported Adjustments as restated
R 20134 7 2013 4F
3H31H 3H31H
SR 23R T 7
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT ER-im BEBT
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade payables, provision and ENE SRR - B
accrued charges LIEETE R 1,127.7 337.3 1,465.0
Amounts payable on contract work ~ JERT A #) T2 k% - 68.6 68.6
Deposits received and other Bluze &ﬁm
financial liabilities TRIAE 350.1 17.7 367.8
Amount due to an associate FE{ s R B FUE 8.1 8.1) -
Taxation payable FES IR 117.1 20.8 137.9
Bank and other loans due —FRNEHZ RTT
within one year MEMER 990.7 810.7 1,801.4
Other liabilities due within one year —FREIH M aE 1.8 - 11.8
2,605.5 1,247.0 3,852.5
Non-current liabilities EMBEE
Bank and other loans due —F BB B RIT
after one year M EAEK 3,470.0 - 3,470.0
Other liabilities due after one year —FRFIB EatE 1,412.9 77.8 1,490.7
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEAE 191.8 6.1 197.9
5,074.7 83.9 5,158.6
Total effects on net assets HEEFHE EBRE 17,062.6 612.9 17,675.5
Equity s
Share capital (&N 337.5 - 337.5
Reserves = 15,160.4 (5.9) 15,154.5
Non-controlling interests FEER 1,564.7 618.8 2,183.5
Total effects on equity Yt 2 B4R 17,062.6 612.9 17,675.5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Impact on cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2013 of

the application of HKFRS 10

JEHZ BB TR ERZE 109 2182 2013

FIA31AILFRZHEREZZE

2013

HK$'M

BEATT

Net cash inflow from operating activities EEEGMERERAFE 280.8

Net cash outflow used in investing activities WEESFARS R FE (295.3)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BB HEBAMERESMAFEE 123.1

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MEREB) 8 0.2)
Net cash inflow WEMAFE 108.4

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new and
revised HKFRSs, which are not yet mandatorily effective for the
current accounting period. The directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
in the future may have a significant impact on the amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities. Regarding the Group’s held-to-maturity investments
and available-for-sale financial assets, the application of HKFRS 9
will affect the Group’s classification and measurement, however,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have
material impact on the results and financial position of the Group.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

BERSHEANBRREEER - BEGAD
NERME TS B = R E B R #7]
REERI B AV EHREER - AAREFALA
BERMATEVHRELENF ORI ERTAITE
HRAKECEREENERABER SEE
REAFE - RAKE ZFHERIHHE MR
ELREEMS - BRAEBMBERELERF IR
HeFEAREZ D BNFE  BEETKFA
FH A REZFE 2R BART LT -

ARAREFAREAEMI ] REETREWH
W R & AR B 0 A R SRR
EARE-

3. EXEFBE
BARBREERE SR AR RGNS
BB RS EARE - U - BARBRERE
BEES L HRAIRESARIEIIEE 2 B
B -

BRETYUELER TARSHREMRZAFERT
BN SREMBERRTIRIBE LA EERS
W TG EEA

JE St AN T AR E A HERIRE i K RSP
HEHRAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes

in these consolidated financial statements is determined on

such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions

that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS
36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders
or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income

are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Al
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 or when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,

form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect

to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms

part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Company (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or
joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amount receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties.
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When a development property is sold in advance of completion,
profit is only recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the properties have been transferred to the buyer.
Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to this
stage are included in current liabilities.

Revenue from construction contracts, interior and renovation
contracts and building materials installation contracts is
recognised using the percentage of completion method by
reference to the value of work carried out during the year as
determined by quantitative surveyors’ reports.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised as services are rendered.

Hotel operation income is recognised upon the provision of
services and the utilisation of the hotel facilities by guests.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s right to receive payments has been established (provided
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of interest can be measured reliably. Interest income from
a financial asset excluding financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified
as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the production

or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
other than construction in progress are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items

of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease. However, when
there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by
the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter
of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production
or for administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease
payments provided during the construction period is included
as part of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management).

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined as if no impairment loss had been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains

or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

If there is a transfer from investment property carried at fair value
to owner-occupied property evidenced by the commencement of
owner occupation, the property’s deemed cost for subsequent
accounting shall be its fair value at the date of change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

The Group transfers a property from investment property to
property held for/under development for sale when there is a
change of intention to hold the property for sale in the ordinary
course of business rather than to earn rentals or/and for capital
appreciation, which is evidenced by the commencement of
development with a view to sale. For a transfer from investment
property carried at fair value to property held for/under
development for sale, the property’s deemed cost for subsequent
accounting in accordance with HKAS 2 shall be its fair value at the
date of change in use.
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Inventories
Properties held for/under development for sale

Properties held for/under development for sale are classified
under current assets and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs relating to the development of the
properties include land cost, construction cost, borrowing
costs and other direct development expenditure. The properties
are transferred to properties held for sale upon completion of
construction.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are
classified under current assets. They are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost relating to the development
of properties, comprising prepaid lease payments for lands and
development costs, are included in properties held for/under
development for sale until such time when they are completed.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all
anticipated costs to be incurred in marketing and selling.

Others

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Construction, interior and renovation and installation
of building materials contracts

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and renovation

or installation of building materials contract can be estimated
reliably, the revenue and costs are recognised by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, as measured by surveys of work performed.
Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably
and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and renovation or
installation of building materials contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown
as amounts receivable on contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown
as amounts payable on contract work. Amounts received before
the related work is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a liability. Amounts billed for
work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under progress
payments receivable or trade receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using

the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment
property”, such properties are presumed to be recovered through
sale. Such a presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model of the
Group whose business objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such investment
properties are measured using the tax rate applicable for recovery
through use.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over
the lease term.
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The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they
are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy on borrowing
costs (see the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on

a straight line basis over the lease term. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term
on a straight line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight line basis, except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease
is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms

part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity and will be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign
operation. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income,

in which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of exchange reserve.

ShE

mEUERIREE R MR - LR ERIIE
ERASNEE (INE )T 2 R B TIAE TN BEE
(IERKE  TBEEREZER) X5 AH
B ZERGE - RWEMK - INEIIEZE
BHBNE A ZEXEHMERE - RAFEIIRE
RINEIIEZIFERRE IREEAFEE AE
REME o DONEBEKAT R 2 IFEHIRA
TTEHBRE -

REERIEE RBRESRIERES 2B X E5H
ERELMENESER - HERARARBIRINE
BB FRBNCER AR RES 2B EHE
BRON - FEULIERT - BRAE N ZBNE M2 E R
mIER - WRAN 2P > ZEESEHER
SNEFR EF DR ERR - ENBRERAFET
AR IFERIRAMELE Y ZRT ARNER
HEHRBREEENE MR aERBE 2R
BIEAMELE ZELZRAGRI - RILERT
BEE ¢ RN EA 2 T M el E A AR

REIGAMBHRERME - ARBIRINEFZE
EXAEORREPRERRELSREE 227
B ENET) - MEAKARRXIER JVIRFAF
BERBE - BRIFEINE R HIRBEARE - Rt
BRT - BIKERARSE R ZER - PIELER
Z8 (W) REMEEKEERL AR (EX
1) o 25T -

EFEEEEREBEFRAF 2013/2014 F1§

135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B ISR R BT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are reattributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint
ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction

costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments (including all fees or
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income from debt instruments and interest expense

are recognised on an effective interest basis, other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is
included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets includes financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL comprises financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables, progress payments receivable,
retention money receivable, other assets, other financial assets,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, amounts due
from associates and amounts due from joint ventures) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-
maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to interest income calculated using the
effective interest method and dividends on available-for-sale
equity investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes
in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables
and other financial assets, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment

on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables and other financial assets, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When trade receivables and other
financial assets are considered uncollectible, they are written

off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.
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For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses were recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities other than derivatives (including bank and other
loans, trade payables, deposits received, other financial liabilities
and other liabilities) are subsequently measured at amortised
costs, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required
1o settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes/
state-managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense

when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimation, that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors of the Company have reviewed

the investment property portfolio of the Group’s subsidiaries
and associates and concluded that none of the investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, the directors of the Company have determined that
the “sale” presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS 12
is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties
situated in Hong Kong, Thailand and Japan as the Group is

not expected to have tax consequence on disposal of these
investment properties. For investment properties situated in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), the Group has recognised
deferred taxes on changes in fair value as those properties are
subject to land appreciation taxes and enterprise income taxes
upon disposal.
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Control over Hanison Group

Note 45 describes that Hanison is a subsidiary of the Company
although the Company has only 49% ownership interest and
voting rights in Hanison. Hanison is listed on the Stock Exchange
and the remaining 51% of shareholdings are owned by numerous
shareholders. Details of Hanison are set out in Note 45.

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the
Company has control over Hanison based on whether the
Company has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of Hanison Group unilaterally. In making their judgement, the
directors of the Company considered the Group’s absolute size
of shareholding in Hanison and the relative size of and dispersion
of the shareholdings owned by the other shareholders. After
assessment, the directors of the Company concluded that the
Company has sufficiently dominant voting interests to direct the
relevant activities of Hanison Group and therefore the Company
has control over Hanison.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Management had made the following estimations that have

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 31 March 2014 at their fair value of
HK$7,437.8 million (2013: HK$6,934.1 million (restated)) (Note
16). The fair value was based on valuation of these properties
conducted by independent firms of professional valuers using
property valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions
of market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to
these assumptions would result in changes in the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties and corresponding adjustments to
the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

The board of directors of the Company has set up a valuation
committee, which is headed up by the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, to determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for fair value measurements.
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As at 31 March 2014, the fair value of the investment properties
under construction held by the joint venture amounted to
HK$15,072.8 million (2013: HK$13,503.1 million) (Note 20) and
the Group’s share of the value of the investment properties
under construction amounted to HK$7,536.4 million (2013:
HK$6,751.6 million). The valuation of such investment properties
under construction was conducted by independent firms of
professional valuers which was derived by making reference to
recent comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant
property market, and has also taken into account the construction
costs already incurred as well as the estimated costs to be
incurred to complete the projects including future land costs for
obtaining land title certificate, which are deducted in order to
arrive at the value of the partially completed project. The valuation
involves certain assumptions and estimation of future cost to

be incurred. The changes of these assumptions and estimation
would result in changes in the fair value of the investment
properties under construction held by the joint venture.

Properties held for/under development for sale

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s properties
held for/under development for sale amounting to HK$2,478.5
million (2013: HK$2,383.7 million (restated)) (Note 24) with
reference to current market environment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
the assets may exceed its net realisable value. Appropriate write-
down for estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised in profit
or loss when the net realisable value is below cost. The estimates
of net realisable value are based on the evidence available at the
time the estimates are made of the amount the properties held
for/under development for sale that are expected to realise. Actual
realised amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease
in the net realisable value of these properties held for/under
development for sale and additional write-down may be required.

Construction contracts

Revenue from construction contract is recognised under the
percentage of completion method which requires estimation
made by the management. Anticipated losses are fully provided
on contracts when identified. The management estimates the
contract costs and foreseeable losses of construction based
on the budgets prepared for the contracts. Because of the
nature of the activities undertaken in construction businesses,
the management reviews and revises the estimates of contract
costs in the budget prepared for each contract as the contract
progresses. Where the contract revenue is less than expected or
actual contract costs are more than expected, additional losses
may need to be recognised. As at 31 March 2014, the carrying
amounts of amounts receivable on contract work and amounts
payable on contract work are HK$78.8 million and HK$208.7
million (2013: HK$122.0 million and HK$68.6 million) (Note 26)
respectively.

B2014F3A31 A - HAERRIFEZERERK
BYE T AN FER15,072.8 B&E T (20134 ¢
13,503.1 B & 7T) (MIFE20) - MAKE S 1h
2RI EYEBEST,536.4A&EBT (2013
F 86,7516 HEETL) - ZEEREIEYE &
HERBYEEGEMET  H2EREMED
BABZ RO AILEEEER SMEH - WEFTK
BEA Z BENANETE B B THES 2 rPA
(BIEABES I EEBTE 2 THAAN) - ZE
FRATF AR AZBE DT ILEE 2EBE - FE
HRABBEERY 2B TRERMGT - 25/’
BT 2 BB ERA L AR A2 ERIRE
MENFEZEE -

RFIENE 2 BR/BRT Y
KEBELZLREMARREEE ZRABEN
BAHMEIRFEZEEREE - AEEEEL
EZBER/BRAPYEANEIGEA247858E
77T (20134F : 2,383.7 A& BT () (B
24) o (HET AR EISEE Z @ EMOR - TR ] &
RFEERK A RIESER - A ZIRFEZ G
SRR EREEBIERE ZER/BEPYE
ZTERERE BEMEL - EREFRENZHE
HFTRE - BERERE R/ BRI YWEL
ATEIRRE T - WAEREIN MR ©

BEAN
REBEANNKF R TIED A (ERERE
BIEL G #ETHER - BHBENEERIA
HREELBUE - EHBRIEANBE GRS
WA REENA TERGIE - ARNBEEEREE
IS EEEREBEAVOERBAEHSENEE
A ORI EEHETTARF RIEFT © WE D
ERIEHISN BB S LR ARRIEH - AIRT4E/8HE
REBINETE - R2014F3A31H  EWAHTITE
HEMENEGHOIEFIAENERES R A78.87
EBITK208.7BEBIL(20134F - 1220 &S
L 68.6 BEBIL)(MiFE26) o

EFEEEEREBEFRAF 2013/2014 F1§

143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B ISR R BT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Project investment undertaken by a joint venture

The Group has a 50% equity interest in a joint venture,
Dazhongli Properties Limited (“Dazhongli”), whose wholly owned
subsidiaries are engaged in the development of certain properties
in Shanghai, the PRC, for investment purpose. In considering
the recoverability of the Group’s loans to Dazhongli amounted
to HK$4,483.3 million (2013: HK$4,846.1 million) (Note 20), the
management takes into consideration the recoverable amount
of the underlying assets of Dazhongli which is determined

by reference to the costs to be incurred to complete the
development of the properties and the future rental income to be
generated therefrom. In this regard, the management considered
that no impairment is necessary in respect of the loans to
Dazhongli.

Impairment of amount due from an associate

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31
March 2014 is an amount of HK$613.2 million (2013: HK$843.4
million) due from an associate, Tung Chung Station Development
Company Limited (“TCSDCL”), which is engaged principally in
property investment activities (Note 19). In determining whether
an allowance for the amount due from the associate is required,
the management takes into consideration the recoverable amount
of the underlying assets regarding the amount due from the
associate and the likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is
only made for the amount that is unlikely to be collected from the
associate. The management is satisfied that no further impairment
is considered necessary in respect of the amount due from the
associate.

Deferred taxation

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has recognised deferred tax
assets of HK$9.4 million (2013: HK$37.9 million (restated)) (Note
31) in relation to unused tax losses in the consolidated statement
of financial position. No deferred tax asset was recognised

in relation to the remaining estimated unused tax losses of
HK$1,029.1 million (2013: HK$863.6 million (restated)) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future taxable profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits generated differs significantly from the expected, a material
recognition or reversal may arise, which would be included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the period in which
such recognition or reversal takes place.
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Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

When there is indication that property, plant and equipment may
be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the relevant asset
and the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is
the estimated future cash flows discounted to their present value
using an appropriate discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific

to the relevant asset. Where the actual future cash flows or fair
value less costs of disposal are less or more than expected, or
changes in facts and circumstances which result in revisions of
the estimated future cash flows for the purpose of determining the
value in use, further impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 March 2014, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment is HK$2,350.8 million (2013: HK$3,087.4
million (restated)). Details about impairment losses provided on
property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in Note
17.

5. Turnover and Segment Information

The chief operating decision maker considers Hanison Group as
a single operating and reportable segment under the application
of HKFRS 10 and the Group is now reorganised into six operating
divisions: property development, property investment, services
provided (clubs operation and provision of professional property
management and transportation services to the residents of
Discovery Bay), hotel operations, healthcare (provision of medical
and dental care services, comprising diabetic and cardiovascular
centres, cancer centres, an imaging centre, dental clinics,
Chinese medicine centres and multi-specialty outpatient centres)
and Hanison Group (building construction, interior and renovation
works, supply and installation of building materials, sale of
health products, property investment, property development
and property agency and management). Each of the operating
divisions represents an operating and reportable segment.

The operating segment specialising in the manufacturing and sale
of sanitary products was ceased in the current year. The segment
information reported as follows does not include any amounts
for those discontinued operations which are described in more
details in Note 12.

Y% - WE REEREGET
EEDRBRYE  BELRETELIRRE
B AREeEHEEEE 2 IIRE SR - BE
EESENZEEEE REEMEAWE S
FZEREATE - JRE SR AFEREEEATFER
HERAMER 2R =mE - FRABEEANEZR
REEHFRRBERSWBRZREZEHEE - %
AIRERMIRITMEH S ENEEREEEER
FERB 2 FHE - WERREREXATFERTLE
RATYERSENRTER - AEFERBRBEME
SHRETFEREEZEFTARRESREFTME
5] AIRRAIge @ E A — PR BB B S R
BT - R2014F3A31H @ W -« WE MR
2 ARE{ER2,350.8 B &L (20134 : 3,087.4
BEEL(EY)) - FTARYE - HE REHEE
BEE B 2 B E I E17 ©

5. EXBRIHER

REEBUBRELNE 10K ER 2L
@/;% %wuﬁ!@ﬁ%ﬁl;‘%ﬁ_%@&jmﬁ&
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- MERE - RHRE (FAEBA LR
“EE&M#¥%¥EE&L%%ﬁO/@E¥
BEREE (RREBE LT RMRERT - @%
#EWF&/DM%E%@ D BEDRER L ER
b FRIZAT - BRI &ynﬁﬁﬂﬁ
D) AR RSB (B T2 - K MEETE -
HERELZZEMF - RFEMBEE  WER
B MEERMDERIERER) - KEEEM
RE—MAEERFI2HAEL

BN EEERHERAERNEED D RA
FELEL - AT 2D BERLTEREZFOK
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EEEEEREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F355

145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS FRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results AT BIRIEEERA 2RO AFEAEE
from continuing operations by operating and reportable segments RABEREEL ZINMA LS -
for the year:

Continuing operations BELSEER

Property Property Senvices Hotel Hanison

development investment provided operations Healthcare Group

35 NRRE RARE EERE BRRR EpRN

HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
L1 AEEL i EL EL L BEER

Forthe yearended 31 March 2014~ BZ 20143831 ALEE

TURNOVER gxE
Seqment revenue - s3es o AN -FEEREEL

extemal customes derved by WIIRPHER

the Group and associates 1,093 3320 476 4555 258 14983 41368
Excluding tumover o associates NN -E ] 04 (f13) = - = = (17)
Consoldated tumover, as reported BAREE M2 1,093.2 320.7 4716 455.5 2858 1,493 41254
RESULTS E+
Seqment resuts - otd realed et AHEE-IEE  BELAR

o the Group, associates and RENFZEER SR

fantventues (ote ¢ (e 1854 1492 8.1 6155 (349 1083 11092
Boldng eeised esuls of associetes  SRFEAEEAERELAR

and jont ventures not shered RENF/EETEE

by the Group (280) 204 - - - - 4)
Results afirbutable to the Group KEEELEE 1574 1696 84 6155 (343) 1083 11016
Other income EfiA 29
Unelocated comorate expenses FORLFER (1179
Finance costs and comorate eve BEERRATEAERER

exchange diference (123.9)
Net unreaised gens on fainvale chenge.~ REMELTEZS A2H

of nvestment propertes note ) Y& () H24
Net unreaised losses on i vale TEERELELAR

change of ivestment propertes BalTREnzER,

attbutable to the Group's nerests NTEEH AERERRR

i ajoint venture and an associte bl

net of deferred fax (1109
Proft for he year TEERT 1,1856
Non-controling shareholders’ share FERRRACAER

of proft for the year (221.4)
Proft for the year atbutable to the KRTRENRERER R

owners of the Company 964.2
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Property Property Senvices Hotel Hanison
development investment provided operafions Healthcare Group

HKS M HKS M HKS M HKSM HKSM HKSM HKS M

AEET BERT BERT AERT RERT REET AEET
For the year endedt 31 March 2013 (estated) EIZ 20133 31 AILEE (5
TURNOVER p4d
Segment revenue - saes o exeml ARA-TEAREE L
customers derived by the Group HFREHER
and associates 22811 31 4506 3130 274 14118 51610
Exclucing fumover of associates URBENT E5E 04) {12 - - - - (£16)
Consolated tumover, s reported Faekl 028 22867 299 4506 3730 2974 14118 51194
RESULTS &
Seqmentresuts - totd redsedresuls AHEE-TEE  BELAR
of the Group, associates and ot AELFZRERFELE
ventures (nofe ¢ (Hito) 5655 3098 2 39 (169 1119 997
Bicluding redised resus of associates ARFAEEAREELAR
and foint vertures not shared AENADEREE
by e Group 09 189 - - - - 19
Resulsafrioutatleto the Group REERLRE 5546 209 32 839 (169 1119 8799
Other income EAA 77
Unalocated corporate expenses KOELAER (69,1
Finance costs and cororae lvel IHERRAAEE ENES
exchange diference (102)
Net uvealised gans on farvalue change.~ RAMEATFERE,
of ivestment propertes note FERNEFE () 1602
Net unvealised gains on fair value KEREEAELAR
change of investment propertes BeLMRENFER,
attroutable to the Group's ntrests DEERS AR RNETE
inajoint venture and assocites, MRERE
net of defered tax 3364
Proft o the year RERRT 15249
Non-contoling shareholders'share FERREA R ER AT
of proftfor the year (3399
Proffor the year atoutableto the KOAEE \RETER AT
owners of the Company 11801
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Notes:

(@) The segment results of the Group represent the total results of the Group,
associates and joint ventures, excluding the unrealised gains on fair value
change of investment properties net of deferred tax arising from change in fair
value.

(b) The net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment properties for
the year ended 31 March 2014 of HK$412.1 million represented the unrealised
gains on fair value change of investment properties of HK$444.0 million net of
deferred tax charge arising from change in fair value of HK$31.9 million.

(c) The segment results of the Group represent the total results of the Group,
associates and joint ventures, excluding the unrealised gains on fair value
change of investment properties net of deferred tax arising from change in fair
value. The segment results of property investment business for the year ended
31 March 2013 included realised gains on fair value change of investment
properties of HK$11.3 million.

(d) The net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment properties for
the year ended 31 March 2013 of HK$460.2 million (restated) represented the
unrealised gains on fair value change of investment properties of HK$459.9
million (restated) and the deferred tax credit arising from change in fair value of
HK$0.3 million.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the

same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned by (loss from)
each segment without allocation of other income, unallocated
corporate expenses, finance costs and corporate level exchange
difference, net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment
properties and net unrealised gains (losses) on fair value change
of investment properties attributable to the Group’s interests in

a joint venture and associates, net of deferred tax. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

All of the segment revenue from continuing operations reported
above is from external customers.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating and
reportable segments is disclosed as they are not reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker nor otherwise regularly provided to
the chief operating decision maker for review.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Other segment information

Lith D FRE R
BRExR

zﬁ‘m
n"‘

Continuing operations

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE2014F3A31HLFE
Unallocated
development  investment provided operations Healthcare Group amounts

U S SRR BERE BiRe EERE  AOEEE

HKS'M HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
G L (LI ELE L1 (LI ELE LI

Property Property Services Hotel Hanison

E\I
=R
mr
pa sy
~F
k>
F’u’iﬁ

Amounts incuded nthemeaswre  ESPER

of segment proftorloss:
Revenug flom ntersegment sales* &0 2 &N = 27) (94 = = (1282) : (1403)
Depreciaton ik 125 17 495 790 125 65 a7 1754
Impeirment oss recognised on % BRREEL

property, plant and equioment BETEEEE - - - - 112 - - 112
(Reversal of lowance) ret alowance. R (REAE) RETE

for doubiful cebts - - (03 - 03 49 - 49
Net gans rom firancil assets SHERNRSE - - = = = 04 (126) (f21)
Loss (gan)on disposalof progerty,  HE71% » BERER

plntand equipmentand prepad ERTEERFZER (i)

Iease payments - - 05 (6844 08 (294) - (612.7)
Realsed gains on dsposals of hERENE ERRNE

nvestment properties - - - - - (40) - 40)
Interestincome HEkA (04) (192 - K] - (14 08) (754)
Finence costs ihER - 48 - - - 11 1601 1726
Income tax charges [cred fiEhin(#8) 568 27 o7 198 16 153 (1) 1309
Share of results o associates AMenazE 26) 21 - - - 03 04 03
Shareof esufsof jontventwres~ FEAELTEE (212 25 - - - (35) 1079 1037
Write down of inventories TERE - - - - 11 - 17
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (restated) HZE2013F3 A31 HILFE (F5)

Unallocated
(evelopment investment provided operations Heafthcare Group amounts

hEEE  NERE MR BRER sEme med

HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
REAT B REAT EL i L REAT ELi BERT

Property Property Senvces Hotel Hanison

150

Amounts included in the measure

HEfHERRAE EE:

of segment proft or loss:
Revenue fom nter-segment saes * 20 2 8BNS - (36) 74 - - (1427) - (1537)
Depreciaton i 121 88 t64 52 123 87 34 149
Impaiment oss feversel of Iz BRRRECED

impaiment bssjeognisedon - BB (RESEAD)

property, plant and equipment - - - - 01 23 - 22
Reversal of mpaiment oss G

recognised on prepeid lease REFERE

payments - - - - - (04 - (04
Net alowance (ieversal of AERETE(RRR)

allowance) for doubtful debts - - 04 - (1) 30 - 23
Net losses (gais) fiom fnenciel ascels SEAEEE (k) 78 - - - - - 03 09 08)
(Gain) loss on cisposal o property, ~ HEWE - BERER

plant and equipment and BRBERT e EE

prepaid lease payments 21 02 20 14 - 04 04 (30
Realised gains on cposals of nERENR G

investment properties - (13 - (128 - (312) - (55.9)
Inerestincome HEMA 08 (187) - 20 - 08) 44 (#63)
Finence costs HER 143 66 - - - 57 %2 1218
Income tax cherges ﬁ’ﬂﬁéiﬁi 1175 170 87 24 15 167 27 1663
Share of resuts of associates Pl 01 50 - - - 08 (t63) 90
Shareof esuts ofjont ventures AR RTEE (12 123 - - - 05 (2939 (282

Inter-segment sales are entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements, if any, governing those transactions, in which the pricing was

determined with reference to prevailing market price or actual cost incurred, as

appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Turnover from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover from
continuing operations from its major products and services:

2014 2013

FTEEMRBRB 2 EER
UTAAREREREET 2 T BER MR 2
CESVE

HK$’M HK$'M
BEERT BEBTT
(restated)
(&31))
Sales of properties HEME 1,322.2 2,612.2
Revenue from construction contract work BELSHMTIR WA 880.0 744.4
Sales of goods HEEm 81.0 87.1
Rental income HBWA 327.7 307.1
Hotel revenue BIEWA 455.5 367.3
Provision of healthcare services IR EBE R AR 285.8 297.4
Revenue from contracts for installation RHEFEEMEIE 82 A

of building materials 213.9 195.0
Other services rendered IRHHE M AR TS 559.0 508.9
4,125.1 5,119.4

Geographical information thEE ¥

For each of the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, the
Group’s continuing operations are located in Hong Kong, the
PRC and South East Asia and Japan.

The Group’s revenue from external customers from continuing
operations based on the location of properties and goods
delivered or services rendered, and location of properties in the
case of rental income, and information about its non-current
assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

HZE2014F K 2013F3 A1 HILEFE - A&
B BECEEBUNRED - FREARERER
HA -

AEEFERERB 2 RKBINDFS (A%

RNEREERRB 2 E REE - S
AME - AYEMEREE) 2 WS M ARE
REEMBEUEE N 2 FRBEEZFBNT ¢

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

REIMBEF 2z = FRBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'M HK$'M HK$’M HK$'M
BEBT BEBIT BHEBT BEBIT
(restated) (restated)
(E31)) (&%)
Hong Kong B 3,005.4 3,447.3 9,235.3 8,122.8
PRC s 59.7 22.9 6,629.6 7,011.1
South East Asia and Japan I EEYS Y= RN 1,060.0 1,649.2 1,399.8 2,334.7
4,125.1 5,119.4 17,264.7 17,468.6

Note: Non-current assets excluded those related to discontinued operations,
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

The revenue from individual customer contributed less than 10%
of the total turnover of the Group for both years.

MiEE : JERBEETEEED R HEEEBARNIERDE
B 2RTAMREREEE -

FREIEEFZEHR

REAMEFE - KB E/EFF 2K THEBEA
SEBERE210% °
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

6. Other Income 6. HfblA
2014 2013
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEAET ER-3:n
(restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations RS ER
Other income includes the following: EWABETYIEE :
Bank and other interest income #RIT R E AR WA 75.1 46.5
Other income EAbUA 96.1 66.2
171.2 112.7

7. Other Gains and Losses

7. HttWmREE

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M
BEBRT BEBBIT
(restated)
(&51)
Continuing operations HEREER
Other (losses) gains include the following: Eitn (F518) W= IE T 5 & IE
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain SNEDE H)F (B518) e (51.6) 18.0
Release of exchange reserve upon AN B R BB S R
deregistration of foreign subsidiaries R R BE 5t 40.2 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE - BEMEER
and equipment and prepaid lease FENHEEN Rz W
payments (note) (BF5E) 612.7 3.0
(Impairment loss) reversal of impairment EHRCREEE) RE
loss recognised [E5tE#El
Property, plant and equipment SN (11.2) 2.2
Prepaid lease payments FERHEENK = 0.4
Inventories TE (1.7) -
(12.9) 2.6
Net allowance for doubtful debts RARHHEFEER (4.9) (2.3)
Net gains from financial assets EREEWRFRE 12.7 0.6
596.2 21.9

Note: The gain on disposal mainly arises from disposal of hotel property and
leasehold land in Singapore which was completed in January 2014.

MiEE © HEPSWRE T EIEN20145F1 A B SeA &R # i
BEEIEERBE LG R o
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8. Finance Costs

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

8.

MBER

2014 2013

HK$’'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
(restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BERSEER
Interest on TAIEIEZ R
Bank and other loans wholly repayable BARAFNEBEHEEZ
within five years HRITREMER 110.7 104.3
Advances from non-controlling ARAFANTBEHEEZ
shareholders wholly repayable FEAERR IR < 25X
within five years 19.1 15.5
Other loans not wholly repayable BERAFRNEEEE
within five years HMER 34.0 -
163.8 119.8
Less: Amounts included in the cost W ETARBIELRE 2 BR/
of properties held for/ BRAP/EEYE
under development for A2 &8
sale/construction in progress (26.8) (24.2)
137.0 95.6
Bank and other loans arrangement fees RITREMERLTHER 35.6 26.2
172.6 121.8

EFEEEEREBEFRAF 2013/2014 F1§
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

9. Profit before Taxation 9. KRBiADEF
2014 2013
HK$’M HK$'M
BBEAT BEBIT
(restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BHEREERK
Profit before taxation has been arrived BrEp A A 2R (BHA)
at after charging (crediting): TAI%IE
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT S 10.3 9.8
Cost of inventories and developed GFERBERYENR
properties recognised as an expense ER AR 824.0 1,618.4
Contract costs recognised as expense BRNEERBIHERA
in cost of sales =53 1,071.7 897.5
Operating lease rentals in respect of land T REFEEHERS
and buildings 42.6 45.0
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) 2 L7 (BiEE EHE) 889.1 795.3
Release of prepaid lease payments FENEENRED 0.6 0.6
Depreciation e 175.4 142.9
Net rental income under operating leases on  &&HE T 2 S WA FEE
Investment properties B (323.5) (303.6)
Other properties HAtb 2 (4.5) (4.3)
Less: Outgoings B X 40.3 40.5
(287.7) (267.4)
Expenses included in cost of contract work 5t AS K LIRR AR Z FisZ
Depreciation e 3.3 5.3
Release of prepaid lease payments FENHEENRED 0.2 0.2
Rentals under operating leases in respect of &< E 2 &
Plant and machinery R KAk gs 7.2 8.5
Others Hith 1.3 0.5
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

10. Taxation 10. BB
2014 2013
HK$’'M HK$'M
AEET BEBT
(restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BEREER
The taxation charge comprises: MBS HEE
Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated at 16.5%  ANFE (5T FE R 7
of the estimated assessable profit B E16.5% stE 2
for the year BENEH 50.3 77.2
Overseas tax calculated at rates prevaiing R A AEERERZ
in respective jurisdictions TRETE 28N EE 35.4 55.6
85.7 132.8
Deferred taxation for current year (note) AN EIEFERIE (FI5E) 45.2 33.7
130.9 166.5
Note: An analysis of deferred taxation for the year is as follows: MisE - AEERERIEZ AT -
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBT
(restated)
(E7))
Deferred tax charge (credit) arising during AEEREMEATEES)
the year in respect of unrealised EEREE W (F18)
gain (loss) on fair value change of ZIRFERIES I (%)
investment properties 31.9 0.9
Others Hith 13.3 34.0
45.2 337
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated BB G IR FE G ERT S FIRH X
assessable profit for both years. 16.5% 51 H o
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT RIEF B FEFTSEUE R EEMEIRG - R

Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate RNEIRZREEE 2 TR R 25% °
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates REMBEERES CHIBRGHEEEER 2R
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. TIREETE -

EEEEEREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F355
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before AEFFIBS HEARS B R AR AR R 2 ¥

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as BRIAT ¢
follows:
HK$'M HKS$'M
BEER BEAT
(restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations HEREEK
Profit before taxation Br A& 1,316.5 1,691.4
Less: Share of results of associates DA =Y kl/NETE—¥ (0.3) (92.0)
Share of results of joint ventures PMEEERREE 103.7 (282.3)
Profit before taxation attributable N B (G BR B AT A
to the Group 1,419.9 1,317.1
Tax charge at the domestic income tax rate XA FTSFFL K 16.5%
of 16.5% AEZHIAEXH 234.3 217.3
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERRIMA Z BRI &
tax purpose (173.8) (108.1)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible DA 2 B2
for tax purpose 48.1 38.2
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERHIBEEB 2 HETE 56.3 17.3
Utilisation of tax losses previously FRBARER 2 BIEEE
not recognised (29.0) (28.8)
Effect of different tax rates of REMEEREEEE Y
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions B AR R AR 2 2 5.5 15.8
Tax effect of deductible temporary RIER AR E R ERE 2
differences not recognised ik 1.2 20.5
Utilisation of deductible temporary FRBERERZ
differences previously not recognised AT R ERR (4.4) 9.3)
Others Hth (7.3) 3.6
Taxation attributable to the Group for the year ZN5= @4 (N fE(E T IE 130.9 166.5
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11. Profit for the year attributable to the

Owners of the Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

1. 2T EEAEERFEEREF

2014 2013

HK$’M HK$'M
HEBET BEET
(restated)
(&731)
Profit for the year attributable to the owners RARHEBNELERFE
of the Company comprises: S EAE
() Netunrealised gains on change in fair value () FABENIAFEES 2
of investment properties during the year KRR FHE
—The Group —A&HE 444.0 459.9
Deferred tax (charge) credit ERERIR () H R (31.9) 0.3
Attributable to non-controlling interests IR R (G (89.3) (128.8)
322.8 331.4
- Joint venture, net of deferred tax —BERT - HRELERIE
(Note 20(a)(i)) (BIsE 20(a)(|i)) (111.0) 290.1
— Associates, net of deferred tax —HpENE] - HRIEERIE 0.1 46.3
211.9 667.8
(i) Accumulated net realised gains (losses) (i) FREEREWEZ 251
on disposal of investment properties BN RIE (BR) -
during the year:
- The Group —KEEH
Gain on disposal of investment HEREYE 2 W=
properties (Note 16) (BizE16) 4.0 55.3
Accumulated gains on change in ;@Eiﬁa&&ﬂ )7 HERE
fair value of disposed investment W NEBEH B UGS -
properties recognised in prior years, GBI R 1B
net of deferred tax 5.3 491
Attributable to non-controlling interests IR R (4.7) (25.1)
~ Associate YN
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREWE 2 W - 58.1
Accumulated gains (losses) on change BEEERHRZ
in fair value of disposed investment HEREMENTEE
properties recognised in prior years, 2R (B8)
net of deferred tax MNGEER IS 104.1 (11.0)
108.7 126.4
(i) Operating profits from continuing (i) FHELEERLERET
operations 750.3 419.8
(iv) Operating losses from discontinued (v) BARIEEEEBLEER
operations (Note 12) (BzE12) (129.6) (186.8)
Subtotal a5 941.3 1,027.2
Less: Accumulated (gains) losses on B BAEECEAZHERE
change in fair value of disposed YN EEH B
investment properties recognised (W) E1E - IR IELERE
in prior years, net of deferred tax
—The Group —A&HE (5.3) (49.1)
— Attributable to non-controlling interests — IR 2.7 9.2
— Associate NG| (104.1) 11.0
Profit for the year attributable to the owners RATIEE NEERNEE ST
of the Company 834.6 998.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS IR KRBT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

12. Discontinued Operations 12, BRI EER

The Group had operated sanitaryware manufacturing business AREBFERNRMNEEENEZAREER - 1
principally in Australia and the United Kingdom (“UK?). AFE  AEBRRRE EREATRIEREA
During the year, the management had decided to cease the FUEEH DR IEREE R AT EEEES N
sanitaryware manufacturing operations due to unfavorable T o BamkPZEBHETE TEIGERIERE
business performance and loss for the year from discontinued VEBD MR HQEHEBEHZY o

manufacturing operations is set out below. The comparative
figures in the statement of profit or loss have been restated
to re-present the manufacturing operations as discontinued

operations.
Loss from discontinued operations ERIEREEEEE
Loss for the year from discontinued operations is analysed as DRI EEBARFEEBONMAOT ¢
follows:
2014 2013
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEAT BEBTT
Turnover EERE 82.4 178.9
Cost of sales SHERA (124.6) (240.1)
Gross loss F1E (42.2) 61.2)
Other income N 0.3 1.2
Administrative expenses TR (82.7) (70.2)
Other gains and losses E Atz R E 18 (4.6) (44.6)
Finance costs M%EEA (0.4) 0.7)
Loss before tax FrEERTES 1 (129.6) (175.5)
Taxation g = (11.3)
Loss for the year REEFEE (129.6) (186.8)
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A ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Loss for the year from discontinued operations has been arrived ERIHEEEBAFE BB R GEA) T3
at after charging (crediting): 18 :
2014 2013
HK$’M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 17 &5k AN A5 52 89.0 145.2
Operating lease rentals in respect of land THIREF2EEHERS
and buildings 4.3 15.0
Staff costs BT 62.9 96.0
Release of prepaid lease payments TERHEENRE D = 0.3
Depreciation e 1.1 13.7
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEMEER
equipment and prepaid lease payments ENEENR K (6.1) (94.2)
Net allowance for doubtful debts REREHEIFRE - 14.8
Impairment loss recognised BERBEESE
Property, plant and equipment L E YA L] 1.4 82.2
Inventories EX= - 42.2
Other receivables H At EUGRIA 9.9 -
11.3 124.4

During the year, the sanitaryware manufacturing operations paid RAFE  RAEREEBRASE 2 LEREM
HK$70.2 million (2013: HK$82.8 million) in respect of the Group’s EFETN702BEBL(20134F : 82.8 B8

net operating cash flows, contributed HK$5.4 million (2013: AL MIREEBKER 5.4 B 8B (20134 ¢
HK$117.5 million) to investing activities and paid HK$9.3 million 1M75B8ET) RERMEXEBZN9.3 BEAET
(2013: HK$1.1 million) in respect of financing activities. (2013 F 11 EEET) °
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RE RS FRR BT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

13. Directors’ Remuneration and Five
Highest Paid Employees’ Remuneration
(i) Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen (2013:
fourteen) directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Cha  Cha ChaYiu Chung
MouSing MouZing  Chung Sam Tin
Victor Benjamin" Abraham

Payson
BHE  ERH BN EOR B

Ronald
Joseph Mou Daid May Lung Kar Shun Kin Tung Wing Lam
Arculli Johnson Madeline

13. EEME N ERESHFEEZ

[
() ESMEFHEOT

BTSN 134 (20134 : 14 B) EERAZH
T

BZ2014F3A31HILEE

Cha WongCha Cheng Cheung Cheung HoPak
Ching
Loretta

fifg

Linus

RAR

Marvin

RER

Henry

EAE IEER dmA

HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM
AE%n BEAn BEAT BEAn EERT EERT EERL FERn EERn AEAn AERn EERn BEAT BEAR
Fees ik = - - - - 04 04 04 02 03 03 03 03 1.7
Other emoluments Efbie
Seares and otherbenefts  E & RE M 50 66 09 24 4 - - - - - - - - 190
Performance relaed incentive 3% (i a)
payment (note a) 15 6.3 - 08 16 - - - - - - - - 102
Ex-gratiapayment noteb) KA (H3h) - - - - 120 - - - - - - - - 120
Retiement benefts schemes  &iETIE IR
contribution - 03 0.1 - 02 - - - - - - - - 06
Total emoluments Het® 65 132 10 32 179 01 01 0.1 02 03 03 03 03 435

For the year ended 31 March 2013

EZE2013F3 A3 HIEFE

Cha ChaYu Chung  Tang Rondd  Cha Cheung WongCha Cheng Cheung Cheung  HoPak
MouSng MouZng Chung SamTin  Moon Joseph MouDaid  Tseung MayLung KarShun KinTung WingLam  Ching
Pagson ~ Victor Benjamin Abraham ~ Wah  Aculi Johnson  Ming™ Madelne  Heny  Mawin  Linus  Loretta
Bz E0H EEE BRE REO IR FER TR RA
KM HKSM  HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM  HKSM HKSM  HKSM  HKEM HKSM HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM
BERT REET BEET BEAT RERT RERT BEET BEAT BEAT AEAT ASET BERT BEAT AEAT RERT
Fees e - 03 - - -0 01 01 01 02 04 04 04 03 2
Other emolments Ele
Sares and otverbenefts S RENET T L R ')
Perormance reted incentive. S (Fita)
payment (note a) 10 50 007 15 - - - - - - - - Y
Reffement benefs schemes  E(RERIET &3
contrbution - 030 - 02 - - - - - - - - - 06
Total emoluments ieeE 56 M5 40 28 53 01 01 01 01 02 04 04 04 03 33

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes:

(@) The performance related incentive payment is determined with reference
to the operating results and comparable market statistics of the Group, and
individual performance of the directors during the year.

(b) The ex-gratia payment is given to the executive director to recognise his
long service and contribution to the Group upon reaching the Company’s
retirement age.

*  Resigned as director with effect from 17 July 2013.
** Resigned as director with effect from 1 March 2013.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join. No directors waived any
emoluments during both years.

(ii) Employees’ remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the five highest paid
individuals of the Group included three (2013: three) executive
directors, whose emoluments are disclosed above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2013: two) employees are as
follows:

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

BIRE

(@) BHENSEFNAKEZKLEEE  THETSEER
BERERNRREE -

b) FFEMNRIEATE FEDIA R BRI IR S A
RARE A LB RERG AR

* H2013F7 A17 HRBEES 2K -
*  H2013F3 A1 HRBIEE 2B -

RMER » AEEYEAEEXMERRERS
MAREBZME - RMEAR - HEEEHEE
S

(i) EEM<E

HE2014F3A31 BILFE - KAEESEZREH
BAL - HR3Z (20134 : 34) AHITESE -
BEZHEN EXHE - 88 24 (20134F : 2
Z)EEZBEWT ¢

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M

BEAT BEBTT

(restated)

(&31))

Salaries and other benefits e RHAET] 5.0 4.6
Performance related incentive EEE (Mista)

payment (note a) 5.6 7.5

Ex-gratia payment (note b) BB (FiEED) 8.0 -

Retirement benefits schemes contribution 3R AREREHEI 0 0.5 0.6

19.1 12.7

The emoluments of the aforesaid employees were within the
following bands:

it B 2 B B Ty

2014 2013

HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 /&7t —5,000,000 /& 7T = 1
HK$8,000,001 — HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 /&7t —8,500,000 /& T = 1
HK$8,500,001 — HK$9,000,000 8,500,001 /87T —9,000,000 /& 7T 1 -
HK$10,000,001 — HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 "7t — 10,500,000 4 7T 1 -

2 2

Notes:

(@) The performance related incentive payment is determined with reference
to the operating results and comparable market statistics of the Group, and
individual performance of the employee during the year.

(b) The ex-gratia payment is given to the employee to recognise his long
service and contribution to the Group upon early retirement.

G

(@) BHENDEFNAKEZKEEE  THETSHER
EEEMNRREE -

b) FHEMNKDIPMEEEIBRIAE B REAR AT R E AL
B2 RERG AR

EEEEEREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F355
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A WS R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

14. Dividends 14. K2
2014 2013
HK$'M HK$'M
HERRL BEBT
Final dividend paid for the financial year ended EZ2013F 3 A31 HILHEBFE
31 March 2013 of HK5 cents (2013: interim BIRR 2 RERE — S 5781l
dividend paid for the financial year ended (20134 : HE 201243 A31H
31 March 2012 of HK8 cents) per share UHHBEFEEERMZ
FHARR B —8 () 67.5 108.0
No interim dividend paid for the financial year HZE2014F3 A31 HILHEBFE
ended 31 March 2014 (2013: interim WA R HAR S (2013 4F
dividend paid for the financial year ended L2013 3 A 31 BILMFE
31 March 2013 of HK3 cents per share) BRSPS — EAR 3 L) - 40.5
67.5 148.5
Proposed final dividend for the financial EUREZ 2014F3 A 31 HIEBH
year ended 31 March 2014 of HK12 cents FE2RBKRE — T 1280
(2013: for the financial year ended (20134 : H=2013%F 3 A31H
31 March 2013 of HK5 cents) per share LEBFBEFE —5784l) 162.0 67.5

15. Earnings Per Share

For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the

15. SRER

owners of the Company is based on the following data: ATA -

2014 2013

Earnings

Earnings for the purpose of calculating
the basic earnings per share
(profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company)

27

At EEREARENZ Z2F
(RRBHB AEE
AREZEH)

REFECERCRLREXBME
RRABHEE ARG SBRER RN ITRE T 8

HK$'M HK$'M
BEETT ER-Y: %
(restated)

(E51)

834.6 998.3

2014 2013

Number of shares

Number of ordinary shares in issue during

the year for the purpose of calculating
the basic earnings per share

IR
AAEERERENZ
AFEREEETEBREE

1,350,274,367

1,350,274,367

No diluted earnings per share has been presented for the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 because there were no potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the years.

SEERF -

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

For continuing operations RISFESEEEMS

RRBHEE ARIEFBEEEEERERRTT
RE T BRNEEE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share from continuing
operations attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the earnings figures calculated as follows:

2014 2013

HK$’M HK$'M
EX-3: BEBIT
(restated)
(&31))
Profit for the year attributable to the owner AR & A A JE(L A EE i3 A
of the Company 834.6 998.3
Less: Loss for the year from discontinued B BRI EERATEEE
operations 129.6 186.8
Earnings for the purpose of calculating FTESECEEREREAR
the basic earnings per share from &Rz B8R
continuing operations 964.2 1,185.1

Pz BT E E X ERE R R IERE
EBEBRERRMAFRE 2 -

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for basic earnings per share from continuing and discontinued
operations.

MERILREERTS

BRI ERERENEEA9.6/81L (2013
F13.98) - DRBERIIGEEBRANEE
B8 120.6 AEBT(2013 4 - 186.8 BEBATT)
R B ERL R DR IHEL RS EREAR
FFrstatz R MatE -

For discontinued operations

Basic loss per share for discontinued operations is HK9.6 cents
(2013: HK13.9 cents), based on the loss for the year from
discontinued operations of HK$129.6 million (2013: HK$186.8
million) and the denominators detailed above for the basic
earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations.

16. Investment Properties 16. BEWHE

2014 2013

HK$’M HK$'M
HEBT BEBT
(restated)
(E71)
FAIR VALUE DYE
At beginning of the year F47 6,934.1 6,551.1
Currency realignment ErAR (46.2) (85.5)
Additions NE 397.0 541.5
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss ~ RERIER 2 A F{EE
— Realised gains on disposals —HER D EHRKE 4,0 55.3
- Unrealised gains —RER M= 444.0 459.9
Disposals HE (12.5) (392.8)
Transferred to property, plant and EREYE  BER
equipment (Note 17) A (M5 17) (38.2) (195.4)
Transferred to properties held for/under EREHEREZ
development for sale BR/ERPYE (244.4) -
At end of the year X 7,437.8 6,934.1
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AR A WS R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Investment properties of the Group held at the end of the
reporting period are situated on land as follows:

i iﬁﬂﬁk AEERHAZREMFEARNZ -
T

2014 2013

HK$’'M HKS$'M
BEET BEBIT
(restated)
(E31))
Freehold outside Hong Kong LA E B LAIMB[ER 2 5K A S 614.4 607.8
Long leases outside Hong Kong TR BEBAIMEE 2 REFFEA 120.5 120.7
Long leases in Hong Kong TR EBZ KEAHEL 658.2 678.4
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong LA ED 2 FHIEL 6,044.7 5,527.2
7,437.8 6,934.1

The Group disposed of certain investment properties during the FN - AEBEBREETIREME  FIBOT

year and the details of which are as follows:

2014 2013

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEAT BEBIT

(restated)

(&%)

Sales proceeds received BUSHE S IE 12.5 392.8

Original cost of acquisitions WiE 2 R ANME (8.2 (288.4)

Accumulated gains on change in fair iﬂ&ifaﬁﬁ?z

value recognised in prior years (Note 11) N EEE) Rt (FFE11) (5.3) (49.1)
Realised gains on disposal recognised FRHERER 2 2R

during the year 4.0 55.3

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31

March 2014 and 2013 and the date of transfer from investment
properties to property, plant and equipment and to properties
held for/under development for sale have been derived by the
following independent firms of qualified professional valuers with
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations.

Location of
investment properties

Hong Kong and the PRC

Name of valuer

DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited and Jones Lang
LaSalle Limited

DTZ Debenham Tie Leung KK Japan

N&A Appraisal Company Thailand

Limited

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014
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e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Valuation techniques

The fair value of completed investment properties located in Hong
Kong is determined by using income capitalisation approach and
with reference to market transaction prices of similar properties
in the relevant locations. The income capitalisation approach

is calculated by capitalising the rental income derived from the
existing tenancies with due provision for any reversionary income
potential.

The fair value of an investment property under construction
located in Hong Kong is determined by reference to comparable
sales transactions of similar completed properties as available

in the relevant market and has also taken into account the
construction costs expended and that will be expended to
complete the development.

The fair value of investment properties located in the PRC and
Thailand is determined by using direct comparison approach
assuming sale of the property interest in its existing state by
making reference to comparable sales transactions as available in
the relevant market.

The fair value of investment properties located in Japan is
determined by using income capitalisation approach and with
reference to the depreciated replacement cost approach. The
income capitalisation approach is calculated by capitalising
the rental income derived from the existing tenancies with due
provision for any reversionary income potential.

Summary of fair value hierarchy and Level 3 fair value
measurements

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for
as investment properties. Except for an amount of HK$710.7
million of certain residential investment properties in Hong Kong,
HK$120.5 million in the PRC and HK$3.9 million in Thailand
which are valued under Level 2 fair value measurements, which
is principally derived based on the direct comparison approach,
the remaining investment properties of the Group amounting to
HK$6,602.7 million are valued by reference to a Level 3 fair value
measurement.

fh{ERIS

R EBND R TIREVMEN R FEIEREA
ERNMOEL 2 Z R BUMENTIHERRE
METE - WABRMOEBEBEAAICR AP K
HREE 5 WA E R TR A RT3 [ W AR &
BEMmE -

UNEENERREMENATHETI2ZREA™
SRSMBLE R TYEA LR ZHEXFME
E 0 MERHRFER B R B S K 3 H OISR
Z’SO

R PEREBEORENEN R FEERER
HBEZEREM S ARALA LR HEZ SR
RAMERBREL EMERRMETE -

R ARRIREYEN D FEDERRAERL
FEWBEREEBERAEMETE - WABRMOE
FERENMICR AP WA E S WAEREHE
B R BOANEE B EMaTE -

AP EBRRE=ZBRAFEFEHRE

AEEMBLERE THERIAS A AL
BERRZYEEZHRALATFEENGE - D
R ABRIEREDE - BRUNEE710.78E
BIL - FER1205BEB T NEFH3OBEEB LY
ATEERENE (CBEIESEREZLLESAM
BHE)REE _ERAFEFETAMAEIN - &
EESE6,602.7 BB TR NREWETIZ
EEZBHAFETEMTIAGE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

The movements during the year in the balance of investment FRNE=ZEBRATEE N2 EYE ST E
properties under Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: Bk :
Under
Completed construction
E%RT HEER
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEAT BEBT
At 1 April 2013 M2013F4A1H 5,814.5 227.0 6,041.5
Currency realignment BEAE (45.6) - (45.6)
Additions NE 295.3 101.7 397.0
Change in fair value recognised in RERERZ
profit or loss NEEES
— Realised gains on disposals —HERZ EERKE 4.0 - 4.0
— Unrealised gains —REB W 282.4 180.3 462.7
Disposals HE (12.5) - (12.5)
Transferred to properties held for/under BB FEHEHE 7 %R/ ZED
development for sale ES (244.4) - (244.4)
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3H31H 6,093.7 509.0 6,602.7

There are no transfers between different levels within the fair value FRREE R A S AR E e 5 o
hierarchy during the year.
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fRe BT R Y BT
For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

BZBRMEETE

Level 3 valuation methodologies

Below is a table which presents the significant unobservable TREVNERTATERE ASUE

inputs:

Unobservable inputs

TABEEARE

Capitalisation
rate

Market rent
(per square
foot)

Adjusted market price
(per square foot)
(note a)

B bR

KEBEWSER
(BF¥HR)
CETY

miSHEE
(BFAER)

Completed investment B3 T &Y% (ffztb)
properties (note b)
Hong Kong HE
Industrial N 4.3% - 5.0% HK$5 — HK$15 N/A
58T — 1587 TERA
Retail L& 4.5% - 7.0% HK$12 — HK$63 N/A
1287 —6387T TEA
Agricultural land =—3: N/A HK$200 — HK$429
T EA TEA 20078 T — 429757
Japan =N
Residential F= 4.8% JPY450 N/A
450 H TER
Office WRE 4.3% JPY700 N/A
700 H TER
Notes: BT

(@) Adjusted market price per square foot has taken into account of property-
specific adjustments including location, land quality and timing of reference
transactions.

(b) Fair value measurement of completed investment properties is positively
correlated to the market rent and adjusted market price per square foot, but
negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.

The fair value measurement of investment property under
construction is measured based on the significant unobservable
inputs including the construction costs to complete the
development and the developers’ estimated profit margin. The fair
value measurement of investment property under construction is
negatively correlated to the costs and profit margin.

(@) EHAEFFHIRMGEREIHRSEDERE (BT
B LHWEERSERH M) o

b) DRTERAMENRATEFERGTFHRZHHESRE
AEMISERZIEAR  ERARMCEAZ B8 -

EREENENAHEFENREBEATAIHE
BARIEMETE - MEATABESRBABEERE
TR ERAZEXNARFAEBOGFMEE - &
BEEREMENAHEAEEXRARMBR 284
7 e

EFEEEEREBEFRAF 2013/2014 F1§
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment

17. V¥ - BERKRE

Furniture, Plant, Ferries,
Leasehold ~ Commercial fixtures  machinery launches  Construction
Hotel Freehold landand  andleisure  Leasehold and and  andmotor in
properties land buildings facilities improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles progress
EETH BRR BR- [N iR
BEE  AAERIH RE:  BERE BENEEE RERRE  RERRRE  SMRRE RIE
HKSM HK$'M HKSM HKSM HKSM HKS'M HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M
B8k  FAEET  AEET  FASRR  FESER  REER  RAEER  FEEn FEBER AEER
(note b)
(Hith)
cosT FE
At 1 Aprl 2012 [restated) R2012E4A1R(E) 14490 290 657.1 6134 2338 385 7 5127 693.1 51283
Currency realignment EHEE 45 86 28 - 10 42 07 03 11 602
Addtions HE 230 183 6.1 - 07 469 19 198 224 49,1
Disposals/wite-off L&/ (13.7) (1.0) (1723 - (149 (983 (05 (19.) (123 (332.1)
Transler flom investment BRaREnE

properties (Note 16) (Mzt16) - - 1954 - - - - - - 1954
Transfer €3 8546 - 44 393 - - - - (9433) -
A3t March 2013 festated) 201353 531 B(E51) 23644 3149 7385 652.7 2406 2913 3438 5187 210 54709
Currency realignment EHRE 726) (250) 08 - 27 63 81 08) 22 (102.1)
Addtions e 165 - 53 - 583 26 95 104 42 1265
Disposals/iwite-off (HE (905.7) - (31.0) - (1.6) (358 (226.6) (17.0) - (12318)
Transler flom investment BRaRENZ

propertis (Note 16) (H16) - - 382 - - - - - - %2
Transfer B 215 - - - - (46) 49 (03 (223 (08
At 31 March 2014 R201453A31A 14141 299 750.1 652.7 206 267.2 139.7 5059 07 43009
DEPRECIATION AND HEREE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 Aprl 2012 [restated) R2012E4A1R(E) 647.9 - 2199 34838 1658 2139 2684 4243 - 24000
Currency realignment R %0 - 01 - 11 37 - 02 - 0.1
Provided for the year TEERE 499 - 204 145 24 243 11 193 - 1619
Eiminated on disposals/ & MRS

write-off (128 - (156.8) - (149 9.0) (05 (175) - (2975
Impaimentloss recognised ~ EEZEAEE (Mita)

[noteq) - 85 84 - 52 07 5.9 03 - 80.0
A3t March 2013 festated) ~ H 201383 31 B(E51) 7100 85 1620 3633 1796 276 369 42656 - 23835
Curency realignment e #68) 08 - - (29 (0] 80 04 - (54
Provided for the year TERER i - 199 149 24 %84 17 198 - 1798
Fiminated on disposals (e /MRS

wrte-off (301.0) - (12 - (17 (334 (182) (149) - (5804)
Impaimentlossrecognised - EEZRBEIR (Hita)

(notea) - - - - 08 13 03 02 - 126
Transfer g8 - - - - - () 48 - - -
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3A31A 4404 93 1707 3782 1889 1993 1323 4313 - 1,950.4
CARRYING VALUES A
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3A31A 9740 2806 5194 2145 917 67.9 14 746 07 2,3508
A3t March 2013 festated) ~ H2013E3 31 B(E7) 16444 3064 5865 2894 610 837 79 871 210 30874
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e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Notes:

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2014, certain property, plant and
equipment were obsolete and an impairment loss of HK$11.2 million was
recognised under the healthcare segment in the profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the management planned to cease the
manufacturing operation in the PRC and certain property, plant and equipment
were impaired. An impairment loss of HK$36.0 million was recognised based
on the recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment accordingly.
The recoverable amount was estimated based on the fair value less costs of
disposal calculation, of which the estimation is based on the market prices for
similar assets.

On the other hand, as a result of operating losses of an operation under the
manufacturing segment in the UK, certain property, plant and equipment were
impaired at 31 March 2013. The impairment was determined based on the
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment, which was estimated
to be insignificant and an impairment loss of HK$46.2 million was recognised in
the profit or loss.

(b) As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amounts of the Group’s ferries, launches
and motor vehicles included an amount of HK$0.8 million (2014: Nil) in respect
of assets held under finance leases.

[tems of property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are depreciated on a straight line basis, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land No depreciation

Hotel properties 20-40 years
Leasehold land and buildings,
commercial and leisure facilities 10-40 years

Over the shorter of the
term of the lease
period or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 5-15 years
Ferries, launches and motor vehicles 5-20 years

BIRE

(@) BEZE2014543A31H  ETWHE - WELEEEE - B%
BRESTBETREBIE 1128 BBTRNERSPER -

HZE2013F3A31HILFE  BREEFEIRIEERE RIS
% BEETHE  BERSELTRE - RIEZSVE - K
B REEZAIRESEER 2 REREEA36.08EET - Al
Bl AFERE SR A Z T EAGRT - MA BT I
BUEEsMEREE -

H—AE - AREREGEERB D LEER  ETWE M
5 RN 201343 A31 HIRE < BB RIEME - BF MR
WA E ST - AT EFEARREERI62HEET
BRI R

(b) M2013F3A31H  AEBEESR  AMIRTEZEEE
BIEERREREREREEEZ 08B B IT(20145F ¢
) o

FERTRAINZDE - BE MREEB RIA T
AR FHNEREITE

KAZERELTH WETE
i /ES 20&E 404
HAE+ M RETF
Gl i 102 404
THEMERE THEHR 3k
S5FFEREE
Rifh - HE KRB 3&E5E
R - #ee3 Rk 5% 154
b AR AE 5&F 204
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

The carrying value of properties shown above comprises:

bt s REERE

Leasehold land and

Hotel properties Freehold land buildings
BENE KAERELH HELiRET
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEET EEAT EBEBT  BERT  HEBBR  BEER
(restated) (restated)
(&31) (E31))
Frehold outside Hong Kong LA EBAIMEE
LKAE R 156.5 181.0 280.6 306.4 - -
Long leases outside LA EBAIMEE
Hong Kong ZRHRN - 6225 - - 3.9 40
Medium-term leases outside AR EAELAINEE
Hong Kong rdzal-viik) - - - - 19.4 20.3
Long leases in Hong Kong IR E S KRN - - - - 302.9 271.8
Medium-term leases in frREE 2 R EIRE 4
Hong Kong 817.5 840.9 - - 241.0 281.6
Short leases in Hong Kong DN SENiEk) - - - - 6.2 8.8
974.0 1,644.4 280.6 306.4 579.4 586.5

18. AHHENRK
AEEZBNEENZBIE

2014 2013

18. Prepaid Lease Payments

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEAT
(restated)
(E31))
Leasehold land in Hong Kong MREBZHELH

Short leases %2 HATEAY 0.8 1.2

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong MRBEBAIMEE 2 FHE i
Long leases REIEA - 17.7
Medium-term leases FRERTEAY 6.8 7.0
7.6 25.9

Leasehold interest in land is released over the terms of the leases
on a straight line basis.

Rtz BERSREMAEREEDL -
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19. Interests in Associates/Amounts due

19. BE N T 2w/ BINBE N F

from Associates ;IE
2014 2013
HK$’'M HK$'M
BHEATT BEBTT
(restated)
(&31))
Cost of investment in associates, unlisted REE R EZKA + FEET™ 445 44.2
Share of reserves DGR 1.2 0.5
Share of post-acquisition losses, DU E B
net of dividends received R BRI B (10.6) (7.7)
35.1 37.0
Amounts due from associates (Note 29) U N A kIR (MF7E29) 624.3 854.2
Share of post-acquisition losses of DMERAR IE?ETTE ik
an associate covered by binding —XEE AR 2 R EE
obligation (note) (FfF5E) (578.8) (582.0)
45.5 272.2

Note: The Group is obliged to make good the net deficit of TCSDCL in
proportion to its interest in TCSDCL. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group’s obligation in this connection amounted to HK$578.8 million (2013:
HK$582.0 million) and accordingly, the same amount has been recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and presented as a deduction
from the Group’s advances to TCSDCL.

Details of the principal associates of the Company as at 31 March
2014 are set out in Note 45(c).

The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates is

MIEE : ASEEAESHETCSDCL 2R EE - Ll AE R TCSDCOL
ZfEg o MIEHIR - AEEEIL ARz AT R788BEE
JL(2013% : 6820 HEAIL) * ZETHONEFAMTHINNEK
TR A S H 4R T TCSDCL 2 Bk aH

ANATIN2014E3 A31 B X B QAR 25515
M FE45(c) ©

AEEBE QR HHBERBEHIIMT -

set out below:

2014 2013

HK$’M HK$'M

BEET BEATT

(restated)

(&%)

Total assets BESE 409.8 1,228.8

Total liabilities BfEeRE (2,159.6) (2,980.5)

Net liabilities BfEFHE (1,749.8) (1,751.7)

Group’s share of net assets of associates REESEBENRBEEFE 38.0 39.8

Group’s share of net liabilities of associates ~ AEE D (FH L A7 A G F5E (581.7) (584.8)

(543.7) (545.0)

Turnover B 12.4 427

(Loss) profit for the year REE (EE) =T (2.9) 286.3
Group’s share of results of associates REBESIEBE AR

for the year NG ELE 0.3 92.0

The financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
associates is not material and no separate summarised financial

information of each associate is presented.

EE@K;‘%I“
i I A

%’AETZEM%%?HE‘@EEK '

A2 EBUEEREE

EFEEEEREBEFRAF 2013/2014 F1§
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=N E) 2 S
AU NR 2R EIERAT 22 50% K
m -

=N
25
I/EI/ // Db

20. Interests in Joint Ventures

The interests in joint ventures include the Group’s 50% equity
interest in Dazhongli. An analysis is as follows:

2014 2013

3%11> llﬂk

HK$'M HK$'M
BEBAT BEAT
(restated)
(E31))
Interests in: Il £
Dazhongli (note a) KA 2 (fffzza) 6,348.2 6,725.9
Other joint ventures (note b) HibhaE Q7 (HiEb) 1,108.2 683.1
7,456.4 7,409.0
Notes: Bf3E
(a) Dazhongli @ KRFRE
Dazhongli and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli Group”) are engaged in the ARBREMBAR ([ KR BEEE D REHRANTE LEE
development of investment properties and hotel properties in the Jingan district ZEZIREMERBIEYE

of Shanghai in the PRC.

2014 2013

HK$’'M HK$'M
HEBT AEET
Cost of unlisted shares FEETRD Z B AR 0.1 0.1
Share of reserves (note i) DG REE (EED 828.5 715.0
Share of post-acquisition profits (note ii) AR &SRR (H i) 1,036.3 1,164.7
1,864.9 1,879.8
Loans to Dazhongli BERTARHE 4,483.3 4,846.1
6,348.2 6,725.9
The loans to Dazhongli are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no %%K%KEPETJ%TEW . %E‘_&ﬁ@%iﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ o REBEEN
fixed terms of repayments. The Group has no intention to exercise its right to #&:‘:Hﬂﬂit#ﬂ@ﬁwﬂﬁﬂ NI TERER - giﬁiﬁf%%zgﬁk
demand repayment of these loans within the next twelve months from the end AR AT EEBEREZ B EAELF BB AR EAEM
of the reporting period. The directors of the Company believe the settlement B AR 7§$$HEEZ%E?’AHv’rﬂ:gﬁéﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬂéﬁﬁ iR
of these loans is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future as they are, in §Z§¥KEE$%{K\K¢E%ZEE DIREFE - Fit - B
substance, a part of the Group’s net investment in Dazhongli Group as the FIBEIAERDEELFT ARNEENEE QA2 # - UE

proceeds of the loans have been substantially used by the Dazhongli to inject REREMBARREKZET
as registered capital into its PRC subsidiaries. Accordingly, the amount is

classified as non-current asset and included in the Group’s interests in joint

ventures for the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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The summarised financial information in respect of Dazhongli Group as at 31
March 2014 is set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial statements prepared

in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

AREEEMR2014F3A31H ZBMEERBZENT « AT
BRI ZEDRBEEBMBREEARR 2 & E QR BEHREP
FiRZ &8

BERRZEDEANRERSFAVTHEME -

2014 2013

HK$’M HK$'M
BEEBT BEBT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties under construction EEIREYZE 15,072.8 13,503.1
Hotel properties under construction and equipment B E R BE 918.1 731.1
Other non-current assets HibIEmEN & E 133.1 139.2
16,124.0 14,373.4

Current assets RBEE
Bank balances and cash RITRHB LIRS 460.6 541.0
Other current assets Hih e & E 174.9 169.4
635.5 710.4
Current liabilities nBaE

Loans from shareholders EERE R (8,966.5) (9,692.2)
Other current liabilities HibReaE (729.1) (761.6)
(9,695.6) (10,4583.8)
Net current liabilities mENBEFEE (9,060.1) (9,743.4)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBEE 7,063.9 4,630.0

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank loans SRITER (2,521.9) -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEA & (812.2) (870.4)
(3,334.1) 870.4)
Net assets BESFE 3,729.8 3,759.6
Group’s share of net assets AEENEEEFE 1,864.9 1,879.8

EFEEEEREBEFRAF 2013/2014 F1§
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

For the year ended 31 March
BEZ3H31HLEE

2014

HK$'M HK$'M
BHEAT BEAT

Change in fair value of investment properties TEREMEAFEES
under construction (296.1) 773.7
Other operating income less expenses HAb B AR H (34.8) (17.0)
Deferred taxation JERERTE 741 (193.5)
Net (loss) profit after taxation for the year REERRE S (EE) & (256.8) 563.2
Group’s share of result for the year KEBDOIEARFEEE (128.4) 281.6

Notes:

(i) The share of reserves of Dazhongli represented an exchange gain on
translations of interest in Dazhongli and exchange gains arising from translation
of the loans advanced by the Group to Dazhongli, which are denominated in
US dollars and HK dollars, that form part of net investment in foreign operations
during the year.

(i) The decrease in share of post-acquisition profits of Dazhongli in the current
year mainly arose from the Group’s share of fair value loss on investment
properties under construction of Dazhongli.

The investment properties under construction were measured at 31 March
2014 at fair value of HK$15,072.8 million (equivalent to RMB11,953.5 million)
(2013: HK$13,503.1 million (equivalent to RMB10,904.7 million)) which was
based on the valuation conducted by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, who
have appropriate qualification and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at by reference to
comparable sales evidence of completed properties as available in the relevant
market and have taken into account the expected construction costs and the
cost that will be expected to complete the development. The increase in the
valuation for the year ended 31 March 2014 of investment properties under
construction as stated above was due to the increase in the total construction
costs incurred which was partly offset by the fair value loss of HK$296.1
million (2013: gain of HK$773.7 million). The attributable taxation credit in
respect of the loss was HK$74.1 million (2013: taxation charge of HK$193.5
million). Thus the net fair value loss after tax amounted to HK$222.0 million
(2013: gain of HK$580.2 million) of which the Group’s 50% share of loss was
HK$111.0 million (2013: gain of HK$290.1 million). The investment properties
are depreciable and held within a business model of the joint venture whose
business objective is to consume substantively all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.

The capital commitments of Dazhongli at 31 March 2014 were as follows:

M3 -

() DERPEZEEREFAFRATERRETREZE
Sl R A EBA T R BEBAIRINES D R EFEZ
B AR R TAIE) R E 5| BUz B 5 s -

(i) FADERFEZWEEENRD  TBZRNAKEDE
AP EZ EERENERNTERR -

RIEEERTARARET 2 EE  ERIREMER2014F
3AB1AZATEAR15072.8 BEETL(FHEN11,9535HE
AE#) (20134 : 13,5031 BEB T (HER 10,9047 5 E
ARE)) - AR EBEBEME 2 AEMEEENBAES
ARG HEEE o (HED2Z BTS2 T EEE fIEE
- WEEEITERREK AR ZEREE ZKA o &
F2014F3 A1 BIEFE - ERIFEMEGELN ST
Wig - DEEEZBRERANEFELIN - HH WA TFERE
206.1 B EBILATIKEE (20136 « a5 773.7 BEBIL) © %E
B ELRIER R A 741 BEET(20134F : HIEXH 193.5
BEST) BHBRBBRZ ATHEFEIER22208 88T
(20134 : Wz 5802 BEATT) - AEBEHMEATEEEZ
50% ¢ BN111.0 BEHBIT (20134 « LE52901 BEBTT) < &%
BEYEADINENUEER A B EEERERSE - MARE
A2 EBBNREAZIRENEMDE ZBRNBHLEN
mIEEARHEER -

AFER2014F3 31 B ZEAELENT ¢

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M

BEBT BEBT

Contracted but not provided for B ELEREE 4,448.2 5,724.7
Authorised but not contracted for EHLEEREL 2,428.3 2,873.4
6,876.5 8,598.1

The capital commitments of Dazhongli, of which the amounts attributable to the
Group’s interest in Dazhongli represents 50% of the amounts stated above, will
be financed by shareholders’ loan or direct borrowings of Dazhongli.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

(b) Other joint ventures that are not individually material (b) EHMERFEEAZAZNT
2014 2013
HK$’M HK$'M
BEEBT BEBTT
(restated)
(E71)
Cost of unlisted shares FEETRRAD Z AR 128.6 128.6
Share of reserve PEFEE 2.8 4.4
Share of post-acquisition profits, DR EEERF] -
net of dividends received MR E AR S 8.7 11.2
140.1 144.2
Loans to other joint ventures (note) BERTHME S AR () 968.1 538.9
1,108.2 683.1
Note: The loans to other joint ventures are unsecured and have no fixed terms B 5T Eﬁ?’ﬁi@’:}%@jﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁlﬂliﬁﬂ o R
of repayment. As at 31 March 2014, the loans to other joint ventures included 2014F3A31H ERTFEMEE QAR EIESEE30.6 5 EE
an amount of HK$939.6 million (2013: HK$538.9 million) bearing interest at 70 (20134 : 538.9 EE;%TE)EZIEiﬂ% 3% % 3.5% (2013
fixed rates from 3% to 3.5% (2013: 3% to 3.5%) per annum. The remaining F 3% E35%) T EZFHE - BT HBAARE - AEEEE
balance is non-interest bearing. The Group has no intention to exercise its REREBRRF R 1218 A AT TR EER ZREEZEEMR -
right to demand repayment of these loans within the next twelve months AAREEHEZSETETERAIRARREER - At © 3t
from the end of the reporting period. The directors of the Company believe REMBHRRAKRZE2YMNE - BRSBEIEERSEE - I
the settlement of these loans is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future. FIARGEREE R F] 2 o

Accordingly, the amount is classified as non-current asset and included in
the Group’s interests in joint ventures for the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The summarised financial information in respect of other joint ventures as at 31 HibAENANR 201463 A31 HZHMEEREEWT ¢
March 2014 is set out below:

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M

HEBT BEBT

(restated)

(&%)

Current assets mBEE 2,728.5 1,658.1

Current liabilities mENBE (2,465.1) (1,284.8)

Other non-current assets HtIEmeEn&E 3.7 1.9

Net assets BEFE 267.1 275.2

Group’s share of net assets TEBEEEFE 140.1 144.2

Net profit after taxation for the year REFEERBIEFRF 50.2 1.2

Group’s share of result for the year AEBNMERNFEELE 24.7 0.7

Dividends received from joint ventures BREEARIKRE 27.2 -
Details of the principal joint ventures of the Company as at 31 RAFR2014F3A3IBSEESE R ZFIB

March 2014 are set out in Note 45(d). BRI EE45() ©

EFEEEEREBEFRAF 2013/2014 F1§
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21. Investments in Debt and Equity 21. BEERRARBFZRE
Securities

Fair value measurement
at 31.3.2014 using
R2014%E3 A 31 HAFEE

Level 1 Level 3
E—BR E=B
HK$’M HK$’M HK$’'M
BHEAT HEAT HEAR
Held-to-maturity investments BEIEEE
Debt securities (note a) EES (Hta)
Current TED 63.8
Non-current IERE 197.7
261.5
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESCREE
Equity securities fr A& 5
Listed, at fair value (note b) F o BRATE (D) 56.3 56.3 -
Unlisted, at fair value (note o) LT ZATFE ) 27.5 - 27.5
83.8 56.3 27.5
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REMEMZAWWT -
Non-current JERED 83.8
Market value of listed equity securities: ~ _ETIRAZEH 2 HE :
Listed in Hong Kong REB LT 43.5 43.5 -
Listed overseas RN 12.8 12.8 =
56.3 56.3 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Fair value measurement
at 31.3.2013 using
R 20133 A 31 BAFE 2

Level 1 Level 3
2—ER 3=ER
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEATT BEBT
Held-to-maturity investments BEIEHEE
Unlisted debt securities (note a) FEEMEBES (HiEa)
Current Vi) 74.3
Non-current JERED 144.2
218.5
Available-for-sale financial assets AHESREE
Equity securities RARES
Listed, at fair value (note b) £ mATFE (D) 64.2 64.2 -
Unlisted, at fair value (note c) LT BAFEMEC) 16.3 - 16.3
80.5 64.2 16.3
Analysed for reporting purposes as: AEREOZATWAT
Non-current FEnE 80.5
Market value of listed equity securities: FRRAES 2 A
Listed in Hong Kong REBLT 48.0 48.0 -
Listed overseas AT 16.2 16.2 -
64.2 64.2 -

Notes:

(@) Held-to-maturity debt securities are measured at amortised cost less any
impairment losses. The fair value of the held-to-maturity debt securities as at
31 March 2014 is HK$264.1 million (2013: HK$223.3 million). The weighted
average effective interest rate is 5.5% (2013: 4.5%) per annum.

(b) The fair values of all listed equity securities are determined by reference
to the quoted market bid price available on the relevant exchanges in active
markets as at 31 March 2014.

(c) Unlisted equity securities represent investment in private equity funds at
HK$27.5 million (2013: HK$16.3 million) which are measured using valuation
techniques based on inputs that can be observed in the market in addition to
unobservable inputs such as company specific financial information.

The Group uses the key inputs of market comparable companies, which
includes the valuation multiples, to determine the fair value of the unlisted equity
securities as at 31 March 2014. The unobservable inputs are valuation multiples
and discount for lack of marketability. Valuation multiples include enterprise
value/earnings before interest and taxes, price-to-earnings multiple. The higher
the valuation multiples or the lower discount of lack of marketability, the higher
the fair value.

GEE

@ FEIHBHESF T EEK AR TR EREmMTE -
BEEHEGEFN2014F3 831 B2 AFER2641 5 EE
JC(20134F : 223 3 AEBIT) « MEFHEBEFHEE55%

(20134 : 4.5%) °

(b) PIEEHBAFES 2 ATFETIZER2014F3 731 HIERE
MISHEER S EABBRMET

© FELTBRAFARLEREESZIRE276BEET
(20134 : 16.3E&EBIL) * THEMMBERDIFE - AN
A S BURRE AT ESE T 5 8RN T A BREBUR I A B
SERTARTEE

AEEEATS LR ARNEEEAZE (REGEEZ)
REE I ETRAFEFN2014F3A31 B2 ATHE « RN
GBI - TSR ABBRELESSRRITH - AEGES
BERTIERBEANCXEE/ BT TEEEH - RZT5
Bz AEEEESSITILE - AFEYS
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No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the impact of changes in the relevant
unobservable data as the management considers that the exposure is

insignificant to the Group.

The movement in the unlisted equity securities is as follows:

ELER T R BUR P ERERRELT - RERER
REBRREASEMNEBIEEXN -

FEETRABF 2 EBHNT

2014 2013

HK$’M HK$'M

BEET BEET

Balance at beginning of the year FHEER 16.3 2.9

Acquisition during the year FERUE 9.4 16.8
Total gain (loss) Wz (E518) 1858

— in profit or loss —RiEzEH 12.6 -

— in other comprehensive income —REMEEEFR 5.2 (1.8)

Proceeds from disposal HEMSRIR (16.0) (1.6)

Balance at end of the year FEREES 27.5 16.3

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of HK$1.9 million (2013:
HK$0.9 million) related to unlisted equity securities which has been reclassified
to profit or loss from investment revaluation reserve upon disposal.

There were no transfer between different levels of the fair value
hierarchy in the current and prior years.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

The Group determines the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of unlisted equity securities, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. The

valuation is performed at the end of each reporting period. Where
there is material change in the fair value of the assets, the cause of
the fluctuations will be reported to the management of the Group.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of assets are disclosed above.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

22. Other Assets

22. HhEE

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Mortgage instalment receivables (note a) FEWUIZE 75 Bt R (MisEa) 17.5 2.9
Option fee refundable (note b) AREREEE (H3Eb) 8.4 8.3
Deposit for acquisition of WEEIR B 2
investment interests in REER RS
an investment property - 84.6
Loans to an investee (note c) MAEEIRESERER (Hite) 106.6 106.6
Unlisted membership debentures LmefAEsREMEE
and other assets 8.2 8.2
140.7 210.6

Notes:

(@) The mortgage instalment receivables represent the financing provided to
buyers of development properties of the Group. The amounts bear interest at
prime rate minus 1% and are receivable by instalments over a period of not
more than 20 years from the sale of the relevant flats. The receivables are
secured by a second mortgage over the properties. The portion of mortgage
instalment receivables due within one year of HK$1.3 million (2013: HK$0.3
million) is included as trade receivables in current assets.

(b) This represents an option fee of HK$14.0 million paid by the Group to
a related party, Castro Valley Properties, Inc. (“CVPI”) in 1996 pursuant to a
proposed property project which was subsequently not proceeded with.

Under the terms of the termination agreement entered into in 1997, the amount
is repayable by CVPI to the Group in instalments, the amount of each instalment
being based on the gross income of CVPI each year with interest accruing at
1% per annum on the outstanding balance. Based on information provided by
CVPI, the amount is expected to be fully repaid by 2031.

The balance outstanding at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 represents
(i) the carrying value of the amount receivable determined using the discount
rate applicable at the date of inception of 4.51% per annum (“the adjusted
outstanding principal”) and (ii) less repayments received attributable to the
settlement of the adjusted outstanding principal since that date.

Amounts received from CVPI are recognised as interest income based on the
discount rate of 4.51% per annum on the adjusted outstanding principal and
the balance is attributable to settlement of the adjusted outstanding principal.

CVPI is a related party of a trust, the discretionary objects of which include the
issue of Dr CHA Chi Ming, the late Chairman of the Company and some of them
are directors of the Company.

Pt

(@) MEUIZIBOMERDRUTARENERRER ZME
IR RESF R 1% 8 WEEFBETBLEHE
TBB20F A BIE - bR T A BRI SRS — 1218
- R—FRE M2 BEZIB D BMHF1.3 & BT (2013

F03BEEAL) B AERPEE ZBKEZERRA

(b) ULTEIEARSEEN 1996 FIRE—HEZEWHEHEE MM —H
7838 A+ Castro Valley Properties, Inc.([CVPI )X 14.0BE
BT REES - ZEAEE HB W EEERTT -

BRI 1997 FET L2 4R 1Rk 2 165K - CVPIZED Bim AN & &
BERE  SHEBERECVPISFARAGTELRAEEY
FEEEEA% S EF S o RIBECVPIRM Z B R - TBEIZER
B 2031 FRYIEE -

M20144F3 431 AN 20134F3 A31 B REEZEBRA
(VARG R EEA 2 BB REF451% BETE 2 ERESBEERER
BE(MEABRAEEAS]) R i) HEEZAESHERES
&2 BWHUER -

HECVPIER 2 R BE AR AR EELASIZTF451%FHR K
ERB/NBHBA > MHBREABKEELS -

CVPIR—IREFRZEEAL  ARBEHREHARFERE
REERBLNER  WEBDRARAFES -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

(c) The Group owns a 15% interest in an unlisted company incorporated

in Singapore which holds a commercial complex comprising a retail mall, 2
office towers and a hotel in the city of Tianjin, the PRC. The loan is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The directors of the Company
determined that the Group might not demand for repayment within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period and hence classified the loan as a
non-current asset.

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amounts
of the Group’s mortgage instalment receivables, option fee
refundable and loans to an investee at the end of the reporting
period approximate their corresponding fair values.

23. Inventories

(©) ANERER — RIS EMARILL FE LR ABHA 16% 2
i ZARRPERESE - AREGAR  BF 1
BYHO - MERRERER—FBE - ZEFREER -
REMZEFEE - ARTEFREAEENRERE12
BEARTEEREE  AEZERDBERIERDEE -

ARBEERR  AEERBEMNRZ BRI
DHE - TRERBREMAMBRENRE
R EmEREREAFERS -

23. 78

2014 2013

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEER BBEATT

(restated)

(&%)

Consumables S FEm 452 55.6
Raw materials R - 6.6
Work in progress F BIRK o = 6.2
Finished goods SIAK h 12.1 44.4
Building materials FREEM B 11.7 13.4
69.0 126.2

24. Properties Held for/under

Development for Sale

24, FEHEZRRE/BEPYE

2014 2013

HK$’'M HK$'M
BEAET BABAT
(restated)
(&%)
Properties held for/under development BERERARERE 2
for sale in Hong Kong B/ BERPYE
Discovery Bay development project S EERIER 349.0 1,162.5
Other projects HAbIg 1,420.4 872.2
Properties held for/under development BERBRINFEREZ
for sale outside Hong Kong B/ BRPYE 709.1 349.0
2,478.5 2,383.7
The carrying value of properties shown EXFRZE
above comprises: BREERE
Freehold KAZENE 345.9 106.4
Long leases RHEAMELY 830.3 751.3
Medium-term leases R ERTEAY 1,302.3 1,526.0
2,478.5 2,383.7

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

At the end of the reporting period, total borrowing costs
capitalised in the properties held for/under development for

sale were HK$41.9 million (2013: HK$120.3 million (restated)).
The properties held for/under development for sale amounting
to HK$2,478.5 million (2013: HK$1,376.8 million (restated)) is
expected to be recovered after twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

25. Trade Receivables

The credit period allowed by the Group to its customers is
dependent on the general practice in the industry concerned. For
property sales, sales terms vary for each property project and are
determined with reference to the prevailing market conditions.
Sale of properties are normally completed upon the execution

of legally binding, unconditional and irrevocable contracts and
the payments are settled in accordance with the terms stated

in contracts. Deferred payment terms are sometimes offered

to purchasers at a premium. Property rentals are receivable in
advance. Payments for healthcare, clubs and hotel services

are receivable on demand. The general credit terms allowed for
customers of manufactured goods range from 30 to 90 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the payment due date at the end of the reporting period:

REEHR - 419888 (20134 1 12038
BB (EY))) 2 R EERAC BIERIEHE
CEB/BERPMEIKRAE - 2,478 5BEETT
(20134 : 1,376.8 BEBIL(FH)) 2 FIELE
IR/ EERYEBHNREHRET 120 A
&k -

25. FEWE Z IR

REBGKTEEP 2 EERRTEN—FRENE
TE o BMYIEHEMS - HEKNIESWEEEM
B WIREERMRETE - MEEE RN
ESREORN - B R AEE G L& 5T
SRIBRIMKIR G LR PGSRBS - ERATRIE K
B R SRE - MERSASHS L - BE
R - =R ROBIE RS 2 B AR E KA
- pBEEME TEPH—REEHHRI0E
QKI5 ©

PAT R IEIE 5 8RN i HIRIZ B B 51 B 21
D 2 BRI

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M

AR BEATT

(restated)

(&%)

Not yet due i A 21 HR 170.0 934.6
Overdue: #Hf

0 - 60 days 0—60X 32.9 44.4

61 — 90 days 61—90K 1.9 6.4

Over 90 days i 90K 6.4 10.0

211.2 995.4

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are
receivables with aggregate carrying amount of HK$41.2 million
(2013: HK$60.8 million (restated)) which are past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

RNEE 2 EWE 5 RFBIEN TS BARE EIEMm
REE AR BB R IEE L BE 2 FEWARF A £
FRAEAM.2BEHIL(20134F : 60.8 AEBIL
(BH)) - AEBWERZEEHIFETAERT

on °

EEEEEREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F355

181



182

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS IR KRBT
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The Group has provided allowance for receivables overdue
beyond 120 days because historical experience is such that
receivables that are past due beyond 120 days are generally not
recoverable. Management closely monitors the credit quality of
trade receivables and considers the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

A& E D pta HiERE 120 R 2 FRUGFRIR R (2
B WHBRRREBEER  ZFaMEB120
R FEWGHIE— R AR E - IR EE ISR
EWE SRR ZEEEER - YR /ZFL B
HRMEZEWEZEREERFZEEER -

RERE2LH

2014 2013

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEAT BEBIT

(restated)

(&%)

Balance at beginning of the year FHEEA 33.7 16.8
Impairment loss recognised on receivables  FEUFIE ~ B HERR(E K12 5.7 18.7
Amounts recovered during the year FAUE 2 SRR (0.8) (1.6)
Amounts written off as uncollectible WEH A e A B 2 FOR (15.5) (0.5)
Currency realignment B AR (1.7) 0.3
Balance at end of the year FRAEER 21.4 33.7

The fair values of the Group’s trade receivables at 31 March 2014
approximate the corresponding carrying amounts due to relatively
short-term maturity.

26. Amounts Receivable/Payable on
Contract Work

RAARERE 7 EINE SRR BIH B AR
WEZEFIBRN 201463 531 Bz A EHEEAME
IREEMSE °

26. EW/ENEHNIERE

2014 2013

HK$’'M HK$'M
BEABT BEAT
Contract costs incurred plus FREE & 2 & $IRKA N
recognised profits less B R AR
recognised losses BHERIEBE 6,351.6 5,503.2
Less: Progress bilings B EESRIA (6,481.5) (5,449.8)
(129.9) 53.4
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERMEM AT -
Amounts receivable on contract work B A X TSR 78.8 122.0
Amounts payable on contract work EEHTRENIAE (208.7) (68.6)
(129.9) 53.4
Both balances of amounts receivable (payable) on contract work FEU (FERT) & B TR RIRTA B M R d B AR AR 5T

are expected to be settled within twelve months after the end of
the reporting period.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014
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27. Progress Payments Receivable

Progress payments receivable represents the amounts
receivable, after deduction of retention money, for construction
services which usually fall due within 30 days after the work is
certified.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of progress
payments receivables. 83% (2013: 94%) of the progress
payments receivable that are neither past due nor impaired
are considered to be of good credit quality based on historical
repayment from the debtors.

The aged analysis of progress payments receivable is as follows:

27. EWGEEFIE

FEMCHE [Z IR SR FEHIBR R B 2 18 2 FE U 2 SR AR 75
BB - —RAER TIRESRER 0RAN

EEETYEERICERFAZEEEER - ERN
B AN ZESLER - BEREH IR (B 2 FEUOE
JEFRIAZ 83% (2013 %F : 94% ) RS EARLF
EEEE-

LA R FEMOE 08 2 BREe D AT

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEBT

(restated)

(&31))

Within 30 days 30 &<~ 52.2 63.9
31 -60 days 31—60X 11.0 2.1
61 — 90 days 61—90K - 2.3
63.2 68.3

The following is an aging analysis of progress payments
receivable which are past due but not impaired:

PATR 45 2 780 HA{EL 1) AR Bl (B W 12 08 2 R 70
#r

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBIT
31 - 60 days 31-60K% 11.0 2.1
61 - 90 days 61—90K - 2.3
11.0 4.4

28. Retention Money Receivable 28. ERRE S

Retention money receivable in respect of construction services
are settled in accordance with the terms of respective contracts.

Retention money is usually withheld from the amounts receivable
for work certified. 50% of the retention money is normally due
upon completion and the remaining 50% portion is due upon
finalisation of the construction accounts. Retention money
receivable is expected to be settled within twelve months after the
finalisation of construction accounts.

REERRTS 2 FEMIR B £ ARIBAR R & 40,2 (KA
o

RES RN EBRELREZ EBEFIETIE - /&
BEl& 2 50%BENTTREZIE] - MR T 250%8
RIZHERE R RERREIH - BERESENE
RIZHERE RRERR 12EARES -
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29. Other Financial Assets
() Amounts due from associates

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-

trade nature, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayment. The directors of the Company anticipated the carrying
values approximate their fair values due to relatively short-term
maturity.

(i) Other financial assets

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amount of
the Group’s deposits, other financial assets and pledged bank
deposits to secure short-term bank loans at the end of the
reporting period approximate their corresponding fair value due to
relatively short-term maturity.

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, non-trade
nature, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The bank deposits, both pledged and non-pledged, carry interest
at market rates.

30. Trade Payables, Provision and
Accrued Charges

Included in trade payables, provision and accrued charges are
trade payables of HK$217.0 million (2013: HK$264.0 million
(restated)), an aged analysis presented based on the payment
due date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

290, Hit&mEE

() EWEEATEE

FEIE S A TR IE T IR - IEESME - B8
DA E B R o RS B AREENE -
ATEEENEEEERL ATEEE -

(i) HbemEE

BEREISEAERE AR EETRANEER
2%e  HittemEE A UNKIREHRTER
ZBEBIRIT RN SRS R R EEEERE
DTEREE -

R A ERRIFIATEEN - JFEZHE - 28
AN FBILHERER -

B R BRI RITFFIIET GRS

30. ERHEZRF  BEREE
H

BRNESER  BEMEAERTRERNES
BRI 217.0 A &E T (20134 : 264.0 BB BT
(FF])) » AT ABRkE BREE BN R E 83
P ZERER DT

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M

BEER BEATT

(restated)

(&51)

Not yet due RN 172.6 197.7
Overdue: By

0 - 60 days 0—60X 20.1 42.6

61 -90 days 61—90K 0.7 4.8

Over 90 days BB 0K 23.6 18.9

217.0 264.0

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.
The directors of the Company consider the carrying amount of

trade payables at the end of the reporting period approximate
their corresponding fair value due to relatively short-term maturity.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014
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The trade payables, provision and accrued charges include
provisions for certain construction obligations of HK$338.8
million (2013: HK$371.3 million). In the course of the property
development activities, the Group is obliged to construct certain
common or public facilities within the development projects in
accordance with the development plans approved by the relevant
authorities. Provision for such construction costs has been made
when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of this
obligation and the details of the movement of the provision are set
out below:

NE SRR - BB LETERARESE TS
AP ER (5 338.8 A E BT (20134 : 371.3H
BET) - AEBEITYRERIB ZBIET -
BRBEEERIE ERAE  RERBEER
B2 E T ARSI ARRNE - Bt - AEBDRA]
I TEFFR AR 2 S RIEL TSGR - BZF
FREEP AR LR o WIBRME 2 BB IEESIN
™

HK$'M

BEBT

Balance at 1 April 2012 R20124F 4 A1 H 2 &8 261.0
Provided during the year FRNBE 120.7
Utilised during the year FNENA (10.4)
Balance at 31 March 2013 R2013%F 3 A31 B 2 &8 371.3
Utilised during the year FREA (32.5)
Balance at 31 March 2014 7201453 A 31 A 248k 338.8
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31. Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting years:

31. BRI IE

T RE R X BRIERIE (A E) BENRY
RETRBEREEE 2D -

Fair value Distributable
Accelerated  change of profits of
tax investment Tax aPRC
depreciation properties losses  subsidiary Others
—[E
HEAR
REME TR
MEHEHE APELY Al
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HKE'M HKE'M HKE'M
BEBT REAT BEBT REAT BEBT  BEAR
(note)
(M)
At 1 April 2012 (restated) 201254 418 (Z3)) (155.1) (38.0) 332 (27.6) 31.0 (156.9)
Currency realignment EhRE 0.3 (0.5) 05 - 0.1 02
(Charge) credit to profitorloss  (¥1k) s AJBZE (34.0) 03 42 - 4.2) (33.7)
Charge to investment MEREEREE
revaluation reserve - - - - 0.4) 0.4)
At 31 March 2013 (restated) 201343 431 B (E3) (189.4) (38.2) 379 27.6) 26.5 (190.8)
Currency realignment B 0.3 0.1 ©0.6) - 02 ©0.4)
Credit (charge) to profitorloss &P A (4B ) & 114 (31.9) 27.9 - 3.2 (45.2)
Credit to investment STAREEHRE
revaluation reserve - - - - 04 04
At 31 March 2014 R2014£3 A 31H (177.7) (70.0) 9.4 (27.6) 29.9 (236.0)

Note: These mainly represent net deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised in

relation to unrealised profit of certain property development projects.
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For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after
offset) for financial reporting purposes:

MEMEEMHMRNERMT - ETEEHREE
RABRBRAKEZ @ BEREH - U TRAR
T2 AE O RER RS (RIHR) D1 -

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M

BHEBT BEBT

(restated)

(E3)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHBEE (240.1) (197.9)
Deferred tax assets R IBEE 4.1 7.1
(236.0) (190.8)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$1,086.1 million (2013: HK$1,093.3 million (restated))
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of approximately HK$57.0 million
(2013: HK$229.7 million (restated)) of such losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$1,029.1 million (2013: HK$863.6 million (restated)) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$227.2 million (2013: HK$246.6
million (restated)) mainly arising from impairment losses
recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment, and
inventory. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation
to such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

REREHIR - AEEKRFERARIEEIER1,086.1
BEBT(20134F : 1,093.3BEBT(EF])) -
A AR AR ACRET - ER457.08 88T
(20134F : 229.7 B BB (ES)) BEE ERIE
EFRIBEE - AREETERRICEFIRA - Eity
WERLHEE1,029.1 BEE B0 (20134F : 863.6 B
BB (EY)) BRECHBEE -

RFEHR A EEXEZRAME - BEMEE
AR GFE 2 BRERBERIBATSI B2 Al f0R S
EEE227T2EHEBIT(20134 : 2466 A& BT
(E%])) - BRI KRR BEE ERBUHF AT HRK
SEATNIR T A RE - R WL RZ S AT R B
ERERIEERIEEE -
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32. Bank and Other Loans 32. RITREMER

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M
BEAET BEBT
(restated)
==270))
Bank loans (note a) RITER (Mizta) 5,064.0 5,082.8
Bonds and notes (note b) ﬁ%&m%ﬁ (F3F o) 964.7 188.6
6,028.7 5,271.4
Less: Amount included under current B ETARBBEEZ SR
liabilities (including bank loans with (BIERER2RER
a repayable on demand clause) &R 2 SRITEFK) (2,321.0) (1,801.4)
Amount included under non-current FFAFERBBE SR
liabilities 3,707.7 3,470.0
Bank and other loans are repayable: RITREMERAE
R TS HARERE
On demand or within one year BRERe—FR 2,321.0 1,801.4
Between one to two years —FERFA 2,611.8 722.8
Between two to five years MEERFNRN 303.7 2,747.2
More than five years BEAF 792.2 -
6,028.7 5,271.4
Secured HE R 446.3 539.6
Unsecured i 5,582.4 4,731.8
6,028.7 5,271.4
Notes: BI5E -
(a) Asat 31 March 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings carry interest at an (a) M2014F3A31H » NEEBITIEEL2.04% (2013 F -

1.88% (F71)) 2 FI9EH 8 RMBBRITREFERHEM
MERIRITR /S EFE -

average margin of 2.04% (2013: 1.88% (restated)) plus Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR?”) or other relevant interbank offered rates.

(b) On 2 April 2013, the Company issued HK$560.0 million 7-year unlisted (b) M2013F4[2H  AQREITE60.0EEB L2 FH
notes at a coupon rate of 4.5% per annum. Subsequently on 10 April 2013, the BEF 4.5%m@ﬂ BETEZIELMERE - BEBN 201354 A
Company established a US$1.0 billion Medium Term Note Programme (“MTN 108 AR AR 10.018FE L2 R BT &I ([ BT
Programme”). In May 2013, a total of HK$238.0 million 7-year unlisted notes at EIDID EA2013¢5 A REP RIS 2 8174888 238.0

a coupon rate of 4.3% per annum was issued under the MTN Programme. As at BEBTZ EFHREFA43% ZAMEFT B LTRE - B
31 March 2014, the remaining bond with principal amount of HK$172.5 million 201443 A31H B NEHFARE 17255 E BT (20134 ¢
(2013: HK$188.6 million) carried interest at a margin of 0.8% (2013: 2.0%) plus 188.6 A BB L) IHEF0.8%(20134F : 2.0%) ZEBEBEMNE
the relevant interbank offered rates per annum. BBIRITRIZERE XS -

AREEERR  RNREPR - AEERTRE
ERZ REERLBEATERE

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amount of the
Group’s bank and other loans at the end of the reporting period
approximates their corresponding fair value.
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33. OTHER LIABILITIES

33. HibhaE

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEATT
(restated)
(&%)
Advances from non-controlling FEAERR IR 2 25k ()
shareholders (note) 543.8 623.5
Club debentures gHES 862.4 864.0
Others EHAh, 14.2 15.0
1,420.4 1,502.5
Less: Amount due within one year B ETARBIEEZ
included under current liabilities —FREIEAFRIE (14.0) (11.8)
Amount due after one year —F 1B B HAFIE 1,406.4 1,490.7

Note: The amount represents advances from non-controlling shareholders of
certain subsidiaries to finance operations of those subsidiaries. As at 31 March
2014, included in advances from non-controlling shareholders is an amount
of HK$459.9 million (2013: HK$510.0 million) which bear interest at 3-month
HIBOR plus 2.5% and nil (2013: HK$28.9 million) which bear interest at fixed
rate of 7.0% per annum. The amounts are unsecured and are not repayable
within one year. The remaining balance is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
is not expected to be settled within twelve months from the end of the reporting

Mzt - B RE THEAR ZIHERIRRATRE 22X - B
DB ZEM B AR EIBE - R2014F3A31 1 » FEIERMR
R 2 BA B A 450.9F 88 t(20134F : 510.0HE
T ) R3ME A AR S IRTTRI IR B R MN2.56% 5T 8 kil (2013
F 289 BBA)IZETEFFET7.0%ETE - ZERHAEIK
WRBEANR—FANEE - RFEAAEIER - 2B RBEHIER
wEERBE AR I2EARES -

period.

Club debentures are redeemable on their maturity dates, which

are as follows:

EMESFINEBEEIHEER
T

C ZERH AL

2014 2013

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEAT BEBTT

Within 1 year —FNR 14.0 11.4
Over 1 year but within 5 years —FUEEBERFUA 37.5 17.3
Over 5 years and before 2047 RELA R 2047 G 27 Al 0.5 27.6
In 2047 R 2047 F 810.4 807.7
862.4 864.0
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These debentures are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are HWEBEHFHARE - BEBREITT TIHAAE
issued to members of the following clubs operated by the Group: EfiErefffes
2014 2013
HK$'M HK$'M
BEER BEAT
Discovery Bay Golf Club mRERBARE 663.8 663.7
Discovery Bay Marina Club TS g E 52.0 56.4
Discovery Bay Recreation Club REReE 146.6 143.9
862.4 864.0
The directors of the Company consider the carrying amount of RRABIEERE  RREHR  A5EEMEE
the Group’s other liabilities at the end of the reporting period ZIREEEEAEATEMESE
approximates their corresponding fair values.
Included in other liabilities in year 2013 were obligations under 013 HMBERERERERE0SEES
finance leases of HK$0.8 million which were fully settled during TL ERARNFERELES -
the year.
34. Deposits Received and Other 4. Bz REMERERE

Financial Liabilities

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amount ARRIEERR  BRAEEZBIRE RHEM
ANy, (= Wt S AA ] ES

of the Group’s deposits received and other financial liabilities at SRR EZ B R AREEE ﬁﬁéﬁ%/ﬁﬂ;’{ L #&

the end of the reporting period approximates their corresponding SRR REERE AR A ERS

fair value due to the relatively short-term maturity.

Included in deposits received and other financial liabilities are E”&E%%ﬁﬂfﬁﬁiﬁﬁqﬂ @Tﬁiﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁé 12 15
property sales deposits of HK$104.6 million (2013: HK$198.1 @H%ENEEEP EE%Z#Z{%%;%&@ 1046 HEE
million) expected to be recognised in profit or loss within 12 7T (20134 - 198.1 AEATT) °
months.
35. Share Capital 35. IRA&
2014 & 2013
Number
of shares HK$'M
IR BEERT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each HiRE{EO0.25 BTz iR
Authorised: ETERRA
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and R2012%F4 /518 -
31 March 2014 201343 HA31B K
20143 A31H 2,000,000,000 500.0
Issued and fully paid: BT R AR
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and R2012F4 A1 H -
31 March 2014 20133 A31 B R
201443 A31H 1,350,274,367 337.5
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36. Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 8 September
2011 which permits the directors of the Company to grant
options to all directors (including any executive directors and non-
executive directors), full-time employees and any consultants
(employed on a contract basis) of the Company, its subsidiaries
and/or its associated companies to subscribe for shares in the
Company. No share option has yet been granted under this
scheme.

Hanison also adopted a share option scheme which became
effective on 21 September 2011. All directors (including
independent non-executive directors), full-time employees and
consultants of Hanison, its subsidiaries and/or its associates are
eligible to participate in this scheme. No share option has been
granted under this scheme since its adoption.

37. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes long-term bank and other loans, short-term bank loans
and other borrowings as disclosed in Notes 32 and 33, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on

a periodic basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

36. IR HARESHE

AAEIA20114F9 A 8 HERMN T IR HARE=T &l -
AR R ARREEZRARAR C EMEAR K
/SEBERNRZBES (RIEAMRITES K
IEMITESE) 2REES REMUAENFAIER

R RER I 0 ] RS AR A R D 2 AR 10 HARE o bR
7 48 4% HH AR (R AR B -

B IR T 7201199 B 21 B AR Z B BAkE
FHEl - AR - BB AR K/ SE B ENAT
ZEZ (BREIFMTES) - 2RIER LR
BRA2EZAEZER - tF 8 B RMEL &
B LR B -

37. EXEMRERE

RERAREN TSR TRERELYE A%
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38. Financial Instruments

Categories of financial instruments

2014 2013

TREE

RFREIRRE

Financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments
Loans and receivables (including
cash and cash equivalents)

Available-for-sale financial assets, A ESREE -
at fair value BAE
Financial liabilities TRAE
Amortised cost B SHR AR
Obligation under finance lease BEREEE

ER R EWGE (BRERE R
ReFHEEB)

38. R TH
SR T HE 28R

HK$'M HK$'M

BEER BBEATT

(restated)

(&%)

261.5 218.5

6,308.3 4,958.2

83.8 80.5

7,894.0 7,229.6

- 0.8

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale financial assets, trade receivables,
progress payments receivable, retention money receivable,
other financial assets, amounts due from associates, amounts
due from joint ventures, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade payables, deposits received and other financial
liabilities, bank and other loans and other liabilities. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group does not have significant exposure to foreign
currency risk as majority of the Group’s sales and purchases
are denominated in currency which is the functional currency of
the respective group entities except for certain bank balances,
loans to joint ventures and held-to-maturity investments which
are denominated in foreign currency, other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities.
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The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency EEEEAREAUINESNEZEENBEZE
denominated assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as EEWNT :
follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2014 2013
HK$’'M HK$'M HK$’M HK$'M
BEEBT EBEAT HEBR BEAT
(restated)
Currency &% (£51))
Renminbi ARE 547.5 37.2 - -
US dollar ETT 4,949.5 4,592.1 - -
Thai baht ES7 319.5 518.9 - -
Others HAth 47.0 7.3 - -
Sensitivity analysis HREE DT
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of Renminbi, US AEBFEEAZARE EXNRUELEZEE
dollar and Thai baht. [\ -
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% TRFAVASEHNEFESEERB 2 EE R
decrease in the functional currency of the respective group HEEIINEIEEXTIREE 5% 2 BRE ° 5% Al
entities against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the F EEIE A B N EPE NS E N R P A 2 BU%
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally - WHAERELEREES  SEFTMHE -
to key management personnels and represents management’s BRESMEBRELINETE 2 MREHER
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign BE - WHRERARERE DARIRER 2 5% &
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding &) o AN ITEAAR S BB e EE A
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their FAINE B 5% < & - TRIEBRTAFE R
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency I E R E 150 - MRS E R s
rates. The analysis illustrates the impact for a 5% weakening of Y BBEEETEIES% 2 HE Bl EARFE
the functional currency of the respective group entities against i N R E H R ERR R 2 SFETE -

the relevant currency and a positive number below indicates an
increase in profits for the year and in exchange reserve. For a 5%
strengthening of the functional currency of the respective group
entities against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profits for the year and exchange
reserve.

Increase in
Increase in profits exchange reserve

i A 3% FE 5 A 1 An
2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M  HK$'M HK$'M
BEERT BEET HEEBR BEAT

(restated) (restated)
Currency B (&%) (&%)
Renminbi AR 27.4 1.9 - -
US dollar ETT 46.9 29.0 200.6 200.6
Thai baht Rk 0.9 - 15.1 25.9
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is BEERR - BRERERIEERMER 2@

unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year - BRRE DT AR EKREE 2 INER g o
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation

to held-to-maturity investments (see Note 21), fixed-rate bank
deposits and borrowings (see Notes 32 and 39) and fixed-rate
advance from non-controlling shareholder (see Note 33). The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank deposits and borrowings (see Notes 32 and
39), variable-rate advance from non-controlling shareholder (see
Note 33) and mortgage instalment receivables (see Note 22). It
is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of
interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR or other relevant
interbank offered rates arising from the Group’s borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at
the end of the reporting period. The variable-rate bank deposits
have been excluded from sensitivity analysis as the management
of the Group considered that the interest rate fluctuation is

not significant. For variable-rate bank borrowings, variable-

rate advance from non-controlling shareholder and mortgage
instalment receivables, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liability and asset outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnels and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s:

° profit for the year ended 31 March 2014 would decrease/
increase by HK$25.2 million (2013: HK$25.4 million (restated)).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings and mortgage
instalment receivables.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not changed
significantly from the prior year.
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Other price risk

The Group is exposed to market price fluctuation through

its investments in both listed and unlisted securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a diversified
portfolio. The level and volatility of the prices of securities

may be affected by general economic and market conditions,
such as interest rates, availability of credit, inflation rates,
economic uncertainty, changes in laws (including taxation law),
trade barriers, currency exchange controls, and national and
international political circumstances, if applicable.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to price of securities investments at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective securities investments had been 5%
higher/lower:

° investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
HK$4.0 million (2013: HK$3.8 million) for the Group as a result of
the changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

The Group’s sensitivity to available-for-sale investments has not
changed significantly from the prior year.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

° the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position; and

° the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed in Note 41.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Hip B3R

AEERER EMRIEEMEFZIREMAZT
BERKE - ERBEEERZITEMRERS
BRI EE o EHERKF SRR X B
BEEMMISARATE - fIAX - FEAE
M RARE - ERARRN  ORDIEE) (B
BED) - BH55RE  G¥ELEH - UREH
NMEBRBCaER (ER)

BRI T
ATHREEAMIRENHRE B EFREZER

R MEERE °

B REREFIRE ZEBR LT/ TH5% -« B :

o KREEHREERAIHLESHEEZAT
EEBMBEN/ R 40BE%E7T(20134 : 3.8
"BEBT) -

AR R (11 0 2 7 G SR 4 AR
FAED) -

ZER R

MR2014F3A31H * A EBRERR ZEHRERTT
ETURBERERNAEBTEEINEASZ
eEERRE - hRE ¢
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With respect to credit risk arising from loans to an investee,
amounts due from associates and amounts due from joint
ventures, the Group reviews the recoverable amount at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The exposure to credit risk
is limited.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk in connection with held-to-
maturity investments, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings and corporates with strong financial position.

Other than amounts due from associates amounting to HK$45.5
million (2013: HK$272.2 million (restated)), the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit risk over trade
receivables. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 March 2014, the Group has available unutilised
overdraft and bank loan facilities of approximately HK$4,697.9
million (2013: HK$4,200.9 million (restated)).

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
board of directors of the Company, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of

the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms except for the bank loans with a repayable on demand
clause. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of
the reporting period.
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Liquidiity risk table TEEoREEFR
Repayable on Total Carrying
demand or Over5  undiscounted amount
within 1 year years cash flows at 31 March
BREXS AR R3A31H
—-EREE BENE Rehss KR
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M
BEET BEET BERT BEET BEET BEET
2014 0145
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ J:{7+ 2REE
Trade payables and accrued charges BN E SEF B ER 2758 178 - - 2936 2936
Deposits received and EhReREMSHAR
other financial liabitties 151.3 - - - 151.3 151.3
Bark and other loans ROREMER
— fixed rate -8 35.2 35.2 1055 828.9 1,004.8 7922
- variable rate -%8 1,490.8 2,650.9 1,240.8 - 5,382.5 5,236.5
Other liabilties Efef 140 5712.3 36.8 810.9 1,434.0 1,420.4
Financial quarantes contracts BBEREN 1682 - - - 1582 -
2,153 3,216.2 1,383.1 1,639.8 84244 7,894.0
2013 [restated) 13F(E7)
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ ${i+ 2REE
Trade payables and accrued charges [N E SEZREHER 298.0 3.3 - - 336.3 336.3
Deposits received and EhReREMSHAR
other financil liabilties 120.2 - - - 120.2 120.2
Bank and other loans BITREMER
- variable rate -%8 1,904.2 79%.5 27721 - 54718 52714
Other fabilties Efafk 184 6503 162 83.3 15202 15025
Financial quarantee contracts HBERH 168.8 - - - 1688 -
2,509.6 1,484.1 27883 835.3 7617.3 72304
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As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, all bank loans are classified in
respective time band based on the agreed repayment terms
except for the bank loans with a repayable on demand clause.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “Repayable on demand or within 1 year” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2014, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans amounted
to HK$1,005.5 million (2013: HK$362.7 million (restated)). Taking
into account the Group’s financial position, the directors of

the Company do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe that such
bank loans as at 31 March 2014 will be repaid within three to
five years (2013: six years (restated)) after the reporting date

in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$1,041.9 million (2013:
HK$380.4 million (restated)).

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair values of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices; and

° the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

The consolidated financial statements include holdings in unlisted
shares which are measured at fair value (Note 21). Fair value is
provided by independent financial institutions or fund managers.
The valuation is generally based on the most recent financial and
market information of the underlying investee as advised by the
fund manager.

39. Analysis of the Balances of Cash and
Cash Equivalents

AFE
CREEREBABZAHENEATTAE

A

EEIEEGR M ARE N ERRBT S E
B2 eRMEEZ ANTENZETSEAREMNE
&

g

s HitSMEEIETREEB(TEENTET
) ZAHEIRE-REEZRXEERA - I
RERIME RO -

RAEVMBHRABRERERAFEFEZIFLETR
7 (32 21) - RFETDHBLSREEBRES
REEIRE - (AE—RRBEEREHREOMH
EiigER SR E S IR E M2 AER

30. RERBECHEHEABEHRIN

2014 2013

Bank balances and cash RITEBR NI

HK$’M HKS$'M
BEET BEBT
(restated)

(&%)

5,311.8 3,081.6

Included in the bank balances and cash at 31 March 2014 were
bank deposits with maturity within 3 months from the date of
placement amounting to approximately HK$5,270.6 million
(2013: HK$2,752.7 million).

The effective interest rate of the bank balances at 31 March 2014
were in the range of 0.01% to 3.55% (2013: 0.01% to 3.55%)
per annum. The directors of the Company consider the carrying
amount of the Group’s bank balances and cash at the end of the
reporting period approximates their corresponding fair value.

MR2014F3A31H @ IRTTEH LIRS BIEAELN
5,270.6 AEBIL(20134F : 2,752 7AEB TR
3{ERRENEZRITIFR -

SRITEE I 2014F3 A31 B 2 BEEFIREFF R
0.01% Z 3.55%(20134F : 0.01% £ 3.55%) 2 &
BER - ARREERANEENRITESR LIRS
PIREHR 2 BR A E SR e A P ERE -
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40. Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2014, certain subsidiaries of the Company had
pledged bank deposits of HK$51.8 million (2013: HK$27.2 million
(restated)) to secure banking facilities being granted. As at 31
March 2013, a subsidiary of the Company had subordinated its
inter-company debt of HK$40.4 million (2014: Nil) and a fixed
and floating charge was created over the assets and undertaking
of one of the Company’s subsidiaries (total asset value as at

31 March 2013: HK$66.2 million (2014: Nil)) to secure banking
facilities being granted.

In addition, as at 31 March 2014, certain bank loans of the Group
were secured by certain investment properties, leasehold land
and buildings and properties held for/under development for sale,
at the carrying value of HK$1,153.6 million (2013: HK$1,168.2
million).

41. Contingent Liabilities

40. EEKH

R2014F3A31 B ARAIETHBRARES
BIRIRITFR51.8E&EBL(20134F 1 272 &
BB (EY)) » MERERBITEE 2R -
R20183F3 A31H  ARA—RWEBAFIHHE
NAEEIF40.4 B EBTT (20144 « £) FEE
REARAQNBER —RHB AR 2 EE RAE
(2013 F3 A1 HZ EEMHE - 66.2 B BB T
(20144 « &)) CIEEE MFBhiER - AERE
RIRTTEE 2| -

SN - FA20145E3 A31H » BRE{E1,153.6 B8
EIC(20134F < 1,168.2 A& B L) 2 & TIREY
% HETHIEFURBELEZRRE/ERE
PYEBEARER B TRITERZIEA -

41. HREE

2014 2013

Guarantees given, to the extent of
the Group’s proportionate share,
in respect of banking facilities granted EEER ZER
to an investee company

DA SR B RAR L () AR -
BARE A RIERRRTT

HK$'M HK$'M
BEBRT BEAT
158.2 168.8

No financial guarantee has been recognised in the consolidated
financial statements as, in the opinion of the directors of

the Company, the fair value of the financial guarantee was
insignificant. No provision for financial guarantee contracts has
been made at the end of the reporting period as the default risk is
low.
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42. Commitments 42, EiE
2014 2013
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
(restated)
(&%)
Contracted but not provided for in the REMBEMERPERYL
consolidated financial statements BREE
- expenditure in respect of properties —FHIEREZER/
held for/under development for sale BRAPYIFE 2 ASE 508.6 461.2
— capital expenditure in respect of — B - BB
acquisition of property, Bt BEAFSE
plant and equipment 81.0 72.0
- others —Hfth 12.9 22.2
602.5 555.4
Authorised but not contracted for EHUEEREL
— expenditure in respect of properties —BEHEZERE/
held for/under development for sale BRI 2 AIE 344.0 759.2
— capital expenditure in respect of —WEmE - BB
acquisition of property, B BAHEIE
plant and equipment 7.7 32.5
351.7 791.7
954.2 1,347 .1
As at 31 March 2013, the Group had committed to acquire the M2013E3 A3 A » AEEEAHEUSER
investment interests in an investment property in Japan for an 200.2 @A T (WA ALK AR ZIZE
outstanding amount of HK$200.2 million. The acquisition was MEZIERER - ZWEBEIED R20135F4 H25
completed on 25 April 2013. In addition, the outstanding capital HTER o o - REBERARPER R 2K TE
commitments in respect of the Group’s interest in Dazhongli is AAGED M 5E 20 R IR ER o

disclosed in Note 20.
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201



202

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS IR KRBT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

43. Leasing Arrangements 43. HEZH
The Group as lessee EEEREEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RBEHR - AEERE 1 RIEF 2 T
for future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable KEFREMARNA NEB SN 2 A RSEEES
operating leases in respect of land and buildings which fall due as FORIEWT ¢
follows:
2014 2013
HK$'M HK$'M
BEABT BEAT
(restated)
(E31))
Within one year —FR 20.8 34.6
In the second to fifth year inclusive FIEFAT (BIEEERT) 74 21.4
Over five years AFiE 7.3 9.4
35.2 65.4

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group AT E TS I AEB S E R ASYERETTHE
for its office premises and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for SEMNZHES  c AEFHEEITAH2F  Fi51
an average term of two years and rentals are fixed for an average ZOERAELTE -

term of one to two years.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group was committed to leasing Ro013F3 831 H » AREED AT AR
land in Singapore where a hotel was situated for 86 years up to — STy T - FAERAS64E © £ 20744

February 2074. The annual lease payment was at the higher of 2AE - BEBEMAASYISBEERITIEELR
approximately HK$4.5 million or 5% of the total gross revenue of W2 5% (ARSEAE)  BEWERHBEEL

the hotel. The hotel property and leasehold land was disposed WERAEELE  BAREER2014F3831H
during the year and the Group is no longer had operating lease TEHBZE A ST ERIE -

commitment for such land as at 31 March 2014.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014
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e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned from investment properties and
other properties during the year was HK$328.0 million (2013:
HK$307.9 million (restated)) in aggregate, of which HK$323.5
million (2013: HK$303.6 million (restated)) was generated from
investment properties of the Group. Investment properties

and other properties with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$7,464.9 million (2013: HK$6,954.0 million (restated)) were
held for rental purposes at the end of the reporting period.
Depreciation charge for the year in respect of other properties
was HK$1.3 million (2013: HK$1.3 million). The properties held
have committed tenants for a period from one to thirteen years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum leases payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

AEEBHEA

WEWEREMYEN TR WER WA
AHA328.0EEBT(20134F : 307.9FEE T
(E%])) - 3235 H5EE T (20134 : 303.6
BEBT(EY))RAREBIREME - RS
iR - BREEA 7,464 9B BB T (20134 :
6,954.0 B & HTT(EY)) 2 WEWE R EAMYE
TFEERR - AFEENEBREMYEITE
SHAE13EEHET(2013F  1.3E&BT) ° A
BEYESDAMANESEHB1E13FTE - IR
HER  AEBEBETHFIY - MBEA
Bb e ER THIERE R 2 R KRR E N
AT

2014 2013

HK$’M HK$'M

EX-3: BEBIT

(restated)

(&31))

Within one year —FNKX 272.8 231.9
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFAT (BEERT) 143.3 130.3
Over five years AFE 4.6 6.1
420.7 368.3

EEEEEREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F355
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS IR KRBT

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

44. Retirement Benefits Schemes
A. Hong Kong

In order to comply with Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance, a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) with employer’s voluntary contributions has been
established on 1 December 2000.

For the members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5% of the relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 effective 1 June
2012 for the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by the
employee.

The amount charged to profit or loss represents contributions of
HK$33.0 million (2013: HK$29.7 million (restated)) payable to the
MPF Scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes less forfeitures of HK$3.5 million (2013: HK$2.3 million
(restated)) arising from employees leaving the Group prior to
completion of the qualifying service period.

At the end of the reporting period, there is no forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the retirement
benefits schemes and which are available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years (2013: Nil).

B. PRC and Overseas

The employees of the Group in the PRC and overseas are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated
by the respective local governments in relevant jurisdictions.

The Group is required to contribute and recognise a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligations of the Group with respect to these schemes
are to make the specified contributions and recognise the
respective retirement pay in accordance with terms set out in the
schemes and relevant jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above-

mentioned schemes in the relevant jurisdictions amounted to
approximately HK$8.8 million (2013: HK$9.4 million).

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

44, RIREFIHE

A. BE

REFEREIMEATESFENED] - et RS
2l ([miEestEl]) SEF B RERE N 2000 F
12 A1 BB -

Pkt EIZKEME  AEETVEERTIE
AR Z 5% $foafa St IR - s SFTSIHER
2 & ABBRA LR A25,00087T (201246
BABAR) - mATHERIEE R B T IEAER -

REZEFTAZEEAAEBREARESFT S 2 H#
REMABN 2 #5357 33.0 8&E BT (20134 : 29.7
BEBIIL(EY])) Wk E THETKE ERR
SRR B AR E BRI 2 BEES S B BB T
(2013%F : 23 EEBIL(EY])) ©

REREHR - WAREREE TREZFRKEHE
SIFTRM 2 3R M FHRATRARIREF 2 &
R FORR (20134 : ) ©

B. HERE&N

REEFELEIMER RAERRIAEREAZ
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AR T ERAZIETE B 20t A REAT IR
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REFZA 8 2 R R B R BN AR 2 RE MRS
BZBRKE -

SRR R AR 2 5T EINMB RN Z 8K
KH88AEHET (20134 : 94BEBT) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and

Joint Ventures

(@  Details of principal subsidiaries incorporated and have their

principal place of operations in Hong Kong are as follows:

31 March 2014
20143831 R

Equity
interest
attributable
Issued to the Group
Name of company share capital KEEEE
YNGIES BETRA 2 IRE
HK$ %
BT BAl
Almedco Group Limited 1,500,000 45.6°
AmMed Cancer Center (Central) Limited 2 100
AmMed Hong Kong Limited 10,000 100
REEABBARAA
Beaufort Hotels Limited 1 100
Cardiomed Limited 1 100
TEFRERAR
Discovery Bay Property Limited 2 50*
WRENEARAT
Discovery Bay Commercial Services 2 50*
Limited
MREBEREARAA
Discovery Bay Enterprises Limited 400,000 50*

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

45. TEME AT  BEQARE
N
@ EESEMNTREEZ EBHEATF
B

31 March 2013
PRERRINE

Equity
Nominal value interest
of issued attributable
share capital to the Group

Principal activities

FE%H
HK$ %
o BALL
1,500,000 456" Trading of medical and dental

equipment and supplies
EERRETHRERMER

Provision of cancer treatment
service and diagnostic
imaging service

R ERREIRE ER R

10,000 100 Investment holding

RERR

Provision of hotel management
Services

REEEEERS

Investment holding

RERR

2 50 Provision of property agency
services

MR R R

2 50" Commercial leasing agent

AFEERE

400,000 50" Operation of a shipyard

LEMS

FEEEBMREBARAR 2013/2014 F3 205
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AR A WS R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Name of company
NTIELE!

Discovery Bay Financial Services Limited

R ENBREERAT

Discovery Bay Golf Club Limited
BRERAXFEERAT

Discovery Bay Hotel Limited

Discovery Bay Marina Club Limited
WRERREERAR

Discovery Bay Recreation Club Limited
BRERESERA

Discovery Bay Road Tunnel Company
Limited
WRERERRAF

Discovery Bay Services Management
Limited
WS ERBERERAR

Discovery Bay Transit Services Limited

FERBREERAT

Discovery Bay Transportation Services
Limited
R EMERKARA

31 March 2014
201453531

Equity
interest
attributable
Issued to the Group
share capital FERES
ERTRE 2B
HK$ %
BT Bl

2 50*

2 50*

2 50*

2 50*

2 50*

2 50*

2 50*

2 50*

2 50*

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

31 March 2013
2013%3A31H

Nominal value
of issued
share capital
BEIRA
ZHE

HKS
B

Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group

50
50"
50
50"

50**

50**

50**

50**

Principal activities
TREH

Provision of financial services
to first hand purchasers of
properties in Discovery Bay

ARRENEL - FERRM
Bt IR

Provision of club facilities
2N

Hotel operator

BESE

Provision of club facilities
RN

Provision of club facilities
RN

Road tunnel operator
RiELE

Estate manager and principal
lessee of communication
network in Discovery Bay

ERERRASERNBEL
FEERA

Provision of bus and garage
services

RECTRERRH

Provision of ferry services

RERRRS



Name of company
NS

Fame Wood Limited
EIRER AT

Gains Century Limited
EBARRA

Grace Investment Limited
EEREBRAA

Greenyield Limited
AABERRA

Hagent Investment Limited
BRRERRAT

Hanison Construction Company Limited**
EBRERR AR

Hanison Interior & Renovation Limited®

ABEAREEERAT"

Health & Care Dental Clinic Limited
ERFNEEHRERAR

Health & Care Group Limited
ERBEEEERAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 March 2014
20143 A 31 R

Equity

interest

attributable

Issued to the Group
share capital
BRTRA

HK$ %

BT Bl

2 100

1 100

2 100

2 100

2 100

60,001,000* 49

4,200,000 49

10,100,000 57.05

20,510,000 57.05

31 March 2013
20133 A31H

Equity

Nominal value interest

of issued attributable

share capital to the Group
BEARA AEER

ZEfE

HK$ %

BT BAt

2 100

1 100

2 100

2 100

2 100

60,001,000 49

4,200,000 49

8,708,433 57.06

1,133,334 57.06

= AR

ARA MR ME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Principal activities
255

Property investment

VESE

Investment holding
REAR

Property investment

VESE

Property investment

VESE

Property investment

VESE

Property construction
xREE

Provision of interior and
renovation services

RERHRAERY

Provision of dental health and
care services and operation
of dental clinics

REUTRREERRBEREE
TRDM

Investment holding and its
Subsidiaries are engaged in
development and operation
of dental clinic chain

REER - HEAMBATAR
SERNZEERTINDM

EEEEEREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F355
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AR A WK M A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Name of company
NTIELE!

Healthway Medical Centres Limited

RABZEPLERAR

Hong Kong Health Resort Limited

Hong Kong Resort Company Limited
EERFARLA

HKR Limited
BRRARARARLA

HKR Properties Limited
FREE(Mx)BRAT

Lam Island Development Company
Limited
HEBEEERAR

Partner Ally Limited
FXARATA

Lee Wo Company, Limited
MAMBRRT

Million Hope Industries Limited**
XTEXARAAY

Parocka Investments Limited

Pearl Development Limited
BERREARAA

31 March 2014
201453531

Equity

interest

attributable

Issued to the Group

share capital FERES
ERTRE 2B
HK$ %

BT Bl

1 100

4 100
389,243,374.35*** 50%
2 100

2 100

2,000,000 99.99
1,000 75
300,000 100
11,000,000 49
20 100

2 100

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

31 March 2013

2013%3A31H
Equity
Nominal value interest
of issued attributable
share capital to the Group
BEIRA
i}
HK$ %
BT Bt
1 100

212,950,000.5"* 50"
2 100

2 100

2,000,000 99.99
1,000 75

300,000 100
11,000,000 49

20 100

2 100

Principal activities
TREH

Operation of medical centres
FEBERL

Property investment

ESIES

Investment holding and
property development

RERRENZER

Property management

VEEE:

Property investment

ESIES

Property development

S

Investment holding

RERK

Property investment

ESIES

Supply and installation of
building materials
fhRE R TR RN

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

VESIE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

31 March 2014
20143 A 31 R

31 March 2013
20133 A31H

Equity Equity
interest Nominal value interest
attributable of issued attributable
Issued to the Group share capital to the Group
Name of company share capital BEARA AEER Principal activities
NS BEIRA AT L IRiE BEK
HK$ % HK$ %
BT Bl BT BAL
Qualigenics Medical Limited 3,000,000 80 3,000 80  Operation of diabetic and
PEREBRAA endocring disorders clinics
and provision of cardiac
treatment
EERRRAAWERBROE
RO
Quebostage Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
BHARRA NERE
Rainbow Alpha Holdings Limited 1 100° - - Property Development
RERRERAR VES
Retailcorp Limited" 2 49 2 49 Sales of health products
ZEREARAAN HERRER
Royston Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
WREEREBRAT REER
Smaragdine Limited 2 100 2 100 Property development
VES
Tai Kee Pipes Limited™ 2,000,000 49 2,000,000 49 Trading of building materials
R ARRA" BEREMH
Trigon Building Materials Limited* 2 49 2 49 Supply and installation by
ERERNARAR" building materials
R RERENH
Wells Estate Services Limited 100,000 100 100,000 100 Property management, estate
ERMERBERAT manager and investment
holding
MEREREBUARZERR
Wells Property Management Limited 1,000 100 1,000 100 Property management and
BRYEERARAT estate manager
NERERER
Yintaly Construction Company Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment

EHRETRERAR

ESE

EEEEEREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F355
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

* Include ordinary shares in the value of HK$1,000 and deferred shares in the
value of HK$60,000,000. The deferred shares are shares whose shareholders
are neither entitled to receive notices, attend, vote at any general meetings nor
to receive any dividend out of operating profit and have very limited rights on
return of capital of the subsidiary.

** According to the shareholders’ agreement of Hong Kong Resort Company
Limited (“HKRC”), the Group is able to control more than half of the voting
powers of the board of directors (which makes the financial and operating
decisions) of HKRC and its subsidiaries.

*** |n addition to 1 ordinary share, 100% in the value of HK$212,950,000
deferred shares are also held by the Group. The deferred shares held by the
Group are shares whose shareholders are neither entitled to receive notices,
attend, vote at any general meetings nor to receive any dividend out of
operating profit and have very limited rights on return of assets of the company.
Share premium of the deferred shares of HK$176,293,373.85 had been
transferred to share capital upon abolition of par value for the year ended 31
March 2014.

* Allmedco Group Limited (“Allmedco”) is classified as a subsidiary of the
Company as it is a 80%-owned subsidiary of Health & Care Group Limited
(“H&C”) which in turn is a 57.05%-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
Company has control over the board of directors of H&C and Allmedco.

" The companies have been treated as subsidiaries of the Company upon

adoption of HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”.
2 The company was incorporated during the year ended 31 March 2014 and
equity interest attributable to the Group reduced to 75% with effect from 16
April 2014.

% Share premium of ordinary shares of HK$1,391,567 had been transferred
to share capital upon abolition of par value for the year ended 31 March 2014,
%4 Share premium of ordinary shares of HK$19,376,666 had been transferred
to share capital upon abolition of par value for the year ended 31 March 2014.

8 Share premium of ordinary shares of HK$2,997,000 had been transferred
to share capital upon abolition of par value for the year ended 31 March 2014,

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

* BIE(EE1,000% T2 ik K B8 60,000,000 B 7T.2 iR
TR o IEIEAR (D 2 IRERBT R REUAA « HERRAE R
RE EEE - JMERFIBIRE S E R DR 2 MRS - &
ERFUHEAREEBRZEEDBAEF

o RBEEBEZERAR([HBEE])) 2R H# - A%E
ARSI EERENEMNBAR cEEE (PR EER
) IBRF B R -

o REBIFAVREBARIN - REEIMFE 100% BE
212,950,000 870 2 IEIERR1D - AEEIFE 2 BERDIRE
EFEREA - LQHREASRAE LIRE - IVERFIREHRE
EBHFPDR MRS  REREGHARIEERZEE
DECHEF) - BE2014F3 A3 BILFE - IEERHD 2 BDEHE
176,293,373.85 B L E N ER EE B ERER R -

" M Allmedco Group Limited ([ Allmedco |) A18f# 5 & 5%
EBRAR (B #HH80% EmZHBAR « MERAA
RARIHER 67.06% 2 B AR -t Almedco # 75 R 7R
ARIZHBRR] - AAREERERAImedcoz EEE AAIEH
T o

"R EEM S RERERE 105 [FAMB®RE K Z
ERARBHRARRBZMBEAR

2 ZARRNEZE2014F3831BILEREAGEMA BEAEER
FE(ERRAHERS B 2014 F 4 A 16 HEEFBE 75% °

b BE20146F3A31 BIEFE - EIERAREE 1,391,567
BTEREREEEERERERAE -

Y HZE201443A31 BILEE - LB 5 819,376,666
BITOREREEEERERERA -

M0 BE20144 3 A31 BIEFE - HIEARARHE 2,997,000
BTEREREEEERERERAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

(b)  Details of other principal subsidiaries are as follows: (b)) EmEFEMBARFBET
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
014534318 0134534318
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of ofissued  Equity interest of issued Equity interest
incorporation/ Principl share capital/ attributable share capital/ affributable
regstration place of registered capital to the Group registered capital to the Group
Name of company ; operation ER{TRA/ AEERE REEEE  Principal actities
RAAH L H AfEAZERE Pt i E
BAl Al
Abraham Holdings Limited Liberia Hong Kong Nil 100 Ni 100 Securities investment
flt2s Bk g B ErRE
Abraham Investment Holdings Limited British VirginIslands~~ Note” Usst 100 USSt 100 Securities investment
IBARREE M 1%7 15T ErRE
AmMed International Corporation Ltd. Cayman Islands Note™ US5179,999.96 100 1S$179,999.96 100 Investment holding
FERE figE 17999996 270 1799999657 AR
Beaufort Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Note™ HK$10,197,932 100 HK$10,197 932 100 Investment holding
FERE i 10,197,932570 10,197,982/ 70 AR
Beaufort Infemational Hotels (Singapore) ~ Singapore Singapore $61,000,000 100 §§1,000,000 100 Investment holding
Pre Ltd it F1% JPY420,240,000 JPY420,240,000 RERR
1,000,000 7 1,000,000
420,240,000 AE 420,240,005
Beaufort Sentosa Development Pte Lid -~ Singapore Singapore $6143,011,794 100 S§143,011,794 100 Hotel operator and
Fim il 143,011,794 57 143,011 T4RT owner
BEREERE
CDW Building Limted Cayman Islands Hong Kong HK$5,100,002 100 HK$5,100,002 100 Property investment
HEHE it 5,100,007 510000270 nERE
Chinadental Investments Lid. British Virgin Islands ~~ Note™ ) 100 USst 100 Investment holding
BaRREE M 1%7 1% AR
Cosmo Glamour Limited British Virgin Islands ~~ Note™ ) 100 USs1 100 Investment holding
BARREE M 1%7 1% AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
014E38317 pRERERIE

Nominal value Nominal valug
Place of ofissued  Equity interest of issued Equity interest
incorporation/ Principal share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable

registration place of registered capital  to the Group regis ered capital o the Group
Name of company ' BRRA/ AEEEAR AEBEE  Pricipal activies
AR 5 AL 1L 1E5%

GenRx Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands~~ Note™ USSt 100 USSt 100 Investment holding
EnEmRERAR EEgArE I 1% 157 REBR
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands~~ Note™ USSt 100 USSt 100 Investment holding
iEgArE I 1% 157 REBR
Hanbright Assets Limited British Virgin Islands~~ Note™ USSt 100 USst 100 Investment holoing
iEgArE I 1% %7 RABR
Hanison Construction Ho\dings Limited™  Cayman Islands Hong Kong HK$53,631,564 49 HKS53,631,564 49 Note'
BBeRARARAA REES i 53,631,564 8T 53,631,564 870 et
Heatth & Care (Macau) Dental Group Macau Macau MOP25,000 57,05 MOP25,000 5705 Operation of dental
Limited ol ol 25,000 2F 7 5000257 cinic in Macau
B (27 THEERRAT ERMERETHDH
Heatthway Phiippines, Inc. Phiippines Phiippines PHP19,137,500 100 PHP19,187,500 100 Investment holoing
E2E Fazg 19,137,500 F 2B HZ 1013750362 RZ RERR
HK Resort Infemational Limited Cayman Islands Note™ HKS2 100 HK$? 100 Investment holding
REHE gt 27 2k RERR
HKR Asia-Pacifc Pte Ltd Singepore Singapore $65,000,000 100 585,000,000 100 Investment holaing
R g JPY6,872,780,000 JPY6,872,780,000 REfK
THB24,700,000 THB24,700,000
5,000,000 7 5,000 00047
6,872,780,000 6,872,780,0008
24,700,000 24,700,000
HKR China Limited British Virgin slands ~~ Note™ Usst 100 USst 100 Investment holoing
EEREDEERAT £EfmrEe I 157 %7 REER
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HKR Japan KK

HKRJ Development Co., Ltd.

HKR Shanghai Limited

FARZ LERRAA

HKRJ Akasaka TMK

HKRJ Graphio GK'*

HKRJ Roppongi TMK

HMGC, Inc.

Hojo Pte. Ltd.

Mantle Investments Limited

Maxbright Pte. Ltd.

Prinia Pte Ltd

Place of

incorporation/

Japan

AR

Japan

B

British Virgin Islands
ABUBRES

Japan

Bx

Japan

A%

Japan

B
Philppines
Fez
Singapore

iR

British Virgin Islands
AB4ARES

Singapore

iR

Singapore

iR

Principal
place of

Japan

%

Japan

A

Note™
it

Japan

%

Japan

B

Japan

AR
Philppines
Fez
Singapore

iR

Note*
Izt

Singapore

iR

Singapore

iR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

31 March 2014
01453731 A

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRfTRA/
ez EE

JPY10,000
10,000E

JPY10,000
10,000E

Usst
1%7

JPY2,700,100,000
2,700,100,000 €

JPY2,000,000
2,000,000F

JPY4,125,200,000
4,125,200,000

PHP10,250,000
10,250,000 2B HZ
JPY2,023,260,000

2,023,260,000

Usst
1%70

S81
187

882
257

Equity interest
attributable
to the Group
KB
e

Aflt
100

100

100

100

100

100

100

=

31 March 2013
PRERERIE

Nominal value

ofissued

share capital/

registered capital
B

JPY10,000
10,0007

JPY10,000
10,0007

USSt
1%

JPY2,700,100,000
2,700,100,000 2 E

JPY2,000,000
2,000,000F

JPY4,125,200,000
4,125,200,000H

PHP10.250,000
1025000032852
JPY2,023260,000

2,023260,000H

USs1
131

861
181

S§2
2T

Equity interest
atfributable
to the Group
AEEE

Principal activiies

IRRK

Property investment

UESE

Property investment

UESE

Investment holding
REAR

Property investment

UESES

Property investment

UESES

Property investment

UESES

Operation of medical
clinics

et Lo

Investment holding
REBR

Securities investment

Gt

Property holding
VEST

Investment holding
REBR

EEEEEREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F355
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Name of company

NG

Ruthin Investments Pte Lid

Sathom Park Co,, Ltd.

Sky Phoenix Enterprises Limited*

Spa Botanica Pte Ltd

Suki Pte. Ltd.

B2 (L) ERARAR)!

B (L) ERAHARL !

FERRERARLA

Place of
incorporation/

registration
":‘Zﬁﬁvﬁ' /

Singapore

iR

Thalland
28

British Virgin Islands
ABRARES

Singapore
s

Singepore
s

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

Principal
place of
i

Singapore

g

Thalland
52

Hong Kong
i

Singapore

iR

Singapore

HiR

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

31 March 2014
014E38317

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BEfRA/
sz

§62
JPY1,362,730,000
2%n
1,362,730,000 8

THB933,600,000
933,600,000

Usst
1357

862
27

861
JPY673,750,000
147
673,750,000 8

US$14,000,000
14,000000£ 7

US$1,500,000
1,500,000 %7

HK$395,000,000
395,000,000 7

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

Equity interest
attributable
to the Group

K&EEE
Pl

Antt
100

100

100

100

100

100

31 March 2013
pRERERIE

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/

registered capital
2%

882
JPY1,362,730,000
2
1,362,730,0008

THBY33,600,000
933,600,005

882
2R

881
JPY673,750,000
b
673750000 B

US§14,000,000
14000000%7C

US§1,500,000
1,500000%7

HK§395,000,000
395,000, 000772

Eouity interest
attributable
tothe Group
AEERE

Principal activties
23]

Property investment

UESES

Hotel operator and
owner

HERERER

Investment holding

REBR

Management of a spa
center and provision
of spa consultancy
services

ERAERORER
KBRS

Investment holding
RERR

Property investment

UESE

Property management

NRER

Property development

NEER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

+

Construction, interior and renovation works, supply and installation of
building materials, property development, property investment, provision of
property agency and management services and sales of health products.

*  These companies are engaged in securities investment business of the
Group and have no specific principal place of operation.

**  These companies act as investment holding companies and have no
specific principal place of operation.

*  These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

* The Group can enjoy all economic beneficial interest, instead of equity
interest, of the company by contractual terms.

% The company was incorporated during the year ended 31 March 2014.

“* " The company has been treated as a subsidiary of the Company upon

adoption of HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”.

(c) Details of principal associates are as follows:

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

31 March 2014
2014%3H31R

Attributable

interest held

Place of by the Group

Name of company incorporation KEBAE

IR T L 2 3 4

Bl

Morpheus Real Estate Fund L.P. Cayman Islands 20

REHS

Polyoung Limited Hong Kong 31
BRERARA BE

Tung Chung Station Development Hong Kong 31
Company Limited &k

TORSE RMRMETE - UBRZEREME  MER
B WERE  REDERERERRGARMEERRER

o WEATREAREZ EFREAEY  AMEARECE
ZEEE o

o WERARRBRERBRAR  AMEARELIREEN
B

BB RERBIERE -

"AEERANERAZUH AR TEOEERER - IR
A o

b BATNEZE2014E3 A31 BIEFEEREMKT -

MORNRREAMBREERE 0% [FEAMBRE] K &
RABHAAERAZHBAR °

© EEBERQAFFBOT

31 March 2013
201343 A31R
Attributable
interest held

by the Group

Principal activities

IERHK

20  Investment holding and its subsidiaries are
engaged in property investment in Japan
RERRRENEARNBARSE
NERE

31 Provision of financial services to first hand
purchasers of Coastal Skyline
AERGF—FERRUMBRS

31 Property investment

NERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

(d) Details of principal joint ventures are as follows:

31 March 2014
20143831 A

Attributable

interest held

Place of by the Group

Name of company incorporation AEEfE

INGIER S BRIAvE EihER

BAk

Dazhongli Properties Limited British Virgin Islands 50

ARENEERRAA RBARRES

Everbeam Investments Limited* Hong Kong 50
EAREBRAT BB

B (L8 FHERRERAR" PRC 50
e

TE (L8 FHERRERAR" PRC 50
e

RE (L8 FHERRERAR" PRC 50
e

City Grace Co., Ltd. Thailand 49*
Bl

*  These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

Pursuant to the joint-venture agreements of the joint venture, the
respective board of directors of the joint venture decides on key financial and
operating matters on simple majority. The Group and the joint venture partner
each holds 50% of the voting rights and hence the directors of the Company
consider the Group and the joint venture partner exercise joint control over the
joint venture.

% The company was incorporated during the year ended 31 March 2014.
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d) EEBELRFFHBLT:

31 March 2013
2013434318

Attributable
interest held
by the Group
AEEFHE  Principal activities
ElEER  F255K
BAK
50  Investment holding
BaR
- Property development
NEER

50  Property development
NEER

50  Property development
NEER

50  Property development
NEER

49*  Property development
NERER

Y HERARBINERE -

"ORBAERAZAENE  ZAYLRIZEFIUBES
BREIEFBREEFE - AREEAEBHERE0%E
RiE - AMARREERR  AEBRALEBHEZSERT
BFTE SRR b -

Y ZATMEZE20144 3 A 31 B IEFEREMRT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

(e) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material () HAEEARIENERZIETENBARZ
non-controlling interests: S

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries TRETNEB BRI 2 AR RIFEEE M

of the Company that have material non-controlling interests: BAEZFFS
Proportion of ownership
interests and voting
rights held by non-
Place of controlling interests Profits (losses) allocated to Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary incorporation FERERMTRAERR non-controlling interests controlling interests
AR AR REZE I AEFEERES 28R (F8) A FERES
2014 2013 2014 2018 2014
HKS HKS HKS HKS
B BT BT BT
Hong Kong Resort Company Hong Kong 50% 50% 138.4 249.0 1,698.2 1559.8
Limited (note ) BB
BAREARART (W)
Hanison Gonstruction Holdings Gayman Islands 51% 51% 88.7 947 692.7 618.8
Limited (note i) RERE
T RARERAR ()
Indlividually immaterial subsicliaries (6.7) 39 02 49
with non-controling interests
RHARER ERBEER
HBAE
214 339.8 2,391.1 2,1835
Notes: B EE -
() Hong Kong Resort Company Limited is engaged in the development, () BBHEEBRAREBUBHERLKEBMAKIELESE
management and provision of essential and recreational services for residential ZEERF RIKEIEB W ARERENE RERERY
housing and leisure projects principally in Discovery Bay, Lantau Island.
(i) Hanison is listed on the Stock Exchange. Although the Company has (i) EREREERFT LT - REAR RN ESERES 40% HHE
only 49% ownership interest and voting rights in Hanison, the directors of B RREE  ANRREEZEwRA  ERAEERER B
the Company concluded that the Company has sufficiently dominant voting 35 AR S A R B A BR SR A A AR 2 AR ET AR R D BRIRE © AR
interests to direct the relevant activities of Hanison on the basis of the Group’s DR ERE A TR B ATE B B R AR R SETS - 4926% 2 Eiik
absolute size of shareholding and the relative size of and dispersion of the BEEERBARAEERRFE - HER25% < BSHEAERE
shareholdings owned by other shareholders. About 26% ownership interests in AT ZHEAEEERRRES - AMEERRREGBR
Hanison are owned by substantial shareholders of the Company. The remaining 20% 2 #wm ©

25% ownership interests in Hanison are owned by thousands of shareholders
that are unrelated to the Group, none individually holding more than 20%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS FRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the BB E A AEERER C AERZSWNB AT Z
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests BB ERMEESHY T o TR EER R
is set out below. The summarised financial information below 2R EENEHEAI S8 -

represents amounts before intergroup elimination.

Hong Kong Resort Company Limited EHRHEEESRE AT
2014 2013
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBT
Current assets mENEE 2,784.3 2,758.8
Non-current assets IEmENEE 3,461.3 3,352.1
Current liabilities mEEE (931.8) (913.4)
Non-current liabilities el =Er= (1,886.7) (2,045.7)
Equity attributable to owners RAREE AR
of the Company 1,728.9 1,692.0
Non-controlling interests IR R 1,698.2 1,559.8

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIALEFE

2014 2013
HK$'M HK$'M
BEER BEBT
Revenue Wz 1,282.0 1,765.1
Expenses 53 (1,006.7) (1,265.6)
Profit and total comprehensive income for KARER ANEARFEE
the year attributable to owners of the AR EE WS B
Company 136.9 250.5
Profit and total comprehensive income for IIEREREGERFE
the year attributable to non-controlling A R EE W S B
interests 138.4 249.0
Profit and total comprehensive income for REERNEEEREETE
the year 275.3 499.5
Net cash inflow from operating activities EBEEBMBRESRAFRE 885.0 127.4
Net cash outflow used in investing activites & XM AR SR F58 (89.0) (290.4)
Net cash (outflow) inflow (used in) from REEK (FTA)FERE
financing activities ORHE) A FHE (201.6) 147.3
Net cash inflow (outflow) WeRAGRL) F5E 594.4 (15.7)
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Hanison

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
% =R & B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

HL S

2014 2013

MBEE

FEREEE

mBAE

FRBAE
EAN/NSIE YEPN AL

eI

=
rAH

HK$'M
BEBT
1,652.7
1,109.2
(1,315.5)
(93.1)

660.6
692.7

HK$'M
BEBIT
1,541.4
1,038.5
(1,279.5)
(83.9)

597.7
618.8

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3ANBLEE

2014 2013
HK$’M HK$'M
BEBT AEBT
Revenue Was 1,626.5 1,554.5
Expenses 53 (1,462.5) (1,369.3)
Profit attributable to owners of the RATHE ANE(R T
Company 75.3 90.5
Profit attributable to non-controlling FET2E AR 25 FE A A
interests 88.7 94.7
Profit for the year REZHF 164.0 185.2
Other comprehensive (expense) income RAREB ANEEEMEE
attributable to owners of the Company (X)) Wzs (0.2) 0.9
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEEREREG B R
attributable to non-controlling interests (RS Wezs (0.1) 0.9
Other comprehensive (expense) income for AN JE E 2 m (B ) Wz
the year (0.3) 1.8
Total comprehensive income attributable to ~ ANA &% B AFEMS
owners of the Company 2HKRZ BT 75.1 91.4
Total comprehensive income attributable to  JF1RA%HE 2R FEAE
non-controlling interests EHEWEBRE 88.6 95.6
Total comprehensive income for the year REE AW ELRTE 163.7 187.0
Dividends paid to non-controlling RIBEESZ i GV e
shareholders (13.7) (11.2)
Net cash inflow from operating activities EEXEGMERERAFE 164.4 273.6
Net cash outflow used in investing activities ~ REEMBAHAARE R HEE (3.4) (283.1)
Net cash (outflow) inflow (used in) from BMEER (TR RS
financing activities Omd) mAE=E (130.9) 118.1
Net cash inflow WERAFEE 30.1 108.6
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

All of the above principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, other than Abraham Holdings Limited, Beaufort
Holdings Limited, Chinadental Investments Ltd., Great Wisdom
Holdings Limited, Hanbright Assets Limited, HK Resort
International Limited, HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd and HKR China
Limited, are held indirectly by the Company.

The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Other than club debentures as set out in Note 33, no other loan
capital has been issued by any of the subsidiaries.

46. Related Party Transactions

During the year, other than balances with related parties as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position, the Group had
significant transactions/balances with related parties as follows:

(A)  Connected transactions with entities controlled (or jointly
controlled as joint venture) by certain discretionary trusts of
which four (2013: five) directors of the Company are among the
discretionary beneficiaries at the end of the reporting period. The
trusts have controlling beneficial interests in these entities and the
Company:

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2013/2014

FrAbraham Holdings Limited * Beaufort Holdings
Limited + Chinadental Investments Ltd. * Great
Wisdom Holdings Limited + Hanbright Assets
Limited » HK Resort International Limited * HKR
Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd [ &8 B B G R A 7]

5 LMFEEEMBAR  BEARRAEA
AR R ARERA -

RRREBZRR  ERAIARR ZHBLRR
BERNBRAELERRIHAKE Z XEHEER
BEBEE - ARBEERR - BAEAMNE
NE - BERARRAERAREMABRILE

BHIEES3 T2 BATESSN - AREZHBA
AT B -

46. BEALRS

iR & BTSN R TR B RIE A T 2 B8RS - K
SEFREBEADTETIERRG/MERNT

A BETHEEFE(RBRESHRARF 45
(20134 : 6 R)BEEZREBIBETEA) FEHIZ
ER(IAREF2AERR)ETZEERS
EEANZSERBNARAREE Bz

N2

33

N
4

E
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

2014 2013 2013
HK$’M HK$'M HK$'M
HEBT BEBT BEAT
(as previously
(restated) stated)
(&%) (SERIZ%R)
Transactions with the entities: HZEEEIRS
Rental income received BUEL A 2.8 2.8 2.8
Management service fee received BlE ERRBE 2.8 2.0 2.0
Other services provided Biedt 2 Hib AR 0.8 0.2 0.2
Transactions with the entities that HZEER /X5 (hE
are entered into with Hanison Group: BRESEER]) -
Construction income received BUE Z B A 8.8 3.3 -
Disposals of investment properties HEREWE - 23.8 -
Project management income and B2 IBE ERKA
site supervision service income R R B B RIS WA
received 7.0 5.0 -
Project management income and AAENRIIRERZ
site supervision service income BEEERAR
received from a joint venture R EEE BRI A 2.3 1.7 -
2014 2013 2013
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HEAT BEBT BEAT
(as previously
(restated) stated)
(&%) (SERIZ%R)
Balance with Hanison Group by a A A TR S E
related party: P
Advance from a non-controlling FEIE R AR TR 2 B
shareholder 71.0 63.6 -

EFEEEEREBEFRAF 2013/2014 F1§
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

(B) Transactions with associates and joint ventures of the B) HAEEBMENRINRAEZERNRIZRS :
Company:
2014 2013 2013
HK$’M HK$'M HK$'M
BHEBT BEAT BEBT
(as previously
(restated) stated)
(&Z51) (SERIZHR)
Aggregate transaction value in ERAAREEREEGEE
respect of the construction and EITRERKBRE
renovation services entered into by 7 X S4EE
the Group with Hanison Group N/ATEF* N/ATNER 142.7
Management fee and other mEEARMR EEE
operating service fees received REAM S LIRS E
from associates 1.1 8.5 8.5
Management fee and other operating 14 & A B E 2 B2 8
service fees received from a joint REMEEREE
venture 24.2 19.9 19.9
Construction income received from A4 %2 BIUER 2 B EUA
joint ventures 2.2* 8.3" -
Interest income received from an R & A B 2 RIS
associate 0.2 0.2 0.2
Interest income received from joint A& &2 BIUELZ F E YA
ventures 16.0 16.4 16.4
Waiver of management fee B ER e /NE i d:
previously charged to an ERE
associate (10.6) - -
Rental expenses to an associate SRR N2 HEER (0.7)* (0.8)* -
For the year ended 31 March 2014, the transactions with Hanison Group fOBE2014F3A31BILFE  BEBEEL 51282808
of HK$128.2 million (2013: HK$142.7 million) were fully eliminated upon FEIC (2013 4F + 142.7 ABAIL) BRERA RREE 8 o

consolidation.

*  The amounts represent transactions entered into with Hanison Group by * RESHEEBALTHEBEETIVIIRS o
related parties.
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e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

(C) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year is as follows:

©C IZ2EEAEME

EXLHEMTIBEEEENERFAZMESIT

2014 2013

HK$’M HK$'M
BEET BEATT

Short term employee benefits REEBRET
Fees we 1.7 2.4
Salaries and other benefits e RHAET] 21.0 22.0
Performance related incentive payments B 10.2 9.7
Ex-gratia payment FEN 20.0 -
52.9 34.1

Post-employment benefit BRI 12 A

Retirement benefits schemes contribution RUREFIEH B 0.7 0.8
53.6 34.9

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.

47. Event after the Reporting Period

On 25 April 2014, the Group made a successful bid at an

open auction to acquire a property in Shanghai, the PRC at a
consideration of approximately RMB588.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$729.7 million), and the consideration was fully
settled in May 2014.

BIBTRIBEMGBERETE

47. {HREHRREE

R2014F 4 258 - AREBRAZEE IR
"B E e E - REBY5882808
ARE(REAH729.7EBEST)  AREZR
2014 F 5 AEELEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE

48. Information about the Statement of
Financial Position of the Company

48. HAAR QR 2 MBI RZER

224

Information about the statement of financial position of the RIREEIR - AR R 2B R ZERE
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: b
2014 2013
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBT
Property, plant and equipment Y - BRENEE 5.8 6.2
Interests in subsidiaries (Note 49) Mo A E R (P EE 49) 9,775.9 9,535.6
Other investment HEmigE 112.2 112.2
Other receivables H YRR 52.1 62.1
Amounts due from associates JE s B 8N B FRIE 0.1 0.3
Amounts due from joint ventures B A &R EIFIE 429.5 629.4
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIIRE 1,274.8 1,169.9
Total assets BERE 11,650.4 11,616.7
Other payables H R ERIE 17.0 18.8
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERIBH B A R IE 3,647.3 4,267.5
Bank loans RITER 5,025.6 4,210.2
Total liabilities BEesE 8,689.9 8,496.5
Net assets BEFE 2,960.5 3,019.2
Capital and reserves B K
Share capital %N 337.5 337.5
Reserves (Note 50) bt (H5E50) 2,623.0 2,681.7
Equity attributable to owners RRAEIEE AEG R
of the Company 2,960.5 3,019.2

49. Interests in Subsidiaries

49. BN B R

2014 2013

HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEBT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETR - RRAE 2,604.6 2,604.6
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN S NETE

Interest bearing portion (note) RIS (KIsE) 2,680.0 2,186.1
Non-interest bearing portion E-N 1 4,491.3 4,744.9
9,775.9 9,535.6

Note: The amounts are unsecured, bear interest at the prevailing market MisE © ZERIBAEEE  RRTMISEER R E LEREF

borrowing rates and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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50. Reserves of the Company

iR B R MY A
For the year ended 31 March 2014 &= 201463 A31 HIEFE
50. AN A
RE2D

Movement in reserves

Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserve profits
RIVEE BEEEGEE RDER
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEAT BEAT BEET
At 1 April 2012 R20124 18 1,537.9 3.1 1,5613.6 3,054.6
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFERZARY RS
expense for the year - - (224.4) (224.4)
Dividends paid BIRRE - - (148.5) (148.5)
At 31 March 2013 201353 A 31 H 1,537.9 341 1,140.7 2,681.7
Profit and total comprehensive AERRF AR RES
income for the year - - 8.8 8.8
Dividends paid 2IRIRE - - (67.5) (67.5)
At 31 March 2014 R201453A31H 1,537.9 3.1 1,082.0 2,623.0

Under the Company Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its memorandum and articles of association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividends,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
articles of association, dividends can only be distributed out of the
accumulated profits of the Company of HK$1,082.0 million as at
31 March 2014 (2013: HK$1,140.7 million).

RIEFSEEQREFE 225 (KER]) » AAF)

2R EAMESIR PR AREIRE - B
RTHMBBERAARAABERMAPETEME -

MEREIRE% - AARBERENEERBEER
FH 2 B o BIBARQ B 2 EHERREA - AQ
Bl R BN 2014 F3 A 31 HZ K51 F1,082.0
AHEBIT(20134F : 1,140.7 A&B ) P AR
BHRE -

EEEEEREBEFRAR 2013/2014 F355
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Five-year Financial Summary
TFHBEME

Results ¥EE

Year ended 31 March
HESASIBLEE

2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEAT BEBTL BEBT BEAT
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(E71) (E51) (&=51) (&51)
Turnover e 4,207.5 5,298.3 2,656.8 2,3315 2,576.9
Profit from operations B 1,463.3 1,264.1 933.7 1,756.7 1,442.6
Finance costs HBER (173.0) (122.5) (68.6) 473 (87.5)
Share of results of associates ~ PhEE A BIELE 0.3 92.0 29.8 66.8 58.4
Share of results of joint ventures DMEA & A RIE4E (103.7) 282.3 95.0 164.8 838.0
Profit before taxation BRT A& A 1,186.9 1,515.9 989.9 1,941.0 2,25156
Taxation GE] (130.9) (177.8) (69.1) (68.1) (238.4)
Profit for the year REERH 1,056.0 1,338.1 920.8 1,872.9 2,013.1
Attributable to: TFIfE
Owners of the Company EREHEAA 834.6 998.3 746.9 1,647.1 1,889.7
Non-controlling interests RS 221.4 339.8 173.9 225.8 123.4
Profit for the year RERRR 1,056.0 1,338.1 920.8 1,872.9 2,013.1
Statement of Financial Position B R RER
Information
At 31 March
R3A31H
2012
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS$'M HK$'M
HEAR BEBT HEBT HEBT BEAT
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(E71) (E51) (E51) (E51)
Total assets BERE 28,415.1 26,686.6 24.873.0 22,749.0 19,507.9
Total liabilities BERR (9,828.1) (9,011.1) (8,528.1) (7,400.1) (6,174.5)
Non-controling interests RS (2,391.1) (2,183.5) (1,855.0) (1,784.6) (1,665.7)
Equity attributable to owners of AR REEH A
the Company (G R 16,195.9 15,492.0 14,489.9 13,564.3 1,777.7

HZE 20134 ~ 20124 ~ 2011 FE % 201043 A 31
HILFEZ BB ER D RIRAE BB RS %R
FA0 (A MEHmE ] BTFIUET -

The financial information for the years ended 31 March 2013,
2012, 2011 and 2010 had been restated upon adoption of
HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”.
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Particulars of Major Properties
TEYMEFE
At 31 March 2014 FA2014% 3 A31H

A. Properties held for/under A. BERR/IBEP2WE

development
Gross floor Expected Attributable
area (sq. ft.) Stage of completion Nature interest to
Descriptions #IEAEE  completion date of property the Group
R (ERR)  TRESR RExAA NEME rEEEGER
1. Theremaining phases, ABLRSREATEE
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island
() TaiPak, Discovery Bay, RIS EARE 43056 Planningin 2016-2018 Residential 50%
Lantau Island progress fFx
- Residential % REETH
Remaining Phase BTHH
() Others (note) i (fissE) 472444 Notyet No definite Retained for future 50%
commenced plan development
HARE) T EETHE BIERERE
2. Lotno. 1613inDDno. 222, ¥ RFAEFEH 3,731 Construction 2016 Residential 100%
Kap Pin Long, Sai Kung, TENE 2225 under progress fFE
New Territories $81613%; IRt
3. TuenMunTown Lotno. 498,  #15f 24014 Plamning 2017 Residential 100%
Wu On Strest, Area 44, FUEREE (stearea)  in progress fFE
Tuen Mun, New Territories T 408 5% (tgmE)  BIETR
4. YaoJiaDang Areain the Jiaxing REIITE 887,229 Construction 2016 Residential 100%
Economic Development Zone, Z# under progress =z
Jiaxing City, RROERERE IR
Zheliang Province, the PRC k%%
5. Roppongi4 Chome, Tokyo, ~ BARFAANT B 26373 Plamning 2017 Residentil 100%
Japan (site area) in progress iz
(tgmE)  BEETE
6. 121 lotsin Demarcation MR 815,886  Planning No definite Residential 49%
District no. 129, TEREL (stearea) inprogress plan fFE
LauFau Shan, YuenLong, ~ LEH%F120% (tEmE)  REETE EETHE
New Territories 121 (Bt 8
7. Various lots R 44,588 Planning No definite Residential 49%
in Demarcation TMIRES (steared)  inprogress plan fFE
District no. 374, LENEIT4T (n#miE)  RERETR EEEE
So Kwun Wat, Tuen Mun, ATHE
New Territories
8. The Austine Place, NEEH 52,077 Construction 2014 Residential 49%
No. 38 Kwun Chung Street, B JE#38% under progress %
Jordan, Kowloon The Austine Place T2+
9. Varouslotsin Demarcation ~ ¥IRTTE 67315  Planning No definite Residential 49%
District no. 121, BAIH (stearea) inprogress plan fFE
Tong Yan San Tsuen, LEHE 1215 (tEmE)  REETE EETHE
Yuen Long, New Terrtories BT
Note: The Discovery Bay Project has a total site area of approximately Mz MREEE SHMRERBROATOBEET AR - RTHELT

M B IR AR AT AL 110,246 F AR Z FEREE L EA
LA R 4B iR SATE IS 40 362,198 T 5 IR 7 BREEES R F it ©

70 million sq. ft.. The remaining development area comprises a total of
about 110,246 sq. ft. of gross building area of residential and commercial
development and about 362,198 sq. ft. of gross building area for recreational
development.
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Particulars of Major Properties
FEMEFT

At 31 March 2014 FA2014 53 A31 H

B. EEREWRE

B. Investment properties under

228

construction

Gross floor Expected Atributable

area (sq.ft)  Stage of completion Nature interest to
Descriptions @RAER  completion date of property the Group
R (EAR)  TEREBR BT A MERE AEEEERES
10, 2-6Fui Yiu Kok Street, MREERZAY 93623 Construction 2014 Indlustrial 100%

Tsuen Wan, New Territories ~ 2-6% under progress I%
TiggfTH

C. Investment properties held for rental

purposes

Descriptions

R

11. 2 houses located at Bijou Hamlet,
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

12. 5 houses located at Headland Village,
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

13. 11 units comprising lowrise
and duplex apartments located at
Peninsula Village, Discovery Bay,
Lantau Island

14, 1 highrise apartment located at
Greenvale Village, Discovery Bay,
Lantau Island

15, 23 highrise apartments located at
Parkridge Village, Discovery Bay,
Lantau Island

16. 6 midrise apartments located at
DB Plaza, Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

17. 2 lowrise apartments located at
Siena One, Discovery Bay,
Lantau Island

18. 1 lowrise apartment located at
Siena Two, Discovery Bay,
Lantau Island

19. 1 lowrise apartment located at
La Vista, Discovery Bay,
Lantau Island

A LS BEINE
2ETEE+5

AL = ERE
SIEEE I+

RE LR R EEE
MEER
(REEFE R
EAEAK)

RE L =B
HEREE

AE L RERRE
23 {AREEN

ABULEE
hRFSEPEEL

KB BRE
RN R
2 AR AEE

RS
BB
1 EEE

ABUBEETER
1 BEEE
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C. FEREVEESESVARE

Gross floor
area (sq. ft.)
BEEER
(FAR)
5,392

12,836

18,043

1,068

15,118

4,522

2,483

1,315

976

Nature of
property
MEME
Residential
F=E

Residential
F=

Residential
F=

Residential
F=

Residential
F=

Residential
F=
Residential

£

Residential
F=

Residential
F=

Attributable
interest to
the Group

A&
FEfbRER
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Category
of lease

REER

Medium

i

Medium

i

Medium

i

Medium

i

Medium

ki
Medium
FHf
Medium

i

Medium

i

Medium

i



Descriptions

R
20.

21,

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

271.

28.

29.

30.

31,

14/F of Century Tower Il and

Car Parking Space No. 12 on Level 1,
Century Tower, Nos. 1 and 1A
Tregunter Path, The Peak, Hong Kong

5 highrise apartments located at
Coastal Skyline, Tung Chung,
Lantau Island

2 highrise apartments located at
Tung Chung Crescent,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

6 highrise apartments located at
Seaview Crescent, Tung Chung,
Lantau Island

7 residential units and 9 car parking
spaces of Chelsea Residence,

No. 169 of Lane 1038,

Huashan Road, Changning District,
Shanghai, the PRC

2 highrise apartments located at
Peninsula Village, Discovery Bay,
Lantau Island

Horizon Place Akasaka, Tokyo,
Japan

Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku, Tokyo,
Japan

Commercial Centre,
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

Shop 401, Coastline Vila,
Peninsula Village, Discovery Bay,
Lantau Island

Commercial Centre, Yi Pak,
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

West Gate Tower,

No. 7 Wing Hong Street and

8 King Lam Street, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon

EA LB MEER
1R 1AL REN
14EREERE
F1EEESZ 125 EQ
KRR FEXER
5 A= EER
RRLEE

RIEN

2 =R EAL
R

RER

6 A= R EAL

FE BT RER

#1175 1038 F 1695
ERER"B
7EFEEM K EEN

KL S &g
2 A= R EAL

AARR

Horizon Place Akasaka
AARR
Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku

AR
GEL

KU 5 e
BEEIM T 401 F

ABUREE= S
CELT

NERDEKFETH
RIgH 8%
RGO

Particulars of Major Properties
FEMEFT

At 31 March 2014 FA2014 53 A31 H

Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sqg. ft)  Nature of the Group Category
#EHEE property A&£E  oflease
(EHER) #EME EEE  HEER
3,663  Residential 100% Long
F= =
5,477  Residential 100% Medium
Fx FH
1,838 Residential 100% Medium
FE FH
4524 Residential 100% Medium
Fx FH
16,407  Residential 100% Long
Fx =
1,438  Residential 50% Medium
Fx FH
81,624  Residential 100% Freehold
Fx KAEKE
27,314 Commercial 100% Freehold
[EE3 KAFERE
180,910  Commercial 50% Medium
[EE3 FH
7,417 Commercial 50% Medium
[GES FH
147,445  Commercial 50% Medium
[GES R Hf
146,631  Industrial 100% Medium
I% R Hf
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Particulars of Major Properties
FEMEFT

At 31 March 2014 FA2014 53 A31 H

Descriptions

BR
32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

CDW Building,

382-392 Castle Peak Road,

27-37 Mei Wan Street, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories

Workshop 7, 1/F, Block A,
Workshops 9-10, 2/F, Block A,
Workshops 1-5, 4/F, Block B,
Workshops 1-18 &

majority portion of

Workshop 23 (including

flat roofs of Workshops 5 & 6),
4/F, Block A,

Whole Floor, 5/F, Blocks A & B,
Whole Floor, 6/F, Block A,

Car Parking Spaces

V26, V31, V36, V49, V50,

V65, 142, 145 & L53

Shatin Industrial Centre,

5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit,

Shatin, New Territories

Various lots

in Demarcation District no. 76,
Ping Che, Fanling,

New Territories

Leasehold interest in the
Head-Lease for the residual
term of 30 years commencing
from 1 December 1989 with
an option to renew for a further
term of 30 years of whole of
No. 31 Wing Wo Street,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

Various lots

in Demarcation District no. 128,
Deep Bay Road, Yuen Long,
New Territories

Workshop Unit

nos. 4 1o 6 (inclusive) on
2nd Floor and Lorry Carpark
Nos. L7 &L8

on Ground Floor,

Kin Wing Industrial Building,
No. 33 Kin Wing Street,
Tuen Mun, New Territories

Gross floor
area (sq. ft.)
BEAEE
(FAR)
MAZEFRE7-37% 982,777
1138 382-302 %%
REMEAE
HRDH 123,542
RIBESZ 75 (excluding area
DETESL of flat roofs)
AB—ETI{ERT (TBEER
AEZET{ERIZ10 L)
BEMEZTER1E5 "
ABRETIER1ZE18)K
TER23 2 EE5 1 -
(BETERSR6ZETE) -
ARBEREZE
ABRERE
R BRI V26 - V31 V36 »
V49 ~ V50 ~ V55 ~ 42 -
L4512 153
mRKnE 142,066
FEXLENETOH (site area)
AT (HEmE)
R—HE#EHER 2,956
BB LRANE REE
2ERERN HEER
HEFHH1989F 12 A1H
Bith - BHAS0E (Y HER
SN0 FHHR 2 1)
TR 214,106
NEBLENE 1285 (site area)
ETHE (wEEE)
HRAF 5,575

BAHRRATEAE &
4B TR (MERIEER)
Rt NERSEL7 L8
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Nature of
property
MEME

Industrial

I%

Industrial

I%

Agricultural
Rt

Commercial

EES

Agricultural
Bt

Industrial

I%

Attributable
interest to
the Group

S|
bR

100%

49%

49%

49%

49%

49%

Category
of lease

REER

Medium

T

Medium
i

Medium

i

Medium

T

Medium

i

Medium

T



Particulars of Major Properties
TEMEFE

At 31 March 2014 FA2014 53 A31 H

38, Various lots R 60,277  Agricultural 245%  Medium
in Demarcation District no. 132, LENFE1RFETHR (stearea) 2 ]
Tuen Mun, New Territories (EmEE)

39.  CentreHollywood, BB LR 32,738 Commercial 294%  Long
No. 151 Hollywood Road, AEEE1515% [EES R
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong CentreHollywood

D. Properties held for sale D. BEHEWE

40, Remaining units of Amalfi, Discovery Bay, AU LIt S /&2 RH TS 9,183  Residential 50%  Medium
Lantau Island FE i

41, Positano, Discovery Bay, R s 187,697  Residential 50%  Medium
Lantau Island FE i

42, Remaining units of ZEEA 136,323  Residential 100%  Freehold
The Sukhothai Residences, The Sukhothai Residences (net saleable =% KAERE
Bangkok, Thailand N area)

(3ERER)

43, Remaining units of The Bedford, FUBEA fBIR 14 E44E 01-935% 31,368  Industrial 49%  Long

Nos. 91-93 Bedford Road, The Bedford & T &z I% 8

Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon
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Particulars of Major Properties
FEMEFT

At 31 March 2014 FA2014 53 A31 H

E. Other properties

Descriptions

R

44, Lotnos. 373RP and 374 in D.D. 352,
Lantau Island

45.  Lotnos. 1735,1737, 1979 and
portions of Lot nos. 1978 and
2012 in Demarcation District no. 91,
Fanling, New Territories

46.  Various lots in Demarcation District
no. 363, Sam Pak, Lantau Island

47. Section B and the remaining portion
of Lot no. 5, Section A and the
remaining portion of Lot no. 65 and
Lot nos. 61, 66, 67 and 69, Peng Chau

48.  Section C and the remaining
portions of Lot nos. 354 and 346,
Peng Chau

49.  Various lots in Demarcation District
no. 354, Diana Farm, Hang Sui,
Lantau Island

50.  The remaining portion of Lot no. 317

in Demarcation District no. 132,
Tuen Mun, New Territories

KIS B45 3528
HER 373 SRERER ] 374 5%

HRNELENEIH
1EL 1735%F ~ 1737 %% «
19795 AR 197857 &
201257 2 BB R

AEL=R
LBHE63HETHR

TN ESRBER
BB 65 AR RBRER
PR 6155 - 6657 »

6755 2 69 57

FENHEER 55 354 55 12
3465 C B R ER

KIUE|LI4T7K Diana Farm
LENEIB4FHE THE

MAEMRLENE 1325
B 317 5% 2 BAER
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Ht s

Site area

(sq.ft.) Nature of

hBEE
(FAR)

property
MELE

23,400 Residential

154,106

147,669

(retained for future
development)
FE
(REREER)

Agricultural lots
(no definite plan)
BHHR
(EETHE)

Agricultural lots
(no definite plan)
B
(EETHE)

57,935 Agricultural lots

(no definite plan)
B
(BEE:E)

35,266  Agricultural lots

222,593

(no definite plan)
B
(BEE:E)

Golf course
(completed)
BEXIRS
(#T)

1,394 Agricultural lots

(no definite plan)
B
(EEE:E)

Attributable
interest to
the Group

S 3L
FEfb s
100%

100%

50%

100%

100%

50%

50%



Board of Directors
BEg

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson (Chairman)
BB LA ()

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
BRI (B EREFELETE)

Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham”
EOMEE"

Mr TANG Moon Wah
EmEES

The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI
BEEE A

Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson
EMEEE

Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline
FEXRELZLT

Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry
HRuE

Dr CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin
RERE L

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
SRIKFRIEAE

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta
A g2+

Dr QIN Xiao
REE T

" Also alternate to Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson
' RESHBELZIRBEF

Audit Committee
EREES

Dr CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin (Chairman)
REREL (ZE)

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
FRKFRIEHE

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta

[OEElEke.

Remuneration Committee
FMZEES

Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry (Chairman)
BRAE L (FE)

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor

B L

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
SRIKFRIEAE

Dr QIN Xiao
REEH T

Nomination Committee
REZES

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson (Chairman)
BERBELE(F/E)

Dr CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin
REREL

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta
g2+

Dr QIN Xiao
REHEL

Corporate Information and Investors’ Calendar

Company Secretary
REWE

Ms MAK Sau Ching
BEFALL

Registered Office
P E =Y

P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman lIslands

Principal Office
FTERSBR

23/F, China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

& T7E 168-2005%
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Share Registrars
RGBFELE

Hong Kong
&E
Computershare Hong Kong

Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BBPRBLFELERAF
BB 2ERER 1835
AMPOATEATI2-1716

Cayman Islands
HEHS

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

Independent Auditor
B R

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
BE) o BIEMR AT

Principal Bankers
FEARERT

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited
BB BESRITERAF
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
BITIRTT (BB) BRLAA
Hang Seng Bank Limited
BAERTBERAR

RAIBERRIREEB®

Legal Advisors
ERER

Hong Kong Laws
BEBLE

Mayer Brown JSM
FFEITERTT

Pf_ao, Lee & Yip
[SE>c2= e

ReedSmith Richards Butler
R AEEATT
Cayman Islands Laws
HeRsEE

Maples and Calder

B EEMEBA

SEHK Stock Name/Code
B PTIR 0 BB/

HKR Int'l &7 B3 B R /00480

Investors’ Calendar

REEB®
Annual General Meeting
RFRBERE

27 August 2014

201448 AH27H

Closure of Registers
gERDER

25 to 27 August 2014 (Annual General Meeting)
201468 A25 BE 27 B (REHAFAE)

2 and 3 September 2014 (Final Dividend)
20144F 9 A2 B3 B (KHKE)

Dividend Payment Date
REREAH

18 September 2014
201459 H18H

Communication

B4R

Website #931 © www.hkri.com

Tel B @ (852) 2238 1188

Email £ :

investors@hkri.com (Investors # &%)
cs@hkri.com (Shareholders i )
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